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STATE OF OHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

Jivt PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

88 East Broad Street
P.O. Box 1140
Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone 614-466-4514
800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

We have reviewed the independent auditor's report of Lucas County, prepared by Ernst & Young
LLP, for the audit period January 1, 1999 through December 31, 1999. Based upon this review, we

have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit required by Section 117.11, Revised Code. The
Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, we are unable
to express, and do not express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by the
Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor of State,
regulations and grant requirements. Lucas County is responsible for compliance with these laws and

regulations.

June 16, 2000
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Report of Independent Auditors on the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Lucas County, Ohio, as of
and for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated
May 5, 2000. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the
management of the County. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general
purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our andit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general
purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
May 5, 2000 on our consideration of the County’s intermal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants.

QOur audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose
financial statements of Lucas County, Ohio, taken as a whole. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the year ended December 31, 1999 is
presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by U. S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the general purpose financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the procedures applied in the audit of
the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all
material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

May 5, 2000 Sant ¥ Mur

Ernst & Young LLP is a member of Ernst & Young International, Ltd.



Lucas County, Ohio
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year ended December 31, 1999

Pass-Through
Federal Grant Entity
Puass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture - Food and Nutrition:
Passed through Ohio Department of Education:
Juvenile Court:
Food Distribution Program 10.550 IRN: 083097 $ 2,535
Child Nutrition Cluster:
Passed through Ohio Department of Education:
Juvenile Court:
Wational School Lunch Program 10.555 IEN: 083097 76,640
National School Breakfast Program 10.553 IRN: 083097 42,510
Board of Mental Retardation:
it National School Lunch Program 10.555 3,322
Board of County Commissioners:
= Community Development Center:
Summer Food Service Program 10.559 IRN: 089243 121,172
Child Nutrition Cluster 243,644
Tatal U.S. Department of Agriculture 246,179
Federal Emergency Management Agency:
Passed through Ohio Emergency Management Agency: —
Emergency Management Agency:
Participating Partnership Agreement 83.534 72,169
Total Federal Emergency Management Agency 72,169

|y




Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards {continued)

Federal Grant
Pass Through Grantor
Program Title

CFDA
Npmber

Pass-Through
Entity
Identifying
Number

Federal
Expenditures

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD):
Passed through Ohio Department of Development:
Board of County Commissioners:
Community Development Block Grant/States
Program:
Formula Grant
Community Development Block Grant/Small Cities
Program:
Revolving Loan Fund
HOME Investment Partnerships
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development

U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through Ohio Department of Education:
Board of Mental Retardation and Developmental
Disabilities:
Special Education Grant - Title VI - B

Passed through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services:
Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services Board:
Drug Free Schools and Communities

Passed through Ohio Rehabilitation Services
Commssion:

Lucas County Mental Health Board:
Rehabilitation Services Commission Title I

Lucas County Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities:

Rehabilitation Services Commission -
Pathways

Total U.8. Department of Education

14,228

14,219
14.239

B4.027

84.186

84.126

84.126

691,306

1,072,334
132,678

1,896,318

41,114

312,524

405,441

524,036

929,477

1,283,115




Lucas County, Chio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Federal Grant
Pass Through Grantor CFDA
Program Title Number_

Pass-Through

Entity
Identifying Federal
Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Justice:
Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services -
Criminal Justice Coordinating Council:

Juvenile Court:
Title V Police Probation Team 16.548
Title V Reaching Qut Project 16.548
Effective Collaborations for Timely Adoptions 16.548

Passed through Qhio Attorney General - Victim
Witness Assistance Program:

VOCA VIW 16.575

SVAA Hispanic V/IW 16.575

VOCA-X Felony Crises _ - 16.575

Passed through Ohio Office of the Governor -
Criminal Justice Coordinating Council: )
Juvenile Court: Victims of Crime Act 16.575

Safe Kids/Safe Streets 16.541

Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Passed through Criminal Justice Coordinating

Council:
Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention - Title
1L
UPRISE 16.540
Linques Suspension Intervention 16.540
Father to Son 16.540
Family Treatment Group 16.540
B.RILDG.E. 16.540
New Visions 16.540
YMCA Teen Partners 16.540
Passed through Ohio Attorney General - Vietim
Witness Assistance Program:
Notification Advocate 16.579
Victims Forum 16.579
Video Project 16.579

JV-T50-5006 4,050
JV-T50-5018 52,134
90C00870-01 9,677

65,861

107,609
68,912
41,232

34-1626339 32,715

250,468

6,872

JI-DP2-0307 22410
JJ-IN4-0284 862

1J-DP2-0286 4,594
JI-IN4-0283 1,591

JJ-DP2-0290 22,503
JJ-MO1-0308 27,143
J3-DP2-0292 31,043
110,146

26,452

81,484

15,610



Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards {continued)

Pass-Through
Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Byme Memorial Law Enforcement
Assistance:
Offender Alternative 16,579  DG-F02-7580 126,123
Project Safe Solutions 16.579  DG-F02-7632 9,294
Mountain Mentors 16.579  DG-F02-7633 25,500
Information Sharing Network 16.579 DG-B01-7634 22,477
New Beginnings 16.579 DG-F01-7620 106,856
Victims Forum 16.579 DG-B01-7623 62,364
YW Teen Support 16.579 DG-F01-7624 26,252
Suburban Courts Services 16.579  DG-D02-7576 126,101
Assertive Substance Abuse 16.579 DG-F02-7626 92,702
Notification Advocate 16.579  DG-D02-7635 16,725
FA Residential Housing 16,579  DG-F01-7577 114,492
Rubicon Docket 16.579  DG-E01-7578 112,468
LCSO Youth & Women . 16,579 DG-F01-7629 27,388
CHOICES 16.579  DG-F01-7637 32,256
Children’s Advocacy Center 16.579 DG-D02-7630 62,559
Passed through Ohio Office of the Governor:
Passed through Bureau of Prisons Lucas County
Sheriff:
LCSO Youth and Women’s Project 16.579 DG-F01-7629 16,104
1,003,207
Passed through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice
Services:
Passed through Criminal Justice Coordinating
Council:
Violence Against Women:
Integrated Investigations 16.588  WF-VA2-8837 44,112
VAW Response Team 16.588 WF-VA3-8835 75,955
Directly received:
Sheriff
Violence Against Women 16.588  83-48-981000 35,270
Passed through Ohio Attorney General -
Vietim Witness Assistance Program:
VAW Pros/VW Response 16.588 83,124
238,461
Total U.S. Depariment of Justice 1,675,015




Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

Pass-Through
Federal Grant Entity
Pass Through Grantor CFDA Identifying Federal
Prograrm Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through Ohio Department of Mental Retardation
and Development Disabilities:
Board of Mental Retardation and Developmental
Disabilities:
Social Services Block Grant (Title XX) 93.667 482,260
Passed through Ohio Department of Mental Health:
Community Mental Health Services:
Social Services Block Grant (Title XX) 93.667 ' 396,847
879,107
Community Mental Health Services Block
Grants:
Child Adolescent/CORE 93.958 ' 95,577
DAT - Child/Adult 93.958 12,500
Community Plan 93.958 160,343
Prevention 93.958 . 3,495
HAP 93.958 15,928
287,843
Passed through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services:
Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services Board:
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of
Substance Abuse:
Alcohol and Drug Abuse and MH Services 93.959 2,811,207
JOBS 93.561 28,051
Passed through Ohio Department of Human Services:
Children Services Board;
Child Welfare Service Grant - Title I'V-B 93.645 292,684
Emergency Services Assistance 93.645 120,649
413,333
Independent Living Grant T 93.674 36,386
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 4,455,927
Total Federal Awards $ 9,628,723

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.



Lucas County, Ohio
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

December 31, 1599

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of Lucas County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting,
which is described in Note A to Lucas County, Ohio’s (the County) general purpose
financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose financial
statements.

2. Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the County provided federal
awards to subrecipients as follows:

Amount
CFDA Provided to
Program Title Number Subrecipient
Social Services Block Grants (Title XX) - 93.667 $ 396,847
Community Mental Health Services Block
Grants 93.958 287,843
Rehabilitation Services Commission Title I 84.126 405,441
Title V Police Probation Team ' 16.548 4,050
Effective Collaboration for Timely
Adoptions 16.548 9,677
Title V Reaching Out Project 16.548 52,134
Violence Against Wormen 16.588 120,067
Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention -
Title I 16.540 110,146
Byme Memorial Law Enforcement
Assistance 16.579 863,557
Victims of Crime Act ' ' 16.575 32,715



Lucas County, Ohio

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (continued)

3. Loans Outstanding

The County had the following loan balances outstanding at December 31, 1999. These
loan balances outstanding are also included in the federal expenditures presented in the
schedule.

CFDA Amount
Program Title Number Outstanding
Community Development Block Grant -
Revolving Loan Fund 14.219 $ 1,072,334
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Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Chio

We have audited the financial statements of Lucas County, Ohio (the County) as of and
for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated May §,
2000. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance e

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of
noncompliance, which we have reported to management of the County in a separate letter
dated May 5, 2000. -

Internal Con ver

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the
internal control over financial reporting. Qur consideration of the intemal control over
financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition
in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have
reported to management of the County in a separate letter dated May 5, 2000.

This report 1s intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners,
management, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

May 5, 2000 65 a

Ernst & Young ILP is & member of Ernst & Young International, Lid.
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Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each
Major Program and Internal Control Over Compliance
in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Lucas County, Ohio (the County) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular 4-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 1999. The County’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying Scheduie of
Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility
of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit mcludes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the
County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 1999.

Ernst & Young LLP is a member of £rnst & Young International, Ltd.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note G - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations-(con-
tinued)

Long-term Bonds: All long-term debt issued faor
governmental purposes of the County and special
assessment bonds are retired from the Debt Service
Fund. General Obligation proprietary bonds are retired
from the related Enterprise funds. General Obligation
bonds are secured by the County’s ability fo levy a voted
or unvoied property tax within limitations of Ohio Law.
Self-supporting bonds are secured by an unvoted property
tax levy ({special assessments), however, each
appropriate bond indenture provides for principal and
interest to be paid from user charges. In the event
property owners default on their special assessment
obligations, the County is obligated to meet the debt
service requirements from County funds. At December
31, 1999, the County had $396 thousand set aside for the
retirement of this debt. These funds are included in
pooled cash and investments.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code,
the County has the capacity to issue approximately $35.5
million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Lott Industries, Inc., a discretely presented Component
unit of the County has bonds payable of $1,375 thousand
that mature on August 1, 2008, with a variable interest rate
that was 5.7% at December 31, 1999.

Library Improvement Bonds: lucas County serves
in a ministerial capacity as the taxing authority for the
Toledo-Lucas County Public Library. Ohio Revised Code
prohibits Libraries from holding bonded debt and requires
the debt to be held in the name of the subdivision to which
the Libraries board’s jurisdiction is subject. As such, the
library requested that Lucas County put a levy on the
baliot for $38.6 million in improvements fo the Toledo-
Lucas County Public Library. In November 1995, the
electorate of Lucas County approved an increase in
property taxes to pay for the issuance of $25.0 million
General Obligation Bonds for improvements fo the Toledo-

Lucas County Publi¢ Library. On December 11, 1997 the
County issued the remaining $13.6 million of General
Obligation Bonds.

Prior-year defeasance of debt: In prior years, the
County defeased certain general obligation bonds by
placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account asseis and the
liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
financial statements. On December 31, 1999, $8,165,000
of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

Capital Lease Obligations; The County entered into a
lease agreement for a portion of the Government Center.
The lease is classified as a capital lease, and the net
present vaiue of the fufure minimum jease paymenis is
recorded as a general long-term obligation. The portion of
the Government Center leased by the County has been
recorded as land and building in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group.

The County has entered into certain other agreements
o lease equipment and other assets. Such agreements
are, in substance, lease purchases (capital leases) and
are classified as capital lease obligations in the financial
statements,

Operating Leases: At December 31, 1999, the County
had 15 operating leases for office space and equipment.
Operating lease payments are recorded as expen-
ditures/expenses for the current period.

— 49 —



Lucas County, Ohio

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year ended December 31, 1999
Part I - Summary of Auditor’s Resuits

Financial Statement Section

B Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
(i) Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Reportable condition(s) identified not considered to be none
material weaknesses? yes reported
(iif) Noncompliance material to financial staternents noted? yes X _no
Federal Awards Section
(viii)  Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs: $ 300,000
(ix) Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
(v) Type of auditor’s report on compliance for major
programs? Unqualified
(iv) Internal control over compliance:
Material weakness(es) identified? ves X mno
Were reportable condition(s) identified not considered to none
be material weakness(es)? yes reported
(vi} Any audit findings disclosed that are required 1o be
reported in accordance with Circular A-133 (Section
.510(a))? yes X no
(vii) Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.228 Community Development Block Grant/States
14.219 Community Development Block Grant/Small Cities
84.126 Rehabilitation Services Vocational Rehabilitation Grants
14.239 HOME Investment Partmerships '
16.575 Crime Victim Assistance
93.959 Block Grant for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

12



None

None

Part II - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

Part III - Schedule of Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

13
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Lucas County Auditor

Suite 600 Toledo, Ohio 43604-2255

(119) 213-4340

May 10, 2000

f.ucas County Board of Commissioners
and Citizens of Lucas County,

As Auditor of Lucas County, | am pleased lo present
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 1989.

This report contains general purpose financial state-
menis, supplemental financial siatements and other
financial and statistical information which provide a com-
plete and full disclosure of all material financial aspects of
Lucas County. This CAFR conforms to generally accepted
accounting principals (GAAP) as set forth by the Govern-
mental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data pre-
sented and the completeness and fairness of the presenta-
tion, including all disclosures, lies with the management of
the County, and in particular the office of the Lucas County
Auditor, In fulfilling this responsibility, the Lucas County
Auditor's Office has prepared the accompanying financial
statements, schedules and tables. We believe this data
fairly reflects the financial position of the County and the
results of its operations.

The CAFR is presented in three (3) sections: the
introductory Section, the Financial Section and the
Statistical Section. The Infroductory Section contains a
table of contents, this letter of transmittal, a list of elected
officials, an organization chart and a copy of the Ceriificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporiing

awarded for the 1998 Lucas County CAFR. The Financial
Section contains our independent auditor's, Emst & Young
LLP, opinion letter, the general purpose financial state-
ments, and relevant supplemental financial statements and
schedules for 1989. The Sialistical Section presents
historical, financial, analytical, economic and demographic
information which may be useful for further analysis and
comparisons.

THE COUNTY

The County was formed by an Act of the Ohio Genera!
Assembly on June 20, 1835, in honor of Robert Lucas, then
Governor of Ohio. The elected three-member Board of
County Commissioners function as both the legislative and
executive branch of the County. Each Commissioner
serves a term of four years. In addition to the County Audi-
tor, who serves as chief fiscal officer, there are seven
elected administrative officials, each of whom operate
independently as set forth by Chio law. These officials are:
Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorhey,
Recorder, Sheriff, and Treasurer. All of these officials
serve four-year terms. The following judges are elected on
a counly-wide basis to oversee the County’s judicial
system: Common Pleas Court Judges, Domestic Relatlons
Court Judges, Juvenile Court Judges, Probate Court
Judge, and Court of Appeals Judges. Judges are elected
to six-year terms,



REPORTING ENTITY AND SERVICES

In conformity with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No, 14, all governmental departments,
agencies, instifutions, commissions, public authorities, and
other governmental organizations, for which the County has
significant financial accountability, are included in this
CAFR for financial reporting purposes. Financial account-
ability is determined by the County’s ability to appoint a
voling majority of the Board or financial interdependence.

The Couniy provides general govemmental services to
its citizens which include: public assistance, health assis-
tance, community related services, civil and criminal justice
systems, road and bridge maintenance, sswer and water-
line construction armd maintenance and other general legis-
lative and administrative support services. The County also
operates and maintains the water supply and wastewater
treatment systems. A further discussion of the reporting
entity and its services may be found in Note A of the Notes
to the Financial Statements.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND
OUTLOOK

The County is in the center of a trade area comprised
of 14 counties in northwestern Chio and scutheastern
Michigan with a total population of approximately 1.25
million people. The County [ies in the central portion of a
triangle formed by the cities of Chicago, Detroit and
Cleveland. The County is in the Toledo Metropolitan
Statistical Area {(MSA) and is the 62nd largest of the 284
MSAs and consolidated metropolitan statistical areas
{CMSAs) in the United States.

The County’s economy, historically associated with the
glass and automotive industries, has become increasingly
diversified. While the County remains the home of four of
the nation’s largest glass companies, DiamlerChrysler AG,
General Motors Corporation and Dana Corporation also
continue to be major private employers in the County.

The County’s unemployment rate for 1999 was 5.2%,
which is 1% higher than the statewide rate of 4.2%, and the
national rate of 4.2%.

Three of the 1999 Fortune 500 corporations have their
headquarters in the Counly. The County is also one of the
larger oil refining centers between Chicago and the eastern
seaboard with BP Qil Co. and Sun Refining and Marketing
Company, Inc.

BP Oil Co. is constructing an approximately $235
million upgrade to its Toledo area refinery, which will be
one of its two remaining refineries in the United States.

The improvements will concentrate on improving BP Qil's
ability to process heavy, sour crude oil.

DiamlerChrysler AG is proceeding with a $1.2 billion
investment {o construct a 1.1 miilion squars-foot Jeep
assembly plant on Stickney Avenue in Toledo. Construc-
tion began in 1998, Vehicles should begin rofling off the
assembly line in 2001. The project will retain nearly 5,400
jobs.

MAJOR COUNTY INITIATIVES

+ Current Year Projects

Lucas County continues to promote economic develop-
ment throughout the area. Lucas County officials and
management continue {o waork closely with state and iocal
governments, corparations, companies, smal] businesses,
labor unions and charitable organizations to improve and
expand business opportunities and the standard of living.
The following are highlights of some of the activities Lucas
County is concerned with:

+« Lucas County’s Economic Development efforts for
1999 represent an approximate investment of $216
million of private and public funds that provide for the
retention and creation of over 350 full and part-iime
Jobs in Lucas County.

+ During 1998, the County Engineer campleted or let to
construction $10.6 million in infrastructure improvement
or construction projects. The County spent $695
thousand in bridge replacement and repair projects, $3
million in major roadway improvement projects, $5
million jn minor widening and resurfacing projects,
and another $1.9 million for miscellanecus roadway
preservation and maintenance projects and drainage
projects.

» Renovation was completed on the conversion of the
former Maumee Valley Hospital into 84 senior housing
units. The Virginia Lake Apartments opened in 1999
with the official ribbon cutting to oceur in early 2000.
Still in the planning phase, 144 units will be built on
adjacent vacant land. The County in partnership with
a private developer will utilize housing tax credits and
$18 million in industrial revenue bonds to provide
affordable housing to seniors.

» The new Lucas County Criminal Justice Center, to
include an expanded juvenile detention facility is under
construction. The facility is expected to cost $23



million and will be completed in March 2001. The
County will receive a $6.5 million state grant and a
$500 thousand federal grant to assist with the con-
struction costs. The County issued $14.9 million in
notes in Aprif, 2000.

» The Cooley Canal Navigation Project and the Cooley
Canal Boat Launch Ramp were substantially completed
in 1999. Through partnerships with the US Ammy Corps
of Engineers and the State of Ohio, the $2.2 million in
safe harbor improvements will include the construction
of a new break wall to provide boaters with easier and
safer access {o Lake Erie.

» The historic Valentine theater was designated as the
official theater for Lucas County. The renovated
theater opened in 1889. The county has pledged
contributions of $1 million over the next 4 vears for the
renovation.

= Future Projects

The County will continue to provide a variety of ser-
vices required to meet the needs of its citizens and actively
suppor! economic development in the area. We look
forward o the following significant activities made possible
by the citizens of Lucas County and its government:

*+ The Board of County Commissioner's has retained a
consultant to explore options for a new stadium for the
Mud Hens, Toledo's AAA baseball feam. The consul-
tant that designed the successfu! Gateway project in
Cleveland that included Gund Arena and Jacobs Field,
was hired to help the county review funding altema-
tives and site locations. The County has secured
options for $5 million for the site for the stadium in the
warehouse district in Toledo. The County has hired an
archifeciural firm fo design the stadium and 17 private
suites have been leased for 10 years for $250 thou-
sand each.

« Consfruction of the $1.2 billion Jeep plant continues.
The county has pledged $2 million by 2002 to help the
City of Toledo acquire and improve the sife for the new
plant.

= The State of Ohio announced plans o consolidate the
Ohio Bureau of Employment Service and the Ohio
Department of Human services. This will affect the job
training system at the county level. It is expected that
Lucas Gounty along with the City of Toledo will be an
active participant in restructuring the job training
systems.

» The Gounty Engineer has established a 5 year capital
improvemnent plan that aniicipates improvements of
$58.5 million. Infrastructure improvements planned for
the next 5 years include $7.4 million for bridge improve-
ments, $42.6 million for roadway improvement, and
$8.5 million for drainage improvements.

+ Departmental Highlights

Annually, the County selects a department to highlight
for its efforts and accomplishments. In 19969, the County’s
Real Estate Assassment department of the Auditor's Office
has been selected for review.

Ohio law requires the county auditor to reappraise all
property within the county every six years and to update

“values every three years. Lucas County had its last full

reappraisal in 1994 and its last triennial update in 1897.
The new vaiues are caiculated as of January 1, 2000.

The purpose of the 2000 reappraisal is fo adjust
property values to reflect changes in the market since the
last reappraisal. Under Ohio law, the auditor must assess
all of the real estate situated in the county at its “true
value”.

Lucas County contains over 198,000 individual real
estate parcels and requires aimost three years to complete
a reappraisal. For the 2000 appraisal, the Auditor's staff
will be responsible for the valuation of ail property types.
Lucas County is one of only six Ohio Counties that employs
in-house appraisal experts to perform the revaluation.

The Auditor’s Office has been on the leading edge of
CAMA (Computer Assisted Mass Appraisal) and GIS
{Geographic Information Systems) technology. These
technologies have enahled the staff {o be more productive
and produce unprecedented levels of equity and accuracy.

Through these efforts the Auditor's office has been
recognized natichally and intermationally for our innovation
in integrating CAMA and GIS technology. The honors have
included the URISA (Urban and Regicna! Information
System Association) Exemplary Systems in Government,
the OGRIP (Ohio Geographically Referenced Information
Project) “Best Practices” Award, and the ESRI (Environ-
mental Systems Research institute) International Award for
Excellence for our public access system.

The community has bensfited from the geographic
systems developmeni. Two products that are used by
thousands of taxpayers daily are AREIS-CD, the Aud-
itor's Real-Estate Information System compact disk and
the AREIS On-line Infemet *“Virtual Assessor's Office”



on-line public information system. The office has distrib-
uted over 3,000 copies of the GIS-on-a-disk and has had
over 9 million “hits” or action directed to the Website.

Almost 40% of the Website's activity Is after regular
business hours. This has in effect extended the hours of
service fo the public. New daia never before availabie at
one location can be found on the Website. These are:
county-wide zoning, census tracts, school districts, and
aerial photographs.

Coming soon to the AREIS system are color digital
photographs of every structure in Lucas County available
on the Web site and in office.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM

The County’s day-io-day accounting records are
maintained on a basis other than GAAP. For financial
reporting purposes, the accounting recards for all Govern-
mental and Fiduciary Funds are converted to the modified
accrual basis, whereby revenues are recognized when
measurable and available within the business cycle (within
60 days after year end) and expenditures are recognized
when fhe related fund fiability is incurred. The accounting
records for the Proprietary Funds are converted to the
accrual basis, whergby revenues are recognized when
goods or services are measurable and earmed, and ex-
penses are recognized as incurred.

A further discussion of the three (3) methods of
accounting (non-GAAP, modified accrual and accrual)
and a reconciliation of non-GAAPR basis to GAAP basis of

accounting may be found in Nete B and Note N, respec-
tively, of the Notes fo the Financial Statements.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

Under Ohio law, the Lucas County Board of Commis-
sioners must adopt an appropriations budget by January
1st of a given year, or adopt a temporary appropriation
measure with final passage of a permanent budget by
April 1st. No expenditure can be made from any budget-
ary account without the Certificate of the County Auditor
certifying that funds are available or in the process of
collection. When a purchase order is issued or a contract
is entered info by any County department or agency, the

County Auditor encumbers the necessary funds to pay for
the expenditure. Contracts or purchase orders are
rejected and are invalid under Ohio law if sufficient
funds are not available to permit the County Auditor to
certify the transaction. A further discussion of the budget-
ary accounting system and its controls may be found in
Note B of the Nofes o the Financial Statements.

The Caounty Auditor issues a monthly budget report to
the Board of Commissioners and {o all departments and
agencies showing the monthly and year-to-date expendi-
tures, epcumbrances, and the cash balances, as well as
the unencumbered balance by fund and account. On a
quarterly basis, these reports are made public and are
available to the news media.

INTERNAL CONTROL.

The management of the County is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal control designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the
assets of the County are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data is
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
The design of the internal control also recognizes thaf: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to
be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federa! and state financial assistance,
the County is responsible for ensuring that adequate
internal control is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs.
This internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by
management.



GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUNCTIONS

« General Fund
ifi int
A comparative schedule of the significant financial

results of the General Fund for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 1989 and 1998 on a GAAP basis follows:

GENERAL FUND
Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Other Financing Sources {Uses)
{Amounts in 000's)
Increase\
1989 1998 {Decrease}
Actual Actual 1999-1998
Revenues:
TaXES .. vt $83,053 $77.866 $ 5,187
Charges forservices ............... 11,810 10,892 818
Licensesand permits . .............. .44 ' 47 - (3)
Finesandforfeits .. ................ _ - 872 - 572 100
Special assgssments ... ... ... ... 23 28 5)
Intergovernmental revenue .......... 16.824 17,289 {465)
Investmentincome ................. 10,809 10,569 240
Change in fair value of investments . ... (3,282) © 1,082 (4,364)
Miscellaneousrevenue ............. 7 2.948 ] 140 _2.B08
Tolal revenues .. ...cooeeeeninnn. $122,899 $118,585 $4314
Expenditures:
Generalgovernment ..........c.-0-- $ 54,332 $51,165 33,167
Publicsafety ......... ... ....... 28,653 28,932 721
Publicworks . ... il 183 168 14
Health . ..... ... ... ... vt 880 ' 1,047 (167)
Human Services . . . . oo vuie e evneenn . 1,119 1,050 68
Conservation and recreation ......... ’ 1,923 1,654 269
Miscellaneous ........... ... coon, __761 997 _{236)
Tofaf expendifures ................ $88.851 $85,014 $3.837
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of capital lease transactions . . $681 $32 $649
Operating transfersout .. ... ....... (37.166) {29.919) {7.24T)
Total ofther financing sources (uses) .. $(36,485) ${29.887) $(6.598)




The Generai Fund accounts for all financial resources
not accounted for in another fund. The major revenue
sources are sales and property taxes, charges for services,
investment eamnings, and state and local government fund
receipts. The General Fund is the operating fund of the
County.

Tax revenue increased by $5.2 million in 1999, a 6.7%
increase from 1998. This increase is atiributed to addi-
tional sales tax revenues and new property tax levies.

. Intergovermnimental revenue decraased by $465 thou-
sand, a 2.7% decrease from 1988. This was atfributed to
the timing of reimbursements from various federal, state,
and local governmental agencies.

Investment Income increased by $240 thousand, a
2.3% increase from 1998, and the net change in fair vaiue
of investmenis decreased $4.4 million, a 403% decrease
from 1998. This was a resulf of a volatile investment
market at the end to the year.

General government and public safety expenditures
increased by $3.2 million and $721 thousand, respectively
from 1899 to 1998. The 6.2% and 2.5% increases, respec-
tively, are mainly attribufed to providing more services to
the public, increasing the security at the county's court-
houses, increase in maintenance costs, including the
purchase of vehicles and equipment, purchase of Sheriff
patrol cars, increasing correctional facilities’ cost and
across the board wage increases. Tolal General fund
salary costs increased by approximately $3 8 million, a
8.5% increase from 1998.

Operating transfers (out) increased by $7.2 million in
1999, a 24.2% increase from 1998. This is attributed to a
increase in the amount of funding provided to the Capital
Improvements Fund.

+ Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds consist primarily of Public
Assistance and Child Support Enforcement Agency (human
and social service programs), Community Menta) Health,
Children Services Board, Board of Mental Retardation, 911
Emergency Telephone System {voter approved property
tax levies to support health, welfare and other community
service activities), Motor Vehicle and Gas tax (road and
bridge maintenance program) and all federal and state
grants.

In 1999, ail Special Revenue Funds, on a combined
basis, generated an excess of approximately $7.3 million in

10

revenues and other resources over expenditures and other
uses, increasing the combined fund balance from $72.6
million to $79.9 million. -

«  Debt Service Fund

The Debi Service Fund accounts for the accumuiation
of resources for, and payment of, interest and principal on
long-term debt reparted in the County’s General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. Interest and principal retire-
ment amounted to $15.9 million in 1999 and $16.0 million
in 1998.

« Capital Project Funds

Capital outfay expenditures, including interest of $155
thousand iotaled $12.7 million in 1999. Capital Project
notes of $5.2 million were outstanding at December 31,
19989.

The Capital Project Funds are used to account for
capital projects, improvements, rencvations and acquisi-
tions. The primary resources are proceeds of bonds, short-
term notes, and property taxes.

PROPRIETARY OPERATIONS

» Enterprise Funds

The Enterprise Funds provide water and sewer ser-
vices to several areas of Lucas and Wood Counties. Solid
waste disposal and parking facilifies are also operated by
the County, The Enterprise Funds include the Sanitary
Engineer, Water Supply System, Sewer System,
Wastewater Treatment, Solid Waste, and Parking Facilities.
County Enterprise Funds recorded a total increase in
retained earnings of $701 thousand during 1999,

» Internal Service Funds

The Intemnal Service Funds provide services to County
departments and charges are billed as services are used.
The Internal Service Funds operated by the County in 1999
were Central Supplies, Vehicle Maintenance, County-City
Telephone, Self-Funded Health Insurance, Self-Funded
Dental insurance, Centralized Drug Testing, Risk Relention
Insurance, and Self-Funded Workers” Compensation.
Intemal Service Funds recorded a total increase in retained
eamings of $4.1 million during 1998.



FIDUCIARY OPERATIONS

Fiduciary Funds account for assets heid by the County
in a frustee capacity, or as an agent, for individuals, private
organizations, other govemmentai units and/or other funds.
The Fiduciary Funds maintained by the County are Expend-
able Trust Funds and Agency Funds.

At December 31, 1998, assets held in Trust and
Agency Funds totaled $35.9 million. Liabilities relating to
Trust and Agency Funds amounted o $30.2 million.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION
{Amounts in 000's)

General obligation bonds -voted/ unvoted

Special assessment bonds -
governmental commitment

Total bonds . $ 71,517

General cbligation notes —— 5,820

OWDA loans - special assessment - governmental
commitment

OWDA, loans - proprietary
Tofal OWDA debt i 25407
OPWC lpans - governmental commitment
OPWC loans - proprietary
Tofal OFPWC debt
Tofal cutstanding debt
Total debt per capita

Net general bonded debt per capita (net of amount
available in debt service fund}

Ratio of net general bonded debt fo total
assessed valuation




DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Moody’s [nvestors Service rated the County’s bonds
at A2, and Fitch Investors Service rated the County's bonds
at “A”, and the County’s notes were not rated. In 1999, the
County issued $535 thousand in bonds and $5.9 million in
short-term notes.

The exhibit on the previous page summarizes the
bonds and notes outstanding, and various debt related
stafistics, as of December 31, 1993.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The County Treasurer utilizes cash management and
forecasting techniques and procedures to provide for
efficient and optimum use of the County's cash resources
as permitted by applicable State of Chio law.

Among the County’s many investments, the County
participates in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio
(STAR OHIO) Investment pool. The statewide investment
pool is administered by the Treasurer of the State of Ohio.

Certain deposits are collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust depart-
ment or agent but not in the County's name. The pool of
securities so pledged must have a current market value at
least equal to 110% of all public monies on deposit with the
depository including the amount covered by federal insur-
ance.

Cash resources of all funds with the exception of
Water, Sewer, and certain Fiduciary Funds are pooled for
investment purposes. Currently, inferest income derived
from these pooled resources is credited to the County’s
General Fund with the exception of the equitable share
distributed fo the Self-Funded Health Insurance fund and
the Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax fund.

INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS
(Amounts in 000's)

Investments and Earnings 1999 1998
Total investments and

Deposits at year-end: $ 225,510 $ 194,120
Interest revenue: 10,809 10,569

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County Risk Manager monitors and directs the
entire insurance program of Lucas County. The County is
self-insured for a portion of its general business insurance
and insurance coverage after $500 thousand per occur-
rence.

The County participates in the State of Ohio Retro-
spective Rated Workers’ Compensation program with a
maximum [iability of $300 thousand per accident.

Both programs, along with the seif-funded health
program for dental benefits, provide savings with proper
risk management and loss control.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Included in this report on page 18 is an unqualified
audit opinion rendered by Ernst & Young LLP with respect
to the general purpose financial statements for the fund
types and the account groups of the County as of and for
the tax year ended December 31, 1999. As part of the
annual preparation of a CAFR, the County subjects all the
financial statements to an annual independent audit. This
annual audit arrangement serves to strengthen the Coun-
ty’s accounting, budgetary and internal control of financial
and operaticnal systems.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR
EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The County prepared its first CAFR in 1984 in accor-
dance with the program guidelines for the Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (Certifi-
cate) awarded by the Government Finance Officers Associ-
ation of the United States and Canada (GFQA). Each
annual report must also satisfy generally accepted account-
ing principles and disclose applicable legal compliance
requirements. The County was awarded the Certificate for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 1984 - 1998.

The Certificate is valid for a period of one year. We
believe that our current report continues to conform to the
guidelines and requirements of the program and will ba
submitted to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another Certificate.

— 12 —
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Lucas County,
Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 1998

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Governmment Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports {CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in_government accounting
and financial reporting.

C*!C-nj, ;Bauu&
Sy

Executive Director
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The Valentine Theatre, built by George Ketcham, opened on
December 25, 1895. The theatre, designed by Toledo architect
E. O. Fallis, boasted the largest stage batween New York and
Chicago and one of the first cantilevered theatre balconies in
the United States. All of the great artists of the late nineteenth
and early hwentieth century performed here.

Loew's Theatres completed a major renovation in 1842 and
operations continued until 1976. In 1982, a dedicated group of
community leaders in search of an affordable

17

performance venue for local artists, saved the Valentine from
the threat of the wrecking ball.

The renovation compieted in 1999 had a total cost of $28
million, $18.5 million of which came from the State of Ohio. The
remainder was generously contributed by the City of Toledo,
Lucas County, the corporate community, national & local
foundations, and thousands of individual donors. Lucas County
has pledged contributions of $1 million over the next 4 years for
the renovations.



Elf FRNST & YOUNG N Erost & Young up @ Phone: (419) 244-8000

One SeaCate Fax: (419} 244-4440
Toledo, Ohio 43604 WWAWLEY.COM

Report of Independent Auditors

Lucas County Board of Commissioners
Toledo, Ohio

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Lucas County, Ohio as of and for
the year ended December 31, 1999, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These
general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our
audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component units.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented
component units, is based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards (1994
Revision), issued by the Compirolier General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the discretely
presented component units were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
An audit includes examining, on a test basts, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial
statements referred to above present fairty, in all material respects, the financial position of Lucas
County, Ohio, as of December 31, 1999, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its
proprietary funds and discretely presented component unit for the year then ended in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note T to the accompanying general purpose financial statements, during 1999,
the County changed its method of reporting to include Lott Industries, Inc. as a discretely
presented component unit as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity”.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 5,
2000 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Ernst & Young LLP is a member of Ernst & Young International, Ltd.
— 18 —



==‘." ERNS T& YOUNG & Ernst & Young LLP

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements of the County, taken as a whole. The combining, individual fund and individual
account group financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general
purpose financial statements of the County. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion,
based on our audit and the report of other auditors, is fairly presented in all material respects in
relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the statistical tables and schedules as listed in the table of contents and therefore
express no opinion thereon.

énmat ¥ MLLP
May 5, 2000

- 19 —
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Combined Chart of All Governmental Funds
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

General
Fund

Special Debt

Revenue Service

Capital
Projects

Assets and other debits:
Pooled cash and cash
equivalents (Note €)oo, $2,662
Pooled investments (Note Cl.......cvmeeemveccniccenee 13,680
Segregated cash accounts (Note C).........ccoeciemes -
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables)

ACCOURS.......vvovvvsorvoo ,..,...'.'.',.......,,m,.,m, , 687,

Special assessments errennes et 2

Accrued interest.... ertreesan et ese e e 2,050

Loans... ! _
Due from other funds (Note D). S e
Due from other governments..........ccceecerrerocmraress _A88
Inventory: materials and supplies.... S -
Property, plant and eqmpment (Note E)

Land... JRPVUT ey -

Land |mprovemems ................................... -

Buildings, structures and

improvements.... [ -
Fumiture, fictures and eqmpment S -
Less: accumulated depreciation.........cc.coenvervarens -
Construction-in-progress (Note E) ....................... -
Prepaid eXpenses............c..vinssessscssr crrerrrmnsrner ) .-
Amount available in debt service fund.................. -
Amount to be provided for retirement of

general long-term obligations..........c..c..ec... . -

$12,362 829
73,794 4,548

63,815 -
541
1,072 -

5,285 86
3N -

Total assels and other debils.................... $44 344

$157,2560 $24 366

$38,243

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPES __FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS Discretely
General General 1999 Totals Presented
Internal Trust and Fixed Long Term (Memorandum Component

Enterprise Service Agency Assets  Obligations Cnly} Units
$841 $4,325 $23,664 $- $- $49,253 $844
5,012 25,811 5117 - - 155,650 8672

- - 7,135 - - 7.135 -

- - - - - 94,492 -
3,791 10 - - - 5,029 1,472

- - - - - 18,505 -

- - - - - 2,050 -

- - - - - 1,072 -

- 466 - - - 468 -

221 - - - - 8,573 -
34 83 - - - 468 284
402 83 - 14,840 - 15,425 698

88,713 - - - - 88,713 -
23,287 30 - 124,197 - 147 514 7,761
12,577 1,203 - 24,970 - 38,750 3,497

{50,261) {1,044} - - - (51,305) (3,262)

638 - - 3,874 - 4,510 -
- - - - - 0 86

- - - - 5,886 5,086 -

- - - . - 7 110,135 7 110,135 -
$95 253 $30,847 $35,916 $167,981 $118,121 $710,421 $20,052

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED

COMPONENT UNITS~{continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

General Special Debt Capital
Fund Revenue Service Projects

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable............ $1,276 - $8,613 $- $1,432
Accrued wages and benefits............coeeeievceccenns 3,757 5573 - -
Due to other funds (Note D).......cceceeceencenne oo 88 - 44 - -
Due to other Governments..........ovceeearoerereceeons 1,901 ' 826 - -
Claims payable - current (Note S)......... - - - 7
Deferred revenue (Note J)......ocoeeeamecrennn. 12,958 62,334 18,360 5,780
Matured bonds payable........cccoceeeevincenvvsrrrneee - - 10 -
Matured interest payable..........cocccocvcvcminnnnn - - 10 -
Accrued interest payable........c.cooeeiieiennee ) - - - -
Unapportioned monies.......c..c.oeevevveecrran - - - -
Deposits.... - - - -
Payroll wﬂhholdmgs o - - - -
MNotes payable (Note F) — - - - ,820
Bonds payable {(Note G) S— - - - -
OWDA loans payable (Note G) ST - - - -
OPWC (oans payable (Note G)......ccovececiiineecne - - - -
Cther long term obligations.... earrenrnen - - - -
Claims payable-noncurrent (Note S) - - - - -
Landfill obligation-noncurrent (Note Q) - - - -
Obligaticns under capital leases (Note G) - - - -

Total Habiflities.........-..uoeermeeeeeeaeammaemearmence 19,980 77,390 18,380 13,132
Equity and other credits:
Contributed capital (Note M) raeeaee - - - -
Investments in general fixed assets..........c.ccoeeeeee - - - -
Retained earnings; unreserved.........ccoereeeeererees - - - -
Fund balances

Reserved-

Reserved for encumbrances.........cccceveine 1,615 16,872 - 10,096

Reserved for inventory......coeee..oo. — - 371 - -

Reserved for loans receivable..........ccoepusa- - 1,072 - -

Unreserved-

Designated for debt service.............cceeeeee.ee - - 5,086 -

Designated for charity..........coeccoemrceennane - 119 - -

Undesignated.........co.ooooe e eeenecnn 22.749 61,426 - 15,015

Total equity and

Other Cradits. ... vevcreeeeceveceecaee 24,364 79,860 5.086 25111
Total liabilities, equity,
and other credits.........ccoeveeee.n 544,344 $157.250 $24,366 $38,243

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPES FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS L Discretely
General General 1999 Totals Presented
Internal Trust and Fixed Long Term {Memorandum Gomponent
Enterprise Service Agency Assets Obligations Only) Units
$201 $983 $258 - $- §12,783 $878
578 161 2 - 15,332 25,403 213
3 331 - - - 466 -
13 - - - - 2,740 -
- 3,453 - - . - 3,453 -
- - - - - 88,432 86
30 - - - - 40 -
4 - - - - 14 -
1 - - - - o -

- - 21,258 - - 21,258 -

- - 7,282 - - - 7,282 -

- - 1,402 - - 1,402 -

- - - - - - 5,020 15

- - - - 71,517 71,517 1,375
22,145 - - - 3,262 25407 .

as1 - - - - 1,257 1,638 -

- - - - . - 0 1,792

- 3,364 - - - 3,384 -

- - - - 12,405 12,405 -

- 32 ] - - 12,348 12,380 -
23,355 8,324 30,202 - 118,121 306,885 4,329
68,793 - - - - 68,793 -

- - - 167,981 - 167,981 -

3,104 22623 - - - - 25727 1,145

- - - - - 28,583 -

- - - - - - 371 -

- - - - R - 1,072 -

- - - - - 5,985 -

- - - - - 119 -

- - 5714 - - 104,504 14,578
71,897 22,623 5714 167,881 - 403,536 15,723

$95,253 $30,947 $35,.818 $167,981 5116121 $710.421 $20,062




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES, EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS,
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{Amounts in 000's)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
General Special Debt Capital
Fund Revenue Service Projects
Revenues:
Taxes (Note J)........ceccees $83,053 563,144 $5,321 $5,706
Charges for services........... 11,810 10,831 - -
Licenses and pPemnmits...........ccvr e meecemmemseesonsmsonee 44 - - -
Fines and forfeits. ........c.cvvveeeeececees . 672 _ 136 - -
Special assessSMents............covecevmrinrrmecrremrmees 23 - 1,793 308
Intergovemmental revenue (Note K)......cocco e 16,824 136,554 - -
Investmentincome............. 10,809 - - -
Net change in fair value of investments.............. (3,282) - - -
Miscellaneous revenue................cuweeceneeersmmns 2946 12,537 1,493 1,836
TOlal F@VENUES...........ccosvvsreieeeeeerercenssereeeroran - 122,899 223,202 8,607 7,848
Expenditures:
Current:
General governmenit-
Legislative and executive...........ccrecrreverecmenes 21,028 11,338 - -
Judicial........... _ ..33304 13,623 - -
Public safety.........ccoccn. ) 29,653 16,851 - -
PUDlic WOTKS. ... cmive e e eessreseasmrerme s 183 16,970 - -
Health........... . - 880 80,287 - -
HUMaN SeIVICES........occorer e ceecereeeercessesnssresencranns 1,119 81,156 - -
Conservation and recreation.............ecerecrrrreeees . 1,823 4,208 - ~
Miscellaneous 761 3,673 28 -
Capital OUHAY .......cccv et ssreererrerarsee o e srrne - - - 12,562
Debt service-
Principal retirement..._.._........ccccocommereireeees - - 10,342 -
Interest and fiscal Charges.......c.covoevrvreereecenes - = - 5,563 155
Tofal expenditures. ... eeeeeeeevvrcoreereeereees 88,851 228,106 15,0863 12,717
Excess of revenues over (under)
axpendittires. .....c.cccen... 34,048 {(4,904) (7,358) (4,769)
Cther financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of capital lease transactions............... 681 - - -
Proceeds of BONS..........c.cocervecenrarvsresreasessmncerrme - - - 535
Operating transfers in (Note O)...........comirmeee .- 12,580 6,855 18,108
Opetrating transfers (out) (Note O)....covveeervervnes _ (37,168) (378) (165) (584)
Total other financing sources (Uses)............. {36 485) 12,202 6,680 18,060
Excess of revenues and other
financing sotirces over {under) ex-
penditures and other uses (Note Nj.............. (2,437) 7,298 (6686) 13,291
Fund balance at
beginning of year (Note T)........cccremmrersrereenees — - 28801 72 5682 8,652 11,820
Fund balance atend of year..............cceoereeveeee - $24,3684 $79,860 $5,086 $25,111

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FIDUICARY FUND
TYPES

Expendable 1999 Totals
Trust {Memorandum
Funds Only)

Discretely
Presented
Component
Units

$- $157,224
» 22,641
. 44
- 808
- 2,122
- 153,378
- 10,809
- (3,282)
3,198 22,110

$-
5944

2,544

1,709

3,188 365,854

- 32,366
- 46,927
- 46,504
- 17,153
- 81,187
- 82,275
- 6,131
2,855 7,317
- 12,562

- 10,342
- 5,748

10,187

10,637

2,855 348,492

10,637

343 17,362

- 681
- 535
- 37,544
- (38,293)

(440)

0 467

343 17,829

5,371 123,208

(440)

15,018

$5,714 $141,035

514,578

—_ 27 -



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES - (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
= $78,369 $81,849 $3,580
Charges for Semnvices......vmmmecerareans o 10,886 12,029 1,043
Licenses and permits..........ccooereeeementeer e eree s e cer e - 54 44 (10)
Special assessMents........ccccvcrveveninne . 31 23 (8)
Fines and forfeits..........cooorioieiriic e ecimnnnn 521 558 37
Intergovernmental reVenUe..........coocoimiirciscrisssn s cors anannane 16,684 18,136 1,442
Investment INCOMEe............cree e 7,800 10,007 2,207
Miscellaneous revenuUe... ... eieriieninisines st sensanr 1,450 2,505 1,085
TOtal BVBIILIBS. ......cvovvvieereieeiess v escemrmrs s mremsmemarmemmrremn 115,805 125,251 8,346
Expenditures:
Current:
General government-
Legislative and executiVe.........cuuvoevcrn cnssmsmns ssmmssmnmnn 25,348 23,157 2,191
JUAICIAL ... e e s e 35,057 34,019 1,038
Public safety.......c.oiniiinii s e 30,257 29,785 472
PUBbC WOTKS. ..o e 355 238 117
[ =T 1 o 1,244 885 359
HUmMan Servites......c.ooiviiciir v s e . 1,067 1,051 16
Conservation and recreation..........c.ccecerevcevervcerrrnreree 2,032 2,005 27
MISCEINBOUS. ..ot es e mrasse e ase e s ses 1,068 a3 138
Capital QUHAY......coviiieiriirrir i r e e e e - - - 0]
Debt service-
Principal retirement. ... e e emr s - - 0
Interest and fiscal charges...........ooee i - - 0
Total @XPendilras........cccoouvvveersvesvriessvssessvivsivssnseere - - 96 429 82,071 4,358
Excess of revenuses over (under) expendifures........ 19,476 33,180 13,704
Other financing scurces (uses);
Proceeds of NOES.......coeeviimininn s es s saan - - 0.
Proceeds of bonds........coomioie e s emenecina - - 0
Operating transfers in...........ccccvcimeenienesees e em s, - - 0
Operating transfers (CUL)...........ccemv e e (36,274) (35,324) 950
Total other financing soUCes (LUSES)......cccrvevwerusmeene (36,274) (35,324) 950
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other uses (Note N) (18,798) (2,144) 14,654
Fund balance at beginning of year...........cocemrearnrerecrnms 14,088 14,088 ¢]
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...........ccccevinne 2,885 2,885 0
Fund balance atend of Year.........covvceevcverccecvecnnees e $175 $14,829 $14,654

General Fund

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Special Revenue

Debt Service

Variance:
Revised Favorable

Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
$61,343 $63,005 $1,662
9,904 10,804 200

- - 1]

- - 0]
147 132 {15}
127,693 137,201 8,208
- - 0
24,104 12,214 {11,850)
223,491 223,356 (135)

12,425 10,374 2,051
18,000 16,194 2,806
26,087 19,547 6,540
23,242 20,260 2,982
95,718 92,651 3,065
86,018 81,792 4226
4,492 4207 285
3,715 3573 42

- - 0]

- - 0

- - D
270,695 248 698 21,987
(47,204) (25,342) 21,862
- - 0]

- - 0
12,474 12,580 106
{(4,733) (102) 4631
7,741 12,478 4737
(39,463) (12,864) 26,599
58,193 58,193 0
18,457 18,457 0
$37,187 $683,788 $26,599

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _{Unfavorable)
$4,968 $5,321 353
- - 0
- - 0
- 1,713 1,713
- - )
- - 0
- - o]
1,483 1,441 (42}
6,451 8,475 2,024
- - 4]
- - 0
- - 0
- - 0
- - 0
- - 0
- - 0
72 28 44
- - 0
8,783 8,782 7
- 4781 4,781 Q
13,642 13,581 51
(7,191) (5,1186) 2,075
- - 0
- - -0
5,487 4,487 (1,000)
(474) (168) 308
_ 5013 4,321 {692)
(2,178} (795) 1,383
8,571 6,571 0
- - 0
$4,393 $5776 $1,383

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
{(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES - (continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Capital Projects
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
T BXEB v veraeussmiasinsasersanessesesses snssnses omess e smssms cessmasmmimnssintn — o $6,496 $5,698 ($798)
Charges for SeIVICEeS.........viiciinisiss s erss s s ms - - -0
Licenses and permits... ..o eceeecevvnrnirnnen - - - 0
Special as5essmMentS.. ... - - 306 306
Fines and forfeifs........cccoovreiri e - - . - ¢
Intergovernmental revenue.. ..o eniniensiie s - - 0
Investment iNCOMA........c..cvvmevininre e see e e naen - E— - 0]
Miscellaneous revenue....... e tereieresinaeYsebSEan et eebaorers 28,504 1.808 (26,506)
Tolal reVeNUBS. .....ccccaeeeeeeeeeesenrecrirnssasmeas emsanna e 35,000 8,002 (26,988)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government-
Legislative and executive............c.cceoecemceconmenca mnnnn = - - 0]
Judicial...... - - 0
Public safety.......c..cocoieimisvinnes s e s s emannane - - 0
PUBIC WOTKS....cot e mmssmmemsmemmmoin — - — - - 0
Health. ... e e - - 0
HUMAN SIVICES.... oo e cemcir s encr s mne s smms msntnn - - 0
Conservation and recreation............ccccoceceeviviinnrencee. - - 0
Miscellanecus...... - - - -0
Capital oUHAY.....c.u.voivrerieiiri it ras e e sias s s 37,529 23,482 14,047
Debt service-
Principal retirement.........ccccaeereree e sreire s --4310 4,310 0
interest and fiscal charges........cco v cevevccecccncinnan. - 156 156 0
Total @XDONAIUIGS. .....oeeeeeeeveeeesear s es s samscasaamms 41,995 27,948 14,047
Excess of revenues over (under} expenditures........ ~ (6,995) (19,948) {12,851}
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of NOtes.......cocce e e - 5,822 5,622
Proceeds of bonds.......coceeeeverevsiimnnscerssne s ercra ves s s - 535 535
Operating fransfers iN..........ccoovcreeeecccncsvianin . - 18,109 18,109
Qperating transfers {OUt)..........cociiicimn e {2,511} - 2,511
Total other financing SoUICEs (LISBS).........ccecvcvvvrvarens (2511) 24 566 27,077
Exceass of revenues and other financing sourcaes
over {under) expenditures and other uses (Note N) (9,508) 4,620 14,126
Fund balance at beginning of year.........cccccoeevivenrieerieee. 9,391 9,391 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......................... - 8,750 6,750 [}
Fund balance atend ofyear...........ooiicrre $6.8635 £20,761 $14,126

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

— 30 —



Totals (Memorandum Only)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$151,176 $155,873 54,797
20,880 22833 1,843
54 44 {10}
31 2,042 2,011
668 630 22
144,887 155,337 10,650
7,800 10,007 2,207
55,541 18,158 (37,383)
380,847 365,084 (16,763}
37,773 33,531 4,242
54,057 50,213 3,844
58,344 49,332 7,012
23,597 20,458 3,089
85,960 83,536 . 3424
87,085 82,843 4242
6,524 6,212 312
4,858 4,632 224
37,529 23,482 14,047
13,069 13,082 7
4,937 4,937 0
422 761 382,308 40,453
{(41,914) (17,224) 24 690
0 5,022 5022
0 535 535
17,081 351786 17,215
(43,892} (35582) 8,400
(26,031) 8,041 32072
(67,945) {11,183) 58,762
88,243 88243 0
28,092 28092 0
$48,300 31 05,15_2_ $56i762
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIC
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Discretely
1999 Totals Presented
Internal {(Memorandum Component
Enterprise Service ) Only) Unit
Operating revenues:
Charges for Semvites........coveeiecrevrereerssrnesneneens $6,805 $25,006 $35,601 $513
Miscellaneous.. ... 2 487 210 2677 ) 1,319
Total operating revenuas........eweecceererersces 12,372 26,208 38,578 1,832
Operating expenses:
Personal SEIVICES... ...-crreee e eorr crmor oo — 3,880 1,237 5,097 572
Contract services.........ccoeree. . 2467 2,360 4,827 1,282
Materials and supplies.......c..cccoreeererecercre — 680 1,151 1,831 -
Heat, light and power..............ccccvimminminnins 854 - 864 -
Deprediation........ei e e e srreerrrreer e 3434 128 3,562 38
CIBIMS......cciiiisiniivsctivivnssricrscrnrsersessresimssssssssnenns - 1,841 1,941 -
Change in provision for worker's
compensation claims..........c.ocoeeserrrerrrrmrnn - - (2,548) (2,548) -
Employee medical benefits...........ccccvmiircsrs - 18,086 18,056 -
Total operating expenses.............c.covvevnrinens 11,305 22 365 33,670 1,892
Operating income (JOSS)....reeveriecseirean 1,067 3,841 4,908 (60)
Nonoperafing revenues (expenses):
Interest income........cccco e recrrrr e s - 286 286 58
Interest and fiscal charges.........coovveeermrreecenenens (1,437) 2) (1,439) -
Gain on disposal of fixed assets...........c.cccceee. ~ - ¢] 2
Total nonoperating revenues
(OXDOIISOS)....coovoesessvsivsssssssssrsrsssessssmsreeemrmmmenne {1,437} 284 {1,153) 60
Income (loss) before operating
HANISTOIS. ...t eeicscearisssssesessessinsinearee - (370) 4125 3,755 )]
Operating transfers in (Note O)....orccniivcrnninane 772 - 772 -
Operating transfers (out) (Note O).......c.occorerneen {23) - (23) -
NBLINCOMIB.....eeeeecceevve e e varer s vs e s cn e e s e reerens 37g 4,125 4,504 0
Depreciation on fixed assets acqutred by
federal capital grants.... crrvannns 322 - 322 -
Increase in retained earmings........ccccuuveue. 701 4125 4,826 0
Retained earnings at begmnmg
of year.... N S — - - 2403 18,498 20,901 1,145
Retained earnings atend of year..................... $3,104 $22623 $25 727 $1.145

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers.............cccoeveeeen
Cash paid to sUpplers......c....ccoovviceresrerecrroerens
Cash paid to employees........cccvecvvrvereercncececens
Net cash provided by (used m)
operating activities...

Cash flows from noncapital
financing activities:
Operating transfers in... S
Operating transfers (out)
Net cash provided by noncapltal
financing activities...
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Principal payments - bonds... ST
Principal payments - loans...
Proceeds from disposal of ﬁxed assets ...........
Purchase of fixed assets...
Interest paid.... S
Proceeds of caprtal iease transactlon
Principal payments - capital lease...........c........
Net cash used in capital and related

financing activiies.........co.vv oo e ereer e -

Cash flows from investing activities:
Decrease in-deferred revenue.............oovveeeeeeeeees
Proceeds from sale of investments........cccorc e
Payments for investments.............cccoeveervreceveene
[nterest received...
MNet cash pm\nded by (used |n)

investing activities..............

Net decrease in cash... S
Cash and cash equnfalenh; January 1 ................
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31.........

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

Discretely
1999 Totals Presented
Internal {(Memorandum Component
Enterprise Service Oniy) Unit
$11,963 $26,249 $38,212 $1,853
(4,100) (22,107) (26,207) {1,588)
(3,883) {1,228) (5,112} o (e41)
3,880 2913 6,893 (378)
772 - 772 . -
(23) - {23) -
749 0 749 o
(159) - (155) -
(1.182) - (1,192) -
.- - o 4]
(793) (45) (838) (45)
(1,437} (2) (1,438} -
- 34 34 -
{14 - {10} -
(3,587) (13) (3,600) (39)
- - - (11)
3122 20,840 23,962 278
{4,313) (24,797) (29,110) -
- = . 286 286 58
(1,191) (3.671) (4,862) 325
{48) 771) {820) (90}
8840 5,095 5,886 98
3841 $4,325 $5166 58
continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHiIiO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-(continued)
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
by (Used in) Operating Activities

Discretely
1999 Totals Presented
Internal {Memorandum Component
Enterprise Service ] Only) Unit
Operating INcome ([088).....cocri v . $1.067 $3,841 $4,908 ($60)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation expense... 3,434 128 3,562 | 38
Change in provision for worker‘s
compensation Claims...........ccccevreivicnrcncrce e - (2,548} (2,548) -
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable..........cccoereee e e cerenres {413) 18 (395) 21
Due from other governments ; 4 - 4 -
Due from other funds... S - 24 24 -
Inventory. materials and suppltes (10) {14) (24) (35)
Prepaid expenses... wmrane N - - - (14)
Increase (decrease) in operating liablllhes
Accounts payable.... ererrrie e anrnanen (87) 1,456 1,369 (257)
Accrued wages and benef | :< TR e {23) 8 (15) (69)
Due to other governments............ccccconiimienes . 13 “ 13 -
Duetootherfunds............ccooiieiviiiiiinir e (5) - {5} -
Total adjustments............coocoecceimnrcrnmreravesens 2,913 (928) 1,985 (316)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities.........cicviicnei s e amanen L $3,880 $2913 $6.883 ($376)

Noncash capital and related financing activities:

Enterprise funds received approximately $2.8 million of contributed fixed assets, (approximately $1.5 million
to the Water Supply System, and $1.3 million to the Sewer System.)

Central Supplies fund had a capital lease obligation remaining of $32 thousand.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation

The County: Lucas County is a political subdivision of
the State of Chio. The County was formed by an act of
the Ohio General Assembly in 1835. The three member
Board of County Commissioners is the legislative and
executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the
chief fiscal officer. In addition, there are seven other
elected administrative officials, each of whom are
independent as set forth by Ohio law. Thess officials are:
Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecutor,
Recorder, Sheriff, and Treasurer. There are also ten
Common Pleas Court Judges, two Domestic Relations
Court Judges, fwo Juvenile Court Judges, one Probate
Court Judge and five Court of Appeals Judges elected
on a County-wide basis to oversee the County’s judicial
system.

As defined by generally accepted accounting principles
established by the Government Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), the financial reporting entity consists of the
primary govemment, as well as its component units, which
are legally separate organizations which the elected
officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. Financial accountability is defined as
appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's
board, and either (a) the ability to impose will by the
primary government, or (b) the possibility that the
component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose
a financial burden on the primary government.

The accompanying financial statements present the
County {Primary Government) and its component units.
The financial data of the component units are included in
the County’s reporting entity because of the significance
of their operational or financial relationships with the
County.

A discretely presented component unit is an entity that
is legally separate from the County but for which the
County is financially accountable, or its relationship with
the County is such that exciusion would cause the
County’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.

The discretely presented component unit column in the
combined financial statements include the County's
component units. They are reported in a separate column
to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
county. A brief description of each component unit, and
its relationships to the County follows:

Toledo Mud Hens Baseball Club, Inc. is organized to
own, manage, and operate a professiona) baseball club.
The board of this component unit is appeinted by the
Board of County Commissioners. The County receives
rent from the Mud Hens that is substantially below market
rate, which imposes a financial burden on the County.
For report purposes, the Mud Hens are a proprietary
component unit. Complete financia! statements of the
component unit can be obtained from its administrative
office at 2001 Key Street, Maumee, Ohio 43537.

Lott Industries, Inc., is a nonprofit organization affiliated
with the Lucas County Board of Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities (LCBMR/DD), a special
revenue fund of the County. It provides employment for
individuals with mental retardation and developmental
disabilities by obtaining work competitively from the private
and public sectors. A majority of the board of the
component unit is appointed by the LCBMR/DD. The
LCBMR/DD pay the salaries of the administrative staff,
which imposes a financial burden on the County, and the
component unit exists solely to provide service fo the
LCBMR/DD. For report purposes, Lott Industries, Inc. is
a governmental component unit. Complete financial
statements of the component unit can be obtained from its
administrative office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio
43620.

Preferred Properties, Inc. and Affiliates is a not-for-profit
corporation organized to provide affordable and
accessible housing to persons with disabilities. The board
of the component unit is appointed by the LCBMR/DD.
Funds for the purchase of housing are received from the
LCBMR/DD which come from board funds and pass
through of funds from Community Assistance Projecis
administered by the Ohio Depariment of Mental
Retardation and Develocpmental Disabilities. This



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note A - Description of Lucas Couniy and Basfs of
Presentation-(continued)

imposes a financial burden on the County. For report
purposes, Preferred Properties, Inc. is a governmental
component unit. Complete financial statements of the
component unit can be obtained from its administrative
office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio 43620.

Community Living Options, Inc. is a non-profit corporation
that provides residential assistance and support services
to individuals with mental retardation and developmental
disabilities. The board of the component unit is appointed
by the LCBMR/DD. The component unit receives the
majority of its funding from the State of Ohio, passed
through the LCBMR/DD. The LCBMR/DD has agreed fo
fund any losses of the component unit which imposes a
financial burden on the County. For report purposes,
Community Living Options, Inc. is a governmental
component unit. Complete financial statement of the
component unit can be obtained from its administrative
office at 2001 Collingwood, Toledo, Ohio 43620.

[n determining its reporting entity and component units,
the County considered all potential component units,
including the Lucas County Board of Health, Metropolitan
Park District, Lucas County Soil and Water Conservation
District, Lucas County Port Authority, Lucas County
Improvement Corporation, Toledo Zoological Society,
Toledo Area Sanitary District, Toledo Lucas County Public
Library, Lucas County Board of Education and Toledo-
Lucas County Convention and Visitors Bureau and
concluded that such were neither component units nor
related organizations of the County and that it would not
be misleading to exclude their activities from the County’s
reporting entity,

Basis of Presentation: The accounts of the County are
organized on the basis of funds or account groups, each
of which are considered separate accounting entities. The
accounting of the operations of each fund is maintained by
a set of self-balancing accounts that comprise the assets,
liabilities, fund equity, revenues, expenditures/expenses
and statement of cash flows as appropriate. The various
funds are summarized by type in the general purpose
financial statements.

Total columns on the Combined Statements are
captioned “Memorandum Only” to indicate they are
presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in
these columns do not present financial position, results of
operations or cash flows in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles, nor are such data
comparable to a consolidation,

The County uses the following fund types and account
groups:

Governmental Fund Types

« General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating
revenues and expenditures of the County not recorded
elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use
taxes, property taxes, state and local government fund
receipts, investment eamings and charges for services.

« Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for
specific governmental revenues (other than major capital
projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or
regulatory provisions or administrative action. These funds
include: Public Assistance, the Beard of Mental Retardation
and the Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax funds, which are major
funds of the County.

= Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service fund is used to account
for ravenues received and used to pay principal and interast
on debt reported in the County’s general long-term abligations
account group.

« Capital Projects Funds: These funds are used to account for
the acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues
and financing sources are derived from the issuance of debt
or receipts from the General Fund and Special-Revenue
funds.

Proprietary Fund Types:

« Enterprise Funds; These funds are used o account for
operations that provide services which are financed primarily
by user charges, or activities where periodic measurement of
income Is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management conirol or other purposes.

» Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for
the goods or services provided by certain County depart-
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note A - Description of Lucas County and Basis of
Presentation-(continued)

ments to other County funds, departments and other
governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Types:

« Trust and Agency Funds; These funds are used to account
for and maintain assets held by the County in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governmental units and other funds. These assets
include: property and other taxes, as well as other inter-
governmental resources which have been collected and
which will be distributed fo other taxing districts located in
Lucas County.

Account Groups:

+ General Fixed Assets Account Group: This account group is
used to present the general fixed assets of the County utilized
in its general operations, exclusive of those used in
Enterprise and Internal Service funds. General fixed assets
of Lucas County include land, buildings, sfructures and
improvements, _furniture, fixtures and equipment, assets
acquired by capital leases and construction in progress.

= General Long-Term Cbligations Account Group: This account
group is used to account for all long-term obligations of the
County.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County
are prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for local government units
as prescribed in statements and interpretations issued by
the GASB and other recognized authoritative sources,
The County has elected not to apply FASB Statements
and interpretations issued after November 30, 1889, to its
proprietary activities.

Measurement Focus: Governmential and Expendabie
Trust Funds are accounted for an a spending, or “financial
flow,” measurement focus. Governmental and
Expendable Trust Fund operating statements represent
increases and decreases in net current assefs. Their
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reported fund balance is considered a measure of
available spendable resources.

Proprietaty Fund Types are used to account for the
County’s ongoing organizations and activities which are
similar to the private sector. Proprietary Fund Types are
accounied for on a cost of services, or “capital
maintenance,” measurement focus. Proprietary Fund

Type inccme statements represent increases and

decreases in net total assets.

Basis of Accounting: All financial transactions for
Governmental and Fiduciary Funds are reported on the
modified accrual basis of accounfing. Under this ac-
counting method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available to finance County operations.
Revenues accrued at the end of the year consist of
reimbursements from other governments for grant
expenditures, amounts receivable from charges for
services, licenses and permits, fines, special assessments
and property taxes. Govemmental Fund expenditures are
accrued when the related fund liability is incurred, except
interest on long-term debt, which is recorded when due.
Proprietary Fund financial transactions are recorded on
the accrual basis of accounting; revenues are recognized
when earned and measurable; expenses are recognized
as incurred.

Budgetary Accounting and Control: Under Ohio law,
the Board of County Commissioners must adopt an
approprtiations budget by January 1st of a given year, or
adopt a temporary appropriation measure with final
passage of a perrnanent budget by April 1st, for all funds
except Agency Funds. Budgets are legally required for
each organizational unit by object (personal services,
materials and supplies, charges for services, and capital
outlays and equipment).

Each County department prepares a budget which is
approved by the Board of County Commissioners.
Modifications to the original budget within expendiiure
objects can be made by the budget manager in the
Auditor’s Office. The County maintains budgetary control




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{continued)

within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting
expenditures and encumbrances to exceed appropriations
at the object level (the legal level of control).
Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at
year-end. Encumbered and unpaid appropriations
(reserved for encumbrances) are carried forward to the
next year as authority for expenditures.

The County’s budgetary process accounts for certain
transactions on a basis other than GAAP. The major
difference between the budget basis and the GAAP basis
are.

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash
{budget) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when encumbered, or
paid in cash (budget}, as opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP).

The actual results of operations, compared to the final
appropriation, which include amendments to the original
appropriation, for each fund type by expenditure function
and revenue source are presented in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual (non-GAAF Budgetary
Basis)- All Governmental Fund Types. The difference
between the accrual and cash basis statements was not
significant. The reserve for encumbrances is carried
forward as part of the budgetary authority for the next year
and is included in the revised budget amounts shown in
the budget to actual comparisons.

Cash Equivalents: For purpcses of the combined
statement of cash flows and for presentation of the
combined balance sheet, investments of the cash
management pool, and investments with original
maturities of three months or less at the time they are
purchased by the County are considered to be cash
equivalents. Investments with an initial maturity of more
than three months are considered to be investments.

Inventory of Supplises: Inventory is valued at cost
using the first-in, first-out method. Inventory is recorded
as an expenditure/expense when consumed.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation: All fixed assets that
are acquired or constructed for general governmental
purposes are reported as expenditures in the fund that
finances the asset acquisition and are capitalized in the
General Fixed Assets Account Group, if they meet the
County’s capitalization criteria. Real property (except for
infrastructure assets) is recorded at cost or estimated
historical cost based on appraisal. Donated and
contributed fixed assets are recorded at their fair market
value on the date donated to the County. Infrastructure
assets (public domain general fixed assets such as roads,
bridges, streets, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, drainage
systems, lighting systems and the like) are not included in
the financial statements as general fixed assets of the
County. However, water supply and sanitary sewer lines
are capitalized in the Water Supply and Sanitary Sewer
funds, respectively, and are included as part of the
Enterprise funds. These assets are classified as land
Improvements when the sanitary engineer has accepted
them.

Depreciation is not provided for the General Fixed
Assets Account Group. Depreciation for the Proprietary
Funds is determined by allocating the cost of fixed assets
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
A full year of depreciation expense is taken in the year of
acquisition, and none in the year of disposal.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

» Fumiture, fixtures and equipment - 5 to 20 years
» Buildings, structures, improvements - 20 to 40 years
» Land improvements (water and sewer lines) 40 years

Capitalization of Interest: The County’'s policy is to
capitalize interest on debt related to Proprietary fund
construction projects until there has been substantial
completion of the project. The County does not capitalize
interest on Governmental fund construction projects.
Capitalized interest on Proprietary fund construction is
amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the asset. For 1999, no interest was
capitalized.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Contributed Capital: Contributed capital represents
resources from other govemnments, special assessments,
developers and grants provided to Proprietary funds, and
are not subject to repayment. These assets are recorded
at cost on the date the asset is purchased. Depre-
ciation on those assets acquired through capital grants
externally resfricted for capital acquisifions is expended
and closed to the contributed capital fund equity account.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the general
purpose financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilittes and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
staiements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Grants and Other Intergovernmenta! Revenues:
Local Government fund revenues are recorded as
receivables and revenues when measurable and avail-
able. Assistance awards made on the basis of entilement
are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and
revenues when entitlement occurs. Federal and State
reimbursement type grants for the acquisition or
consfruction of fixed assets in Proprietary funds are
recorded as receivables and contributed capital when the
related expenses are incurred. All other Federal and
State reimbursement type grants are recorded as
receivables and revenues when the related
expenditures/expenses are incurred.

The County’s Department of Human Services (Weifare)
distributes federal food stamps to entitled recipients within
Lucas County. The receipt and issuance of these stamps
have the characteristics of federal “grants”; however, the
Department of Human Services merely acts in an
intermediary capacity. Therefore, the inventory value of
the stamps is not reflected in the accompanying financial
statements as the only economic inierest reiated {o the
stamps rests with the ultimate recipient. The County’s
Department of Human Services had on hand for
distribution approximately $832 thousand of federal food
stamps at December 31, 1999.

interfund Transactions: During the normal course of
operations, the County has numerous lransactions
between funds. These fransactions include charges for
services provided by an Internai Service fund to other
funds and operafing transfers. Operating transfers
represent transfers of resources from a fund receiving
revenue to a fund through which those resources will be
expended and are recorded as other financing sources
{uses) in Governmental Fund Types and as operating
transfers in Proprietary funds.

The Internal Service funds record charges for services
to all County funds, departments and other governmental
units as operating revenue. Both Govemmental and
Proprietary funds record these payments to the Internal
Service funds as operating expenditures/expenses.

Compensated Absences: The County records
accumulated unpaid vacation, overtime pay, and vested
sick time benefits as accrued wages and benefiis payable
when eamed by employees. For Governmental Fund
Types the portion of the liability which is not currently due
and payable is recorded in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group {(GLTOAG).

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated
for more than three years. Normally, all vacation fime Is
to be taken in the year available unless administrative
written approval for carryover is obiained. Unused
vacation is payable upon termination of employment.
Unused sick time may be accumulated until retirement.
Employees with a minimum of fen years of service are
paid one third of accumulated sick time upon retirement
with a maximum of 40 days. in general, empioyees are
eligible to be paid for unused compensatory time upon
termination of employment. Al sick, vacafion and
compensatory payments are made at employees’ current
wage rates.

Self-Funded Insurance: The County is self-funded for
dental and heaith benefits. The dental program is
administered by Stateline TPA, Inc., which provides claims
review and processing services. Each County fund is
charged for its proportionate share of the cost for covered
employees. Payment of these benefits is accounted for in
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies-(continued)

an intemal service fund. The County records a liability for
incurred but unreported claims at year end based upon an
actuarial estimate provided by Stateline TPA, Inc. The
County also maintains a Seif-Funded Workers’
Compensation fund and a Risk Retention fund to manage
liability insurance County-wide. There have been no
significant reductions in coverage from the prior year and
settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in
any of the last three years.

The County's Self-funded Workers’ Compensation fund
(an internal service fund) accounts for and finances its
uninsured risks of loss for workers’ compensation claims.
Under this program, the Self-funded Waorkers'
Compensation fund provides coverage for up to a
maximum of $300 thousand for each workers’
compensation claim. The County will pay premiums to the
State of Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation for
claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund. In
addition, the fund will pay assessments o the Bureau of
Workers' Compensation for administration and payment of
claims.

All funds of the County participate in the program and
make payments to the Self-funded Waorkers'
Compensation Fund based on their usage of the program
to cover actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay
current-year claims. The claims liability of $6.8 million
reported in the fund at December 31, 1999 is based on the
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standard
Boeard Statement 10, which requires that a fability for
claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of
the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. This liability includes an amount for claims that
have been incurred but not reported. Because actual
claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as
inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards,
the process used in computing claims liability does not
necessarily result in an exact amount. Liabilities for
losses to be seifled by fixed or reasonably determine-
able payments over a long period of time are reported at

their present value using an expected future investment
yield assumption of 6.50%.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting is utilized
by County funds in the normal course of operations for
purchase orders and contract related expenditures. An
encumbrance is a reserve on the available spending
authority due to a commitment for a future expenditure
and does not represent a liability, Encumbrances
outstanding at year end appear as a reserve to the fund
balance on a GAAP basis and as the equivalent of
expenditures on a non-GAAP budgetary basis in order to
demonstrate legal compliance. This encumbrance
authority is carried forward to the next fiscal year and is
reported in the “Revised Budget” amount for budgetary
comparisons. If the actual expenditures are less than the
amount encumbered, the excess reserve is closed to the
unreserved fund balance.

Fund Balance Reservations and Designations: The
County reserves portions of fund balances that are legally
segregated for specific future uses or that do not
represent available, spendable resources and, therefore,
are not appropriable for expenditures. Designations of
fund balances are amounts that have been designated by
management for a specific future use, which are not
legally segregated. Undesignated fund balances are not
reserved nor designated and are appropriable in future
periods.

Prepaid ltems: Payments made to vendors for services
that benefit future periods are recorded as prepaid items
by using the consumpfion method. A current asset for the
prepaid amount is recorded at the time of purchase, and
the expenditure is reported in the vyear in
whichservicesareconsumed.

Note C - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents, Segregafed
Cash, Investments and Deposits

To improve cash management, cash received by the
County is pooled in a central bank account which is
managed by the County Treasurer. Amounts for all funds
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DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note C - Pocled Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Segregated Cash, Investments and Deposits
{continued)

including proprietary funds, are maintained in this account
or are temporarily used to purchase short term
investments. Individual fund integrity is maintained
through the County's records. Each fund’s interest in the
pooled bank accounts is presented as cash and cash
equivalents, and investments on the balance sheet.
During 1999, investments were limited to STAR Ohio,
certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury Obligations and
Mortgage-backed Securities, Commercial paper and
Bankers acceptances. These investments are stated at
fair value. Money market investments that mature within
one year of acquisition and participating interest-eaming
investment contracts that mature within one year of
acquisition are reported at amortized cost. The County’s
investments are covered by Custodian Safekeeping
Agreements with all securities dealers of County owned
purchased securities, whereby such securities are held for
the County by a third party custodian.

Investment income is recorded in the General, and Self-
funded Health funds. Investment income in the General
fund includes earnings on all pooled invesfments.
Investment income earned during 1989 totaled approxi-
mately $11.1 million.

The County uses separate bank accounts for resources
not deposited with the County Treasurer. These interest
bearing depository accounts are presented in the
Combined Balance Sheet as “Segregated Cash
Accounts.”

Legal Provisions: The County Treasurer is permitted
by Ohic law to deposit or invest County funds provided
that they mature or are redeemable within two years from
date of purchase. The Treasurer is permitted to invest or
deposit in the following classification of obligations:

1) Obligations of, or backed by the faith of, the United States
Government.

2) Obligations issued by any Federal agency.

3) Deposits in Institutions eligible under Ohio law. All
deposits are collateralized with eligible securities, as described
by state statutes, which are pledged to a collateral pool for each
individual financial institution, in amounts equal to at least 110%

4

of the camying value of ali public deposits held by each
institution.

4} Obligations of the State.

5) Repurchase agreements with insfitutions eligible under
Ohio law not to exceed 30 days, where the institution agrees
unconditionally to repurchase any of the securities listed in (1)
or {2).

6) Commercial paper issued by any corporation incorporated
under the laws of the United States or a state if both of the
following conditions apply. Two nationally recognized rating
agencies rank the commercial paper in either of their two
highest categories; the total amount invested in commercial
paper at any time does not exceed five per cent of the county’s
total average portiolio, as determined and calculated by the
investing authority.

7) Bankers acceptances, if the following conditions are met:
The acceptances mature in two hundred seventy days or fewer
from the date of settlement; the acceptances are eligible for
purchase by the federal reserve system; the total amount
invested in bankers acceptances at any time does not exceed
ten per cent of the county’s total average portfolio, as
determined and calculated by the investing authority.

8) The State Treasurer’s Investment pool (STAROhIo).

9) No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively
of obligations described in division (1) or (2) of this section and
repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided
that investments in securifies described in this division are
made only through eligible institutions.

The Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB
Statement 3) has established credit risk categories for
deposits and investments.

» Category 1 - Investments that are insured or registered, or
securities heid by the County or its agent in the County's
name.

Deposits that are insured or collateralized with securities held
by the County or its agent in the County’s name.
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Note C - Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Segregated Cash, Investmenis and Deposiis
{continued)

« Category 2 - Investments that are uninsured and 'unregis Deposits that are uncollateralized or collateralized with securities
tered, with securities held by ,the counterparty’s trust  held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust department
department or agent in the County’s name. or agent but not in the County’s name.

« Category 3 - Investments that are uninsured or unregistered,

with securities held by the counterparty, or by its tust  Based on the above criteria, the County’s deposits and
department or agent but not in the County's name. investments at December 31, 1999 are classified as follows:

Armount Available for

Deposit or Investment {Amounts in 000's)
Carrying amounts per

combined balance sheet:
Pooled.................. . % 204,903
Segregated ...... ... ... ... 7,135
Outstanding Checks .......... 13,769
Other reconciling items (net) ... — {290

Amount available for daposit
and investment (Bank balances

of deposits/fair value
ofinvestments) ............. $225510
Deposits: At year-end the County Risk Category Bank Fair
had the following deposits 1 2 3 Balance Value
{(Amounts in 000's}
FDIC insured deposits . ........ $1,525 g - $- %1525
Insured by the financial -
institutions collateral pool . .. .. - - 6,982 5,982
Certificates of deposit ......... - 29.285 - 28285
Totaldeposits . ............. $1.525 520280 $§6.982 $30.792
Investments: At year-end ‘
the County had the following
investments:
U.S. Treasury Notes .......... $35,905 $ - $ - $35,905
U.S. TreasuryBills ........... 912 - - g12
United States Agency Securities . 110,102 - - 110,102
Commercial Paper ........... 9,803 .- - T 9,803
Bankers Acceptances ......... ..8,103 - - 8,103
Investment in the staie treasurer's L
Investmentpaoi ¢t} .. ........ . - - - 22,893
Totalinvestments .._.._..... £164.825 5 - $ - $187.718

™ The County's investment in the state treasurer's investment program is not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that existin
physical or book entry form.
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Note C - Peoled Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Segregated Cash, lnvestments and Deposits
{continued)

Based on the above criteria, the Discretely Presented
Component Units of the County have deposits and
investments classified as follows:

Amount Available for
Depostt or Investment {Amounts in 000's)

Carrying amounts per
combined balance sheet:

Pooled ... cvvee i ) $9516 -

Amount available for deposit
and investment (Bank balances
of deposits/fair value

of investments) . . ........... 289518
Deposits and investments: At year- Risk Category Bank Fair
end the discretely presented 1 2 3 Balance Value
compenent units had the following

(Amounts in 000's)

FDIC insured deposits .. . ... ..... $204 5 - 5 - $ 204
Insured by the financial

Institutions collateralpoal ..., ... - - 1,748 1,748
Certificates of deposit ........... - 4,053 - - 4.053

Total deposits . . . .. ....vne.... 294 $4053  §i748 $6.005

investments: at year-end the
discretely presented component
units had the following

investments:

US TreasuryNotes ............. $ 743 $ - 5 - $ 743

United States Agency Securities . .. 1,874 - - 1,874

Money Market .. ............... 09 - - 99

CorporateBonds . .............. 502 - - 502

Mortgage Backed Securities ...... 203 —_—— = 203
Totatinvestments . ............ g2.421 I : - $3421
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Note D - Inferfund Recelvables and Payables

Due to / Due from other funds balances as of Decem-
ber 31, 1999 follow:

Due From / Due To

GeneralFund ..............o... $- $88
Special Revenue funds:
Emergency medical ......_...... - 10
Child support enforcement agency . - 9
Real estate assessment ......... - 2
Public assistance ..... e reeeenn - 8
Children servicesboard ......... - 3
Ofher ....oveei it i i rannans - 12
Enterprise funds:
Solidwaste ................... - 3
internal Service funds:
Centralsupplies ............... 40 -
Vehicle maintenance . ........... 55 -
Self-funded health insurance ..... - 331
Self-funded dental insurance ..... 330 -
Centralized drug testing ......... 41 . -
Tofals .......c..viimieaaa. £466 $466

Note E - General Fixed Assets, Proprietary Fund and
Discretely Presented Component Units Fixed Assets

Below is a summary of the changes in general fixed
assets by asset type: on the following page is a summary
of proprietary and discretely presented component units
fixed assets by asset type:

Lott Industries, Inc. is excluded from the beginning
balance in the General Fixed Assets as it is now
presented as a discretely presented component unit. See
Note T.

Capital Leases: General fixed assets recorded under
capital leases accounted for $344 thousand in land, $16.6
million in buildings and $1.9 million in equipment at
December 31, 1999.

Construction-in-progress: The $3,874 thousand
balance in construction-in-progress for the General Fixed
Assets reflects $3,225 in alterations to the Juvenile Court
Detention Facility, and other miscellaneous projects. The
estimated cost to complete these projects is $38.4 million.
The $636 thousand in the enterprise construction-in-
progress is for an elevated water tank. The estimated
cost to complete this project is $2.1 million.

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Asset Type

General Balance
Fixed Asset January 1,
Type 1999
Land ..........ccvvnnunns $15,239
Buildings, structures
and improvements ........ 126,054
Furniture, fixtures
andequipment . .......... 28,969
Construction-in-progress .... —_ H8T
Total general
fixedassels ............. $170.849

Balance
Current Year December 31,
Additions Deletions 1999
{Amounts in 000's)
$- 85208 $14,940
- 1,857 124,197
4,521 8,520 24,970
_3.287 = 3.874

81808  §10676 2 $167.981
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Note E - General Fixed Assets, Proprietary Fund and Discretely Presented Component Units

Fixed Assefs-(continued)

Schedule of Proprietary and Discretely Presented Component Units Fixed Assets hy Asset Type

Discretely
internal Presented
Fixed Asset Enterprise Service Component
_ Type —Funds _Funds _ _ _Units
{Amounts in 000's)

Land . ... .. i —. 3402 $83 $698
Buildings, structures,
and improvements . .. ............ 23,287 30 7,761
Land improvements .............. 98,713 - -
Furniture, fixtures and

equipment ... ... ... e eeaacan 12,577 1,203 3,497
Construction-in-progress .......... ____ 638 - -
Total fixedassels ............... 135,615 1,318 11,956
Less: accumulated

depreciation:

Confributed assets . ............. {11,937) - -

Purchasedassets .............. [38,324) (1.044) (3.262)
Total accumulated .

depreciation . ........covueannn (50,261} 1.044) (3.262)
Total net fixedassets ............. £85.354 $272 $8.694

Note F - Notes Payable

All notes are backed by the full faith and credit of Lucas
County and mature within one year. The notes are issued
in anticipation of long-term bonded financing, and the

Note Issue

Capital Projects:
Sewer and Waterlines . ......_......

Total capital projectsnotes .. ........

Lucas County Recreation, Inc. and Toledo Mud Hens
Baseball Club Inc. have available a $500,000 line of credit
with an interest rate at 2% above the rate paid on
certificates of deposit (7.68% at October 31, 1999). There
were no outstanding borrowings at October 31, 1999.

County intends to refinance the notes until such bonds are
issued. All notes payable were in the capital projects
fund. Notes outstanding at December 31, 1999 follows:

Rate A i '
3.90% - 4.28% . $s5.920
£5.920

Preferred Properties Inc, and affiliates has a note
payable of $15 thousand with an interest rate of 9.7% due
in July of 2002. They also have various morigages
payable totaling $1,782 thousand secured by real estate
with interest rates varying from 0% to 8.00%
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
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- Long-term Debt and Other Obligations

Long-term Debt: Long-term debt and other ob-
ligations of the County were as follows:

Years
Issued

Bonds

General Obligation Bonds-
Unvoted
1986 County public
assistance building................
1986 Convention center

1988 Fam:ly Court Center
construction & Courthouse
renovation...........coeersimmrmnren

1990 Courthouse renovation
& work releaselpretﬁal
facility....

1992 Regiona[ jall ...................

1994 County building.............

1995 Correctional facilities.....

1995 Court services building.

1996 Refunding........ccoeeeeee

General Obligations Bonds-
voted
19896 Library improvement.....

1997 Library improvement.....

Total general obiigation
bonds voted/unvoted........

General Obligation Bonds-
Enterprise
1979 Water Supply
line... .

Special Assessmernt-
Governmental Commitment
(Self-Supporting)
1964 Sanitary sewer..............
1974-
1977 Sanitary sewer............
1981-
1884 Sanitary sewer
1987 Sanifary sewer..............
1988 Sanitary sewer.............

Maturity Balance Batlance
Interest Date January 1, December 31,
Rate through 1999 Additions Deductions 1999
— {Amounts in 000's)
8.000% 12/01/11 $2,860 - $220 $2,640
6.500% 12/01/12 4,715 - 335 4,380
7.375% 08/01/07 7.870 - 870 7.000
5.550%
6.950% 12/01/00 925 - 450 475
3.400%
6.650% 12/01/07 2,800 - 250 2,550
4.000%
5.700% 12/01/04 7,970 - 1,160 8,810
4.300%
6.800% 12/01/15 2,215 - 85 2,130
4.300%
6.800% 12/01/15 1,995 - 75 1,820
4.250%
5.375% 12/01/11 8,800 - 80 8,720
4.300%
6.000% 12/01/05 15,150 - 2,315 12,835
3.800%
5.300% 12/01/05 12,600 - - 2,000 10,600
67,900 0 7,840 60,060
5.750%
7.125% 12/01/99 185 - 185 0
3.500% 12/01/04 6 - 1 5
5.125%
7.625% 11/01/14 224 - 13 211
9.625%
12.000% 12/01/04 257 - 43 209
7.500% 12/01/07 135 - 15 120
7.500% 12/01/08 295 - 25 270




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-{continued)

DECEMBER 31, 1999
Note G - Long-term Debt and Other
Obligations-{continued)
Maturity Balance Balancs
Years Interest Date January 1, December 31,
Issued Rate through 1999 Additions Deductions 1999
_{Amounts in 000's)
Bonds )
Speclal Assessment-
Governmental Commitment
{Self-Supporting)-{confinued)
1989 Sanitary sewer..........c.. 6.750%
7.000% 12101109 850 - 55 795
1979 Waterline......cocoeeeeeeee - 6.625% 12/01/99 T - 7 ) -0
1980- 8.125% )
1985 Waterline.........ccceceene - 8.500% 12/01/04 24 - 12 12
1880 Waterline.......e..cceense —— 6.800% :
6.850% 12/01M10 300 - 15 285
1992 Briarfield Parkway......... 3.400%
6.200% 12/01/02 905 - 210 695
1992 Sewers & waterlines..... 3.400%
6.650% 12/01/11 385 - 20 as5
1992 Sewers & waterlines..... 3.400% o
6.650% 12/01/12 785 - © 40 745
1994 McCord
Road improvements............ 4.000%
5.700% 12/01/03 65 - 10 55
1994 Sewer & waterlines....... 4,000%
6.050% 12/0113 790 - 35 755
1995 Sewers & waterlines..... 4.300% R
6.800% 1210114 605 - 25 580
1996 Sewers & waterlines..... 4.250% . o
6.500% 12/01/16 2,335 - 85 2,270
1887 Sewers & waterlines..... 4.800% )
5.450% 1216117 1,195 - 40 1,155
1898 Sewers & waterlines..... 4.250% )
5.000% 12/01M18 2,460 - 65 2,395
1999 Sewers & waterlines..... 4.000%
6.000% 12/01/19 - 535 - 535
Totaf special assessment
bonds-(self-supporting)....... 11,623 535 701 11,457
Total bonds.......ccoccvemnnee - $79,708 $535 $8,726 $71,517
Ohio Water Development
Autherity (OWDA) Loans
Special Assessmeni-
Governmental Commitment
1983- 7.380%
1984 Sewers.......ccceemeeeusees 7.670% 01/01/07 $1,778 ) - $169 $1,609
1997 SEWETS......necereceerrrinneas 6.160% - 7
7.450% 07/01/11 1,360 - 70 1,280
1094 Watel ..o sirre e ermrsnn 6.720% 07/01/19 3 - 9 363
Enterprise Funds
1684 Sawer system...c. ... 6.240% 01/01:07 3,289 - 287 3,002
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)

Note G - Long-terrn Debt and Other

Obligations-(continued)

Years
Issuad

Enterprise Funds (cont.)

1980-
1984 Wastewater treatment...
1990 Water supply syster....
1991 Water supply system....

1993 Water supply system....
1094 Sewer system.....
1894 Wastewater.........ccuinnen -
1985 Water supply system....
1957 Water supply system....
1957 Sanitary Engineer.........

Total OWDA loans.............

Ohio Public Works
Commission Loans
Governmernital Commitment
1993 Read improvements......
1984 Road improvements......
18685 Road improvements......
1987 Road improvements......
1889 Road improvements......
Enterprise FUNAS...os oo
1994 Wastewater........ _—
1994 Sewer system.............
Total OPWC loans.............

Other Obligations
Capital lease Obligations
Governmental.....u o —
ENterprise... ..o .
Internal Service.....u e —

Accrued wages and benefits-
governmental funds...w. e

Landfill obligation.........ccccenvens

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Future Long-term Debt: a summary of the County's
future long-term debt funding requirements as of
December 31, 1999 follows {(Amounts in G00's):

Year of

2005-2009....
2010-2014....
2015-2019....
2020-2023....

Maturity Balance Balance
Interest Date January 1, December 31,
Rate fhrough 1999 Additions Deductions 1898
{Amounts in 000"s)
6.250% o
11.190% 07/01/13 2,808 - 223 2,585
7.760% 01/01/10 430 - 26 404
T450%
7.500% 07/01411 730 - 39 691
6.160% or/o/18 1,001 - 28 g73
8.720% 07/01/14 831 - 32 799
5.770% Q710115 10,328 - 394 9,934
8.350% o1/01/21 474 - 10 464
5.860% 0701117 1,819 - 57 1,762
5.860% G7/01M17 1,581 - 50 1,531
526,801 50 51,384 $25,407
0.000% 07/01/04 $149 - $27 $122
0.000% Q7/01/05 508 - 89 436
0.000% 07/01/06 285 - 38 247
0.000% 07/01/07 186 - 2 164
0.000% 07/31/10 - 285 - 285
0.000% 01/01116 254 - 14 240
0.000% 07/01/04 172 - 31 141
. 51,554 §$585 5201 51,558
$13,063 $681 $1,396 $12,348
10 - 10 0
D 34 2 ) 32
13,07 gl $1.408 512,380
$14,107 $2,023 5888 $15,332
$12,254 $151 - $12,405
Bonds OWDA OPWC
58224 34,075 728 12K 5101 3-
8,617 3,619 1,532 1,552 230 -
8,882 3,150 1,633 1,450 230 -
8,904 2,665 1,625 1,343 230 -
2,166 1,619 1,235 230
5,688 7,897 4,617 479 -
1,674 7.960 2,100 a7 -
218 2,357 278 41 -
- 56 . 5 - -
—$23255 <~ $25307  _ $13,303 §71,638 $0
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Note G - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations-(con-
tinued)

Long-term Bonds: All long-term debt issued faor
governmental purposes of the County and special
assessment bonds are retired from the Debt Service
Fund. General Obligation proprietary bonds are retired
from the related Enterprise funds. General Obligation
bonds are secured by the County’s ability fo levy a voted
or unvoied property tax within limitations of Ohio Law.
Self-supporting bonds are secured by an unvoted property
tax levy ({special assessments), however, each
appropriate bond indenture provides for principal and
interest to be paid from user charges. In the event
property owners default on their special assessment
obligations, the County is obligated to meet the debt
service requirements from County funds. At December
31, 1999, the County had $396 thousand set aside for the
retirement of this debt. These funds are included in
pooled cash and investments.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code,
the County has the capacity to issue approximately $35.5
million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Lott Industries, Inc., a discretely presented Component
unit of the County has bonds payable of $1,375 thousand
that mature on August 1, 2008, with a variable interest rate
that was 5.7% at December 31, 1999.

Library Improvement Bonds: lucas County serves
in a ministerial capacity as the taxing authority for the
Toledo-Lucas County Public Library. Ohio Revised Code
prohibits Libraries from holding bonded debt and requires
the debt to be held in the name of the subdivision to which
the Libraries board’s jurisdiction is subject. As such, the
library requested that Lucas County put a levy on the
baliot for $38.6 million in improvements fo the Toledo-
Lucas County Public Library. In November 1995, the
electorate of Lucas County approved an increase in
property taxes to pay for the issuance of $25.0 million
General Obligation Bonds for improvements fo the Toledo-

Lucas County Publi¢ Library. On December 11, 1997 the
County issued the remaining $13.6 million of General
Obligation Bonds.

Prior-year defeasance of debt: In prior years, the
County defeased certain general obligation bonds by
placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust
to provide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account asseis and the
liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
financial statements. On December 31, 1999, $8,165,000
of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

Capital Lease Obligations; The County entered into a
lease agreement for a portion of the Government Center.
The lease is classified as a capital lease, and the net
present vaiue of the fufure minimum jease paymenis is
recorded as a general long-term obligation. The portion of
the Government Center leased by the County has been
recorded as land and building in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group.

The County has entered into certain other agreements
o lease equipment and other assets. Such agreements
are, in substance, lease purchases (capital leases) and
are classified as capital lease obligations in the financial
statements,

Operating Leases: At December 31, 1999, the County
had 15 operating leases for office space and equipment.
Operating lease payments are recorded as expen-
ditures/expenses for the current period.
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Note G- Long-term Debt and Other Obligations- (con-
tinued)

The County’s fulure minimum lease payments under
lease obligations which have been capitalized and
operating leases as of December 31, 1899 are as follows
(Amounts in 000's):

Year Capital Operating
Leases Leases

2000 .. ... ........ $2,317 $ 52
2001 ... 2,298 18
2002 ...l 2,188 4
2003 ... eine. 1,818 -
2004 ... .......... 1,816 -
2005 and thereafter ... 6,757 - -
Total minimum

lease payments ..... $17,394 $ 74
Less: amount repre-

senting interest ...... £.014

Present value of future
minimum lease
payments ...........

Accrued Wages and Benefits: Unpaid vested hours at
December 31, 1899 representing this liability for ali
governmental funds are as follows {Amounts in 000's):

Hours
Vecation ............ 443
Sick ... 331
Compensation ....... 41

Deferred Compensation: County employees have the
option of participating in three state-wide deferred
compensation plans, created in accordance with the

Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under these plans,
employees elect to have a portion of their pay deferred
until a future time. According to these plans, the deferred
compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency. The deferred pay and any income earned
therson Is not subject to income tax until actually received
by the employee.

All amounts of compensation deferred under these
plans, all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts,
property, or rights are to be held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries.

Conduit Debt Obligations: From time to time, the
County has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds, Hospital
Facilities Bonds and Commercial Housing Revenue Bonds
to provide financial assistance to private, profit and non-
profit sector entities for the acquisition and construction of
industrial, hospital and commercial facilities deemed to be
in the public interesi. The honds are secured by the
property financed and are payable solely from payments
received on the underlying morigage loans. Upon
repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the
bond issuance. Neither the County, the State nor any
political subdivision thereof is cbligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. '

As of December 31, 1999 there were 171 series of
Industrial, Hospital and Commercial Housing Revenue
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Note G - Long-term Debt and other Obligation-
{continued)

Bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount
payable for the 30 series issved after January 1, 1995
was $501,687,000. The aggregate principal amount
payable for the 141 series Issued and with bonds
outstanding issued prior to January 1, 1985, could not be
determined; however, their original issue amounts total
$759,775,000.

Note H - Pension and Other Post-Retirement Obligations

All eligible employees of the County, other than the
teachers for the Board of Mental Retardation,
participate in the Public Employees Retirement System of
Ohio (PERS), a statewide cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan. Teachers for the Board of
Mental Retardation pariicipate in the State Teachers
Retirement System of Ohio (STRS). STRS is also a
statewide cost-sharing muitiple-employer public employee
retirement system administered and controlled by the
State. County employees are not currently covered under
the Federal Social Security Act. The plan provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits
is provided by State statute under Chapter 145 of the Ohio
Revised Code.

The Chio Revised Code provides statutory authority
for employee and employer contriputions. Law
enforcement officers in the County Sheriff's department
confribute 9% of their annual compensation and the
County contributes 16.7% of the same base. The County

Vis required to contribute 22.05% of annual compensation
for employees of the County engineer based upon a
contract with their respective union. All other eligible
County employees contribute 8.5% of their annual
compensation with the County confributing 13.55% of
the same amount. The County's coniribution to PERS for
the years ending December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997,
were $17.2 milion, $16.3 million, and $15.4 million
respectively, equal to the requested contribution for each
year. All contributions to PERS were made within the
required due dates.
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STRS contribution rates are established by the State
Teachers Retirement Board, upon recommendations of
its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum
rates of 10% for members and 14% for employers. State
statute provides authority for emplovee and employer
contributions. Contribution requirements for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997 were 9.30%
of covered payroll for employees and 14% for employers.
The County’s contribution requirement to STRS for the
years ending December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997, were
$148 thousand, $169 thousand, and $200 thousand
respectively, equal to the required contribution for each
year. All coniributions to STRS were made within the
required due dates.

In addition to pension benefits, the County provides
post-retirement health care benefits o employees who
retire from the County under the PERS and STRS plan
discussed above.

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority

requiring public employees to fund post-retirement health

care through their contributions to PERS. PERS provides
post-retirement health coverage to age and service
retirants with ten (10) or more years qualifying Ohio
service credit. Health care coverage for disabllity
recipients and to primary survivor recipients of such
retirants is available. The health care coverage
provided by the retirement system is considered an
Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in
GASB Statement No. 12. During 1989, employer
contributions, equal to 4.2% of member covered payroil,
were used fo fund health care expenses.

OPEB are financed through employer contributions and
investiment eamings thereon. The contributions allocated
to retiree health care and medicare, along with investment
income on allocated asseis and periodic adjustments in
health care provisions are expected to be sufficient to
sustain the program indefinitely. As of December 31,
1999, the unaudited estimated net assets available for
future OPEB payments were $9,870 million.
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Note H- Pension and Other Post-Retirement Obliga-
tions (continued)

The number of eligible participants as of December 31,
1999 from PERS as a whole was 118,062. A portion of
each employer’s contribution is set aside for the funding of
post-retirement health care. Lucas County’s 1999
employee health care contribution was $5.2 million. The
PERS plan’s net health care expenses for the year ended
December 31, 1999 as a whole was $524 million.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for
employer confributions. The 1999 employer contribution
rate for Local government employer units was 13.55% of
covered payroll, of which 4.2% was the portion of that was
used fo fund health care. The law enforcement employer
rate for 1998 was 16.7% and 4.2% was used to fund
heaith care.

STRS provides comprehensive health care benefits o
retirees and their dependenis. Coverage includes
hospitalization, physician fees, prescription drugs and
reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. All benefit
recipients and sponsored dependents are eligible for
health care coverage. The Ohio Revised Code provides
statutory authority allowing the STRS Board of Trustees to
provide health care coverage to all eligible employees.
The Board has the discretionary authority over how much,
if any, of the associated health care costs will be absorbed
by the plan. All benefit recipients are required fo pay a
portion of the health care cost in the form of a monthly
premium. By Chio law the cost of the coverage paid from
STRS funds shail be included in the employer contribution
rate, currently 14% of covered payroll. The Board
allocates employer contributions equal to 2% of covered
payroll to the health care reserve fund within the em-
ployer’'s trust fund from which payments for health care
benefits are paid. However, for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999, the board allocated employer contributions
equal to 8% of covered payroll to the health care reserve
fund. The balance in the health care reserve

fund was $2,783 million at June 30, 1989 (the latest
information available). The 8% contribution for Lucas
County amounted to $85 thousand. The number of
participants eligible to receive health care benefits as of
July 1, 1999 was 95,796. The STRS plan’s net health
care expenses for the year ended June 30, 1999 as a
whole was $250 millicn. The health care reserve fund
allocation for the year ended June 30, 2000, will be 8% of
covered payroll.

The PERS issues a stand-alone financial report.
Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to: _

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
277 EAST TOWN STREET

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215-4642

PHONE: (614) 466-2085

The STRS issues a stand-alone financial report.
Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written
request to:

STATE TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM
275 EAST BROAD STREET

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215-3771

PHONE: (614) 227-4090

Note | - Fund Balance and Retained Earnings Deficits

At December 31, 1998, the following funds had deficits:

Deficit
Fund {Amounts
Enterprise:
SewerSystem ............ $5,642
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note | - Fund Balance and Relained Earnings Deficits
{continued)

The $5.6 million deficit in the Sewer System Fund will be
eliminated by future user charges and subsidies from the
General Fund.

Note J - Properly Taxes, Sales Taxes, and Deferred
Revenues

Properly taxes include amounts levied against real,
public utility and tangible personal (business) property.
The assessed value by property classification, upon which
taxes collected in 1999 were based is as follows:

{Amounts ip 000’s)
Real property ... . $ 5,100,496
Public utility and
tangible personal
property ........ 1,322,332
Total assessed
property value . . .. $6422.828

in 1998, real property faxes were fevied on January
16th, on the assessed values as of January 1, 1998, the
lien date. Assessed values are established by the County
Auditor at 35% of appraised market value. A revaluation
of real property is required to be completed no less than
every six years, with a statistical update every third year.
The most recent revaluation was completed in 1994,

Tangible personal property tax is assessed on
equipment and inventory held by businesses. Tangible
property is assessed at 25% of true value (as defined). In
1999, each business was eligible to receive a $10
thousand exemption in assessed value which was
reimbursed by the State.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-
annually. In 1999, if paid annually, payment was due by
February 19th. If paid semi-annually, the first payment {at
least ¥z of amount billed) was due February 19th, with the
remainder due July 23th.

By July, 1999, the final collection date, 58.6% of the total
current and delinquent property taxes billed in 1999 were
collected.

The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes
collected to all taxing districts when completing periodic
seitlements of Real and Public Utility property taxes in
February and August and Tangible Personal Property
taxes in June and October for the first and second halves
of the year, respectively. The County accrues billed but
uncaollected properly taxes as receivables at their
estimated net realizable value.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note J - Property Taxes, Sales Taxes, and Deferred
Revenues (continued)

The delinquent real property taxes oufstanding and
available to the County within the first 60 days of 2000
were recorded as 1999 revenue, the remaining taxes
receivable are offset by a credit to deferred revenue.
Although fotal property taxes levied for the next fiscal year
are measurable, amounts to be received during the
available period are not subject to reasonable estimation
at December 31, 1999, and are not available for
appropriation and use until 2000. The deferred revenues
are offset by these property tax receivables and special
assessment receivables related to future capital service
projects

In 1970, the County Commissioners, by resolution,
imposed a .5% tax on all retail sales, including motor
vehicles, made in the County. In 1982, the County
commissioners increased the sales tax by 5% 0 1%. In
November, 1993, Lucas County voters approved a

permanent increase of .25% to 1.25% in the sales tax.
Vendor collections of the tax are paid to the State
Treasurer by the twenfy-third day of the month following
collection. The State Tax Commissioner cettifies to the
State Auditor the amount of the tax to be returned io the
County. The Tax Commissioner’s certification must be
made within forty-five (45) days after the end of each
menth. The State Auditor then has five (5) days in which
to draw the warranty payable to the County.

Proceeds of the tax are credited entirely to the General
Fund. Amounts that have been collected by the State and
are to be received within 60 days of year end are accrued
as revenue, as measurable and available. Sales tax
revenue for 1999 amounted to $65.5 million.

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all
faxing authorities in excess of 10.00 mills of
assessed value without a vote of the people.
Presently, the County levies 2.0C mills of the 10.00

mill limit for the General Fund. An additional 15.75
mills have been levied for voted millage. A
summary of voted millage follows:

Rate
Levied for
Voter Current Year Final
Authorized Agr?:!:&ﬂ?anll Commercial/ Collection
Fumose Bate(a) Residentialia} Industrial Yeat
Senior services ......... 25 212384 245057 2004
Metroparks ............ . 1.40 1.397267 1.400000 2008
Community mental health . 1.50 1.117609 1.355440 2005/2009
Board of mental
retardation ............ 4.50 2.704168 3.505858 continuous
Children services ....... 3.50 3.000378 3.413422 2001/2003
Port authority .......... .40 338814 392091 2004
Library . .......0uuvn. .. 1.85 1.743851 1.850000 20052007
Zoo improvements ...... 95 348662 850000 2005
Zoooperating .......... J0 825696 700000 2002
911 Telephone system .. 10 525330 700000 2001
Total ..oovininnnnnn. 1575 12.615159 14511868

{a) Dollars per $1,000 of assessed valuation.

{b) Ohio law provides for a reduction of certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property. The voted levies

are subject to change.




LUCAS COUNTY, OH!O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note K - intergovernmental Revenue

A summary of the principal ifems of intergovernmental
revenue follows:

Intergovernmental
Revenue
(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Local governmenttaxes . . ......oven ittt in i cmacm et e $8,815
Defenseofindigents . . ... ccoreoii i ettt ta e eaanann . 1,804
Sheriffsecurity ........ ..o i e e 528
Indirect CoStrecovery ... .t i ae i cc v s cnean e 1,029
Child support enforcement incentives ... ... ... ... . it : 1,127
Workrelease . ..... . ... i e e e e neaaaennn . 915
Municipal/Pretrial jail space reimbursement . . ... ... ... . i 2,223
Other ..... e e aeieeam e am o emane e atr e ey 283
Totalgeneralfund .. .................. et iaerenniae s $16.824
Special Revenue Funds

Federal and state health and human services grants and reimbursements .. $82,073
Motor vehicte and gastax ...... e e eteeem e et anann 14,658
Child support enforcementingentives .. ... ... ... ..., _7,728
Children services board state grants and reimbursements ............... 14,445
Drug and alcohol addiction servicesgrant . ... ... ... ... . i aan . 5177
Youth services, treatment delinquent care subsidy stategrants ........... 3,949
Community developmenigrants . . . ..... ..ot a e 4,257
Correctional Treatment Facility ......... ... ... ool , . 2,974
1) 13T U 1,285
Total speclalrevenuefunds . ... ... ... . oo i, $£136.554



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note L - Segment Information for Enterprise Funds

The County maintains six Enterprise funds which treatment, recycling, and parking services. Segment

provide sanitary sewer, water distribution, wastewater information for the year ended December 31, 1998

folfows (Amounts in 000's):

Water Waste-
Sanitary Supply Water Sewer
_Engineer System Treatment System
Operating revenues.......cveeeceeevarensn - $3,556 $1,332 $4,083 $1,789
Depreciation...c. e e cessreenn 240 1,236 569 1,339
Cperating income {{088).....cercvviserens 487 {611) 1,372 {273)
Net income (loSs).....crrirecrreresmeraan . 37 (135} 599 (548)
Current capital- .
contributions.... o - 1,473 - 1,287
Property, plant and ’
equipment-
= Lo [} (1) o - 109 1,473 20 1,288
deletions.......w... 182 80 178 35
Net working capital....ccccecceeeveecrcceeea 1,765 810 3,188 1,941
Total aS861S...cccurvmrmreurisrsrrsanerenens 5,024 33,570 18,862 36,822
Bonds and other long-~
term liabilities. .c....eurmercecasarmmmmenarcans 1,505 4,207 12,436 3,758
Total fund equity........ccorererrverccceriann 3,087 29,178 5,873 32,868
Note M - Contributed Capital
During 1999, contributed capital in Enterprise funds
changed by the following amounts {Amounts in 000's):
Water Wastae-
Supply Water Sewer
System Treatment System Total
Contributed capital,
January 1......ccoroveemearesrsreeecn $24,764 $4,144 $37,447 $66,355
Contributions from
developers - fixed assets........cre . 924 - 1,178 2,102
Contributions from special
assessments - fixed assets............. : 549 - 109 658
Depreciation on fixed assets
acquired by federal capital grants.... 9 {89 224 322
Contributed capital, December 31..... $26,228 40 $38,510 ‘%5579—3)'




Discretely

Total Presanted
Solid Parking Enterprise Component
Waste Faci_lities Funds Unit
$1,363 $249 $12,372 $1,832
48 2 3,434 38
{100} 162 1,067 (60}
(100} 192 378 -
- - 2,760 -
28 - 2,918 45
38 11 534 67
190 555 8,449 1,014
420 555 95,253 1,376
- - 21,906 -
336 555 71,857 1,145
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note N - Reconciliation of Budget Basis to GAAP Basis

A reconciliation for all governmental funds at Dec-  sources over (under)} expenditures and other uses follo
ember 31, 1999 from the budget basis to a GAAP (Amounts in 000's):
basis for excess of revenues and other financing

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Sarvice Projects
Fund Funds Fund Funds
Budget Basis........orceeeriieeceemrre - - ($2,144) ($12,864) {$795) $4,620
Net adjustments for
TEVENUE ACCIUAS wvarvu s cenmrssrssanmnnns {2,352) (154) 132 54}
Net adjustments for
expenditure accruals.......c.oceccceemens Ce e - 1,605 3,720 (2,372) 5,135
Net adjusiments for
ENCUMDBrANCEs. ..o aeresomiccmrmamisnsr 1,615 16,872 - 10,096
Net adjustments for other
financing sources {Lses) accruals. é1 ,161) {276) 2,369 {6,506)
GAAP BASIS..ceresvieaeeneacnerricaemcararnins {$2,437) 7,298 ($666) $13,2H1

Note O - Intedund Transfers

A summary of operating transfers by fund type follows
(Amounts in 000's):

~ Transfer To

Transfer Special Debt Capital
From Revenue Sarvice Projects Enterprise Tofal
General.....comcesnnasanes : $12,580 $6,477 $18,109 _ $- $37,166
Special Revenue........... TR - 378 - - 378
Debt Service...vieiie s o, - - - 165 165
Capital Projects......cccccomsea- - - . = 584 584
Enterprise. . e cmeres - - - ... 23 23
TOEAL ..ovvrsesssercancsrssnenerier $12,580 $6,855 $18,109 §772 $38,316

Note P - Amendments to Original Appropriafions
Budget

Amendments beyond the object level must be ap-  follows: General Fund, $14.2 million; Special Revenue

proved by the Board of County Commissioners. In Funds, $3.8 million; Capital Projects, $10 million;
1999, the original appropriation measure wasin- Enterprise Funds, $183 thousand; internal Setvice
creased by the Commissioners approximately as  Funds, $190 thousand.
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Note Q - Contingencies

The County owns and operated a [andfili site located in
the western portion of the County. The site accepted solid
waste from a number of private and industrial waste haulers
from 1854 to its closure in 1976. A sclid waste transfer
station was operated from May, 1980 through July, 1991.
This site is now closed and the County no longer operates
a landfill. State and federal laws require the County to
cleanup, maonitor and maintain the site.

The County engaged a consultant fo complete a study
regarding the cleanup, monitoring and maintenance of the
site. This study will be subject to review by the Ohio
Envirohmental Protection Agency. The study estimates
approximately $12.4 million will be needed to enact the pian,
of which approximately $12 thousand of the costs is to be
incurred in the next year. The current liability of $12
thousand is included in accounts payabie in the Capital
Projects Fund with the remaining $12.4 million in the
General Long-Termm Qbligation Account Group. Actual cost
may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations. Funding is expecied to be obtained
from the issuance of General Obligation notes or bonds,
and from the State Infrastructure Bond Fund. Other

potential sources of revenue include indemnification by

generators for response costs incurred.

The County is a defendant in a number of other claims
and lawsuits which may be classified as routine litigation.
In addition, the County is a defendant in numerous other
claims and lawsuits ranging from tort liability to civil rights
litigation. Management believes that any settlerment related
fo these claims and [awsuiis will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the County.

The County participates in a number of Federal and State
assisted grant programs. The major programs are through:
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction; Community
Development Block Grant, Ohic Department of Human
Services; and Ohio Department of Mental Health, These
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by
grantors or their representatives. Audits of certain
proegrams have been completed under guidance of OMB
circular A-133 and are included in a separately issued
report. Thete were no material instances of honcompliance
or findings noted within these reports.

Note R - Joint Venture

Lucas County has entered into a contractual agreement
with the City of Toledo, Defiance County, Fulion County,
Henry County, and Williams County to form the Corrections
Commission of Nerthwest Ohio to operate a regional jail in
northwestern Ohio. Each entity is responsible for a portion
of the capital and operating budget as follows:

Cityof Toledo .......... 35.65%
lucas County .......... 31.84%
Defiance County . ....... 9.35%
Fulton County .......... 8.65%
Williams County ........ 8.65%
Henry Counh'( .......... £.86%

100,00%

The Corrections Commission of Northwest Chio is an 18
member board made up of the president of the Board of
County Commissioners, Sheriff, presiding judge of the Court
of Common Pleas for each County, the Mayor, Chief of
Police, and presiding Municipal Court Judge for The City of
Toledo. Each participating entity has an equal degree of
control over budgeting and financing.

All debt for the construction of the jaif was incurred by the
participating governmental agencies, and are not liabilities
of the Corrections Commission of Northwest Ohio. Lucas
County has approximately $2.5 million of bonds outstanding
at year end for construction of the regional jail.

Complete financial statements of the Corrections
Commission of Northwest Chio can be obtained from its
administrative office as follows:

CORRECTIONS COMMISSION OF NORTHWEST QOHIC
03151 ROAD 24.25 RT. 1, BOX 100-A
STRYKER, OHIO 43557



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(continued)
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Note S - Risk Management

Self-Funded Insurance: The County is self-funded for
dental and health benefits. The dental program Is
administered by Stateline TPA, Inc., which provides
claims review and processing services. Each County fund
is charged for its proportionate share of the cost for
covered employees. Payment of these benefils is
accounted for in an internal service fund. The County
records a liability for incurred but unreported claims at
year end based upon an actuarial estimate provided by
Stateline TPA, Inc. The County also maintains a Self-
Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and & Risk
Retention fund to manage liability insurance County-wide.

The claims liability of $6.8 miillion reported in the
internal service funds at December 31, 1998, is based on
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10 which
requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including
estimates of costs relating to incurred but not re-
ported claims, be reported (see table below). Changes in
the funds' claims liability amounts for 1998 and 1989
were:

Note T - Reporting change

Due to the relationship between Lott industries, Inc. and
the County described in Note A, Lott Industries is reported
as a discretely presented component unit in 1999. During
1698, Lott Industries was blended with the Board of
Mental Retardation; a special revenue fund. The impact
of this reporting change on the financial statements is
presented below:

Change in
Provision
Balance at Current for Workers Balance
Beginning Year Compensation Claim at End
of Year Clams Claims Payments  of Year
1908.. $8,612 $19,019 $(210) $18,766 $8,655

1989..  $8,655 $20,747 $(2,548) $20,037 $6.817

General
Special Investment Long Term
Revenue in General Obligations
Fund Fixed Bonds-
Batance at December 31,
1598, as previousl,
[1=TeToTy [=To $76,999 $177,389 $81,218
Lott Industries presented as
a discretely presented
component unit instead of
being blended with the Board
of Menta! Retardation:......... (4.437) (6.540) (1.510)
Balance at December 31,
1998, as §72562 §i70.p40  §79.708
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Combining Financial
Statements and Schedules

Pictured above is the new addition to the downiown
Toledo-Lucas County Library. The addition is projecied to
cost $24.9 million when complete, covering almost 2 acres.

The Wintergarden section of the addition is an atrium-
type architectural space that links the historic library to the
new wing.

The walls of glass soar to a 74-foot-high ceiling, pro-
viding natural light to the heart of the main library
complex.

The new addition will include a parkade below that
can accommodate 300 cars and a rooftop civic plaza
that will open in the summer of 2000.

— 82 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
December 31, 1999

accounted for in other funds or account groups.

General Fund - The General Fund accounts for all
financial resources and expenditures except for those fo be
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

64

(Amounts in 000's)
Revised
Budget
Expenditures:
General Government-
Legislative and executive
Department of Personnel-
Personal services............ - $528
Materials and supphies...........covceacvrreersrererrecn 8
Charges and Services............oervrrremsercseece — 147
Capital outlay and equipment.......ccoovvsreemmronmoer 10
Commissioners-
Personal services........co.vveen. 891
Materials and supplies..........or s eeesmorcm e .20
Charges and services........... 137
Capital outlay and equipment...............coeecceecemn 14
Management and Budget-
Personal SBIVICES. ... e 408
Materials and supplies..........coorveieneeees 8
Charges and Senvices. ........oeeriereecceee o 86
Capital ouflay and equipment...........cccco oo eremmme 15
Auditor-
Personal services.......... 1,204
Materiais and supplies........... - 112
Charges and services....... ) . 241
Capital outlay and equipment................ccooconmmrcene 28
Auditor Personal Propserly-
Personal services........... 335
Materials and supplies......... 16
Charges and services........ 17
Capital outlay and equipment..............cc.cccemeen.. - 5
Auditor Real Property Evaluation-
Personal services... P, 679
Materials and supplles...... i
Charges and services.... i 20
Capital outtay and equipment...........coceeeeercrnnne 26
Treasurer-
Personat services...........oevee ) 891
Materials and supplies.........cocerevecmernevrerrme R 124
Charges and services.......... 117
Capital outlay and equipment.......ceoceeeeeeccvvveencaee 18
Treasurar Personal Property-
Personal services........ 218
Materials and supplies...........coeeevceecmvrrsvesece 4
Charges and services....... 4

Actual

$435

120

888
129
12
349
51
14
1,180
104

28

864
123
109

18

207

Variance:
Favorable

{Unfavorable]

K@ W W

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
General Government - continued ) ’ ’
Legisfative and executive - continued
Budget Commission-

Personal S8rviCes. .. ....o.oeviveeecveemee e e eesee e 79 79 0

Materials and SUPPIES.......coov e e eererasan e 1 - a 1

Charges and SEIVICES. ..o vierrueeeeees ceercnemmmreeens 2 1 1
Beard of Revision-

Personal SerViCES.........cicvirees s ressenrs resmeremsmsens - $146 $142 $4

Materials and SUPPIES.....ccv e e resnarrecns - 5 4 1

Charges and SemnviCes.......c.oue e ceecememsmmsaeesmnere - - 4 1 3

Capital outlay and equipment........cooomenciee 22 ] 21 1
Audit-

Charges and Ser/iCes......ccvevecvveviveccerisssmnemmee. 165 126 39
Planning Commission-

Charges and SetViCes...........covee oo meessmemsrmermssanes 368 368 4}
Data Processing-

Persanal ServiCes......cocvoveevvrrvvesrreseemeemsmemeeee 1,667 1,480 177

Materials and SUPPHES.......cocveevereeces oo . 31 29 2

Charges and SeniCes. ... v eesmscremsrarserrssn 310 277 - 33

Capital outtay and equipment..........ooveceereeceeeeen 574 572 . 2
Hotel Mote! Administration-

Personal SerViCes. ... ..c..o.covveemccee oo 53 53 g

Materials and sUPPIES.....cccveriin e e ammnar 2 1 1

Charges and setvices... et r e ———— 2 0 2

Capital outiay and equ1pment........,....-...,..._...._._ 2 2 0
Department of Purchasing-

Personal ServiCes........ ..o eeevveemseee v e, - 334 330 4

Materials and supplies............c..occorecrrcrerevrmrcceanen . 9 8 -1

Charges and services.. SO, 18 9 g

Capital outlay and equupment.................--...._._.--. .4 3 1
Board of Elecfions-

Personal Servites......ccueeurreaveecesvemermenes ceemrmnr 1,172 1,092 a0

Materials and supplies..... ..o ceeveerevceas st 189 174 15

Charges and ServiCes.....c...ocvee e emurrammrsas cerans 595 474 121

Capital gutlay and equipment.. ........ccomeeemeane. 46 45 : o1
Capital Maintenance-

Charges and Servites..........ococu e seemrcnremesaens - 608 260 348

Capital outlay and equiptment......oceeaeee. o 175 134 41
Facilitios-

Personal services............. 3,193 2,881 212

Materials and supplies........cvemveirmcemvrm. . 272 238 33

Charges and SeviCes.....cooeocoeee e — 6,820 6,334 486

Capital outlay and equipment.........cooeeeoemree. 84 78 8

continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

General Government - continued
Legisiative and executive - continued
Recorder-
Personal sernvices. ..o
Materials and supplies....
Charges and services..
Capital cutiay and eqmpment.

Taxes-
Charges and services............ccccreoameenne. -

Insuranca-
Personal SeIVICES. ... ee e e st vt et en i -
Charges and SemviCes. ... ... oo reremmemsmernennn

Other-
Charges and ServiCes.........cccoreervveenecereeirrenncan.

Total legisiative and executive.........................

Judicial
Prosecutor-

Personal SeriCes........ooooo i

Materials and supplies....
Charges and services..
Capital outlay and equupment

Court Rehabilitation & Correction-
Personal SenViCes........cccvvvvieeveveeses e srrsmesrasreas nvams.
Materials and supplies.........cccocoreeeeveeeneere e
Charges and SemviCes..........c.cccoricerermsesieirmessenn
Capital outlay and equipment............cococeciicnnies

Court of Appeals-

Materials and supphes.........c..c...un. s -

Charges and services.. -
Capital outlay and equtpmem‘.

Common FPleas Courl-

Personal SEMVICES.......cvcvivieriir e s smn s s mssisnsnann

Materials and supplies.............cocc v ee v i
Charges and services.. i
Capital outlay and eqmpment

— 66

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$578 $568 $10
48 48 2
45 40 5
7 7 0
245 193 52
85 44 42
763 744 19
208 159 47
25,348 23,157 2,191
4,151 4,099 52
54 51 3
142 111 31
18 17 1
3M 300 1
13 i1 2
41 35 6
11 11 0
41 35 6
165 152 13
33 33 0
_ 2,433 2,428 4
95 a3 2
372 302 70
47 45 2
continued




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

{Amounts in 000’s)
Revised
Budget
General Government - continued
Judicial - continued
Work Refease-
Personal SEIVICES. ......corrivmrerivrr e et semeem e — $1,410
Materals and sUpPPles......ccccecvvercmvvevereranrrareman 91
Charges and services..... 248
Capital outlay and equipment............ccovevecmmenene 27
Jury Commission-
Personal Sefvices..........coveeevaene 87
Materials and supplies.........cooovreeeecnes 21
Charges and senvices........cccon..e. 276
Capital outlay and equipment............... 2
Aduit Probation-
Personal ServiCes. ... ..o e eecrvreccencrnmacnenn R 1,066
Materials and suppiies..........c.coecveeeeemeeeee e 105
Charges and serviCes..........cccivrreecrermvrmmreerseonas 45
Capital ouflay and equipment.............oeeevrrememenns 18
Pretrial Presentence Division-
Personal services............ 1,471
Materials and sUPPHES.........cceeorrreeremrereremerreoname e 28
Charges and SeIVICES........cevvreerererssnseerersassserems - 43
Capital outlay and equipment.......... cooeerreeereren 20
Domestic Refations Court-
Personal SEIVICES. ... cveerrers voeemem o e e 2,089
Materials and suUpplies.........cccovverecerrvrr—srmrrremaen 22
Charges and serviCes.......ccecveceerence s cermmrrerreen 222
Capital outlay and equipment..........ccorviieemenees 37
Juvenife Codrt-
Personal Services.........ccooveviieervrvercemrnenssecerreas 5,730
Materials and suppfies ................................... 212
Charges and services.. eantee et e v 831
Capital outlay and equapment ............................. 108
Common Pleas Securify-
Personal SeIVICES........cccoorves et iceeesrsvesneesrussnnmmrens 788
Materials and SUPPRES.........ccovvccrmmmvecsssseersrszann 3
Charges and services... SO, 27
Capital outlay and equlpment 8

Variance:
Favorable
Actual {Unfavorable)

$1,400 $10
87 4
235 13
25 2
8r 0
18 5
264 12
1 1
1,050 $16
102 3
28 17
17 1
1,439 32
83 5
33 10
15 5
2,088 1
17 5
166 56
38 1
5,665 65
203 g
537 o4
109 8]
780 8
2 1
13 14
8 0

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -{continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

{Amounts in 000's)
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
General Government - continued
Judicial - continued
Detention Home-
Personal SeIVICES................ooicvervnrev s nessanssnnn $2,139 $2,137 $2
Materals and supplies........ccoveeenmnicceen, 243 244 4
Charges and services... cererrer et e 372 342 30
Capital outlay and equment .............................. 856 82 4
Probats Court-
Personal BEIVICES........covviivirriciroreraceaesanemrrsnsensna 1,576 1,553 23
Materials and SUPPES..........ocv v iormmress comrs s 25 25 0
Charges and ServiCeS.........cmimsismsscscassmssmsssansn 99 84 15
Integrated Justice System-
Personal SeIVICEeS.........oorvrrrermecnaccerecee s s eammmenne o 72 69 3
Materials and supplies.........ccccvrrcrvrrerrenerarsaran.e 2 1 1
Charges and ServiCES...........oereeemerernssmsssnranin, 212 196 16
Capital cutlay and equipment...........cccoeeinines 320 313 7
Clerk of Courls-
Personal 8enices..........comereeereceece e 1,438 1,400 38
Materials and supplies.... 308 293 13
Charges and services.. fetree e, 67 64 3
Capital outlay and eqmpment ............................ s 68 €69 o
Commurily Supervision-
Personal 82nites. ... icrecsvmerer s e 428 421 8
Materials and supplies 2 1 1
Charges and services., berimeantatineenneaannnran 136 108 28
Capital outiay and equment .............................. 3 2 1
Fublic Defenders
Charges and Services. ............cocmmreermeesrmmamannn 3,630 3,410 220
Municipal Courts-
Personal SeIVICeS..........covervemrmmarrarssmmammmnnseoneras 591 _ 576 15
Charges and ServiCes........c.cuoveereeerevrcererrvsens 87 70 17
Law Library-
Personal Services.........c.ooccceeecceveevcencinecereeon 112 112 0
Miscellanisous-
Charges and Services.........ccvvveevsmreervsrvsrecs — 233 . 22T _. B
Total JUDICIBL.....ccoo..coeo e comireemmemsemrmmr—— — 35,057 340189 1,038
continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
Revised
Budget
Public safety

Medical Corractions-

Personal SBIVICES. ......c.ccivureeveeeciirrer s erressrssessvsens 872

Materials and supplies..........cocceeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeecnnes 3

Charges and services.. 328

Capital outlay and equtpment .............................. 7
Coroner-

Personal ServiCes........oooicereeisiesiesrsesssssasesans $848

Materials and supplies........c.cccoov e 51

Charges and services.. . a5

Capital outlay and eqmpment 14
Sheriff - New Class-

Personal Semvices...........oooovieeeiieeeeee e eees 0

Materials and supplies............o oo, 1

Charges and ServiCes...........ccecveiereenieinensenens 14
Sheriff - Corrections center-

Personal ServiCes...........ooecvieeeeeeeee s 12,680

Materials and supplies eeretente s ns s 220

Charges and services.. e ea bt an it araaranaan 1,180

Capital cutlay and equ1pment ............................. 11
Sheriff - Law Enforcement-

Personal SernviCes. ..o s saressinns 3,474

Materials and supplies.........ccccoveciiiieeiecninnns 106

Charges and Semvices...........coceievieeeiecieeveeeceiens 524

Capital outtay and equipment.............c..coeeeinnnn, 7
Sheriff - Administration

Personal SBNICES. ..o e ecce s s secteeniens 1,705

Materials and supplies..............cccocveririnvirannennes 49

Charges and services., varranienapenn e n e anmanan 303

Capital outlay and equ:pment .............................. 17
Sheriff - 311 Calf Takers-

Personal SeIVICES.........ccvvvirererenerirssasrarsasrsemanes 557

Charges and SeIVICES........ccierirrrrsre s ss sommnnn msnnee, 12
Public Safefy Contracts-

Personal SBIVICES.......cve ceecercnenscesvss s v e srennens 1,032

Charges and Services..........oovveeeeeesseeecsemrnniean 12
Public Safety Court Security-

Personal Services.........ccovieeiciimnien _3,0M

Charges and ServiCes...........oocvevin s ssnscssssnann, 48

Variance:
Favorable
Actual {(Unfaveorable)
632 40
3 0
316 12
4 3
$847 $1
42 9
79 6
14 0]
0 0
Y, 1
2 12
12,630 41
203 17
1,110 80
11 0
3,433 41
102 T4
517 7
7 ¢
1,568 137
47 2
274 29
17 0
554 3
12 0
1,018 14
12 0
2,888 13
46 0
confinued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
Public safety - continued
Incarceration Facility-
Charges and ServiCes.......c.cu v wrererrsmmmrsmommrnrmio . 2,682 2,692 ]
Other-
Charges and SeIVICeS..........cccecrverrierserimenrismmrsnsn - 586 586 0]
Total pubfic Safety..........ccvvivvervirareriercveircen 30,257 28,785 472
Public works
Engineer-
Personal ServiCes.........oooveeeereeie e eecrenssses e, 128 123 5
Materizls and supplies..........comreoe e e 16 15 1
Charges and services.........c.cccoererrrcecarmrrrerr o 87 69 18
Capital outlay and equipment..........ccccoorvocronn. 12 10 2
Ditch Maintenance- : -
Personal senices..........oio e 7 0 7
Charges and SeIVICES.......uvucevuressms s cemmmmsmsrmsmmrman_ 105 21 84
Total pUblC WOIKS.......corvicimsicsevisaiiiresssssanra_ 355 238 117
Health
Maumee Valley Historical Soclety-
Charges and SeMViCes........cccveecvreererverneseesne e $50 $50 $0
Registration of Vital Statistics-
Charges and Servicas........ .. e e mrareosrrommmmm . - 9 0 9
Other Health-
Charges and SeIVICES.......o..receerrras sasmns mmmmames cmsinas 1,185 835 350
TOLAf ROGIA.........ceeeeeesvesevsssiresiiea e eeomsssmmen 1,244 885 359
Human services
Veterans Service Commission-
Personal sepvices.................. 329 325 4
Materials and supplies.......cccecceceenveee. . 8 <] 3
Charges and 8erviCes..............cccovinecinarenns .- - 513 506 7
Capital outtay and equipment................. 11 10 1
Veterans Service-
Charges and Services............ccoucrereercmrrmesmesnronan 18 17 1
Miscellaneous
Charges and services............ . 187 . 187 0
Total RUMAN SOIVICOS.......ceiveeeseerimsre s e onmrens 1,067 1,051 18
continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfaveorable)
Conservation and recreation
Recreation-
Personal Services........ouooeeeerm e 744 744 0
Materials and SUPPlEs..........ccovvcrrcreree e innne 186 18D 8
Charges and ServiCes...........voiiererrerrvessesssencen 570 552 18
Capital outlay and equipment...........ccceveeecervverns 133 132 1
Agricufture-
Charges and Services............cccococeeiiireeveecrverens 343 341 2
Miscelfaneous-
Charges and services...........cccooreeinacreceeeceeee 58 58 0
Total conservation and recreation................... 2,032 2,005 27
Misceilaneous
Contingencies-
Charges and ServiCes.........coccveeecemesviressemeervnes $111 $0 5111
Other-
Charges and ServiCeS........ocvccesmecrreresemreraseseee 858 831 27
Total miscelfaneous........eccomveeeeeeeeerverrnaca- - - 1,089 931 138
Total expenditures....... $96.429 $92 071 $4, 358

.




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
December 31, 1999

Special Revenue Funds- The Special Revenue funds
accountt for all specific financial resources fother than
expendable frusts, or major capital profects) that are legally
restricted for specified expenditure purposes. The following
are the Special Revenue funds which Lucas County
operates:

Public Assistance- To account for various federal and
stafe grants and reimbursements as well as transfers from
the General Fund used for human service programs.

Community Mental Health- To account for revenues
received from a county-wide property tax levy, federal and
state grants, and reimbursements used for various county
mental health programs.

Real Estate Assessment- To account for state mandated
county-wide real estate reappraisals.

Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax- To account for monies
received by the County for State gasocline tax and vehicle
registration fees used for county road and bridge improve-
ments programs.

Children Services Board- To account for a county-wide
property tax levy, state grants and reimbursements used for
county child care programs.

Board of Mental Retardation- To account for a county-
wide property tax levy, state grants and reimbursements
used for care and services for the mentally handicapped
and retarded.

Emergency Medical Services- To account for
emergency medical care financed by a county-wide sales
tax.

Emergency Telephone System- To account for a
county-wide property tax levy used for emergency
telephone assistance

Zao Operating- To account for a county-wide property
tax levy. Monies are distributed directly fo the Toledo
Zoologica! Society.

Child Support Enforcement Agency- To account for
revenues from: fees, fines, federal and state grants and

other similar revenue sources, and to account for legally
restricted expenditures used for the collection and protec-
tion of support payments made and owed to parents and
children.

Other Special Revenue Funds- To account for revenues
from: fees, taxes, fines, federal and state grants, licenses
and other similar revenue sources, and fo account for
legally restricted expenditures for specified purposes.
Summarized information on the financial activity and
balances of the following Special Revenue funds include:

Dog and Kennel

Hotel Lodging Tax

Litter Control

Youth Setvices

Community Development Grant
Emergency Management Agency
Marriage License

Coroner's Lab Fund

Law Enforcement Drug Fund
Delinguent Real Estate Tax and Assessment Collection Fund
Tax Installment Payment Plan
Emergency Planning Fund
Indigent Guardianship

Drug & Alcohol Services Board
Community MR/RES Services
Senior Services

Economic Development

Indigent Drivers

Prohation Service

Motor Vehicle Enforcement and Education
Building Regulations
_Certificate of Title Administration
Recorder Equipment

Juvenile Treaiment Center
Juvenile Felony Care

Adult Probation Grant
Correctional Treatment Facility

« & & 4 & .8 F 8 B B B W 4 @ & & 8 & P B B B 8 B B oGP

When compared to combined Special Revenue fund
totals, other special revenue funds comprise less than 10%
in each of the following categories: assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenditures.
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ICombining Chart of Revenues and Expenditures]

All Special Revenue Funds
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO"

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)
Community Real Motor Children
Public Mental Esiate Vehicle and Services
N Assistance Health Assessment Gas Tax Board
Assets and other debits:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents........... $2,148 $1.097 $300 $709 $2,848
Pooled investments....... oo voerereerrncmecmncene 12,809 6,546 1,794 4,234 17,509
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncoliectables)

TEXEB. ..ot ccriiseesabessnsenrennrmnnnsns - 9,198 - - 21,228

ACCOUMS......ovvervineecrmrmr e - - - 224 32

LOANS.....cceererncrmsrransrrnerre s mrs e - - - - -
Due from other governments........cc.coccen..- 6 1,745 - 488 819
inventory: materials and supplies.............. - - - 371 -

Total 858OES......coccvereiirecancreerreesees $14,961 $18,586 $2,094 $5 026 342,626
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable.................ccnnervnercnenes 53,253 $2,355 $87 $586 $272
Accrued wages and benefits.................... 1,368 38 121 304 881
Dueto other funds............cccoeevvvvnncernaens 8 - 2 - 3
Due to other governments......... eesreenraees 2 - - - -
Deferred revenue............ccocooviiccececrecs - 8,980 - - 20,724

Total Fabilitios. ... eeeeveeeererrene 4,631 11,373 210 880 21,880
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances...........ccceeeeee. 445 8,468 253 1,902 1,389
Reserved forinventory..........c.ccveevenennen, - - - 3 -
Reserved for loans receivable................... - - - - -
Unreserved-

Designated for charity.......cccceeeeern , - - - - -

Undesignated..........ccooecrevrcceenceennnns 9,885 745 1,631 2863 196,257

Total fund balances................ S 10,330 7,213 1,884 5,138 20,646

Total lfabifities and

fund balances........c.crseeccemes $14,961 $18.,586 $2,094 $6.026 $42 626
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Child Other
Board of Emergency Emergency Support Special
Mental Medical Telephone Zoo Enforcement Revenue
Retardation Services System Operating Agency Funds Total
$1,850 $314 $975 $5 $515 $1,503 $12,382
11,044 1,872 5,822 27 3,074 8,873 73,794
21,676 - 4,364 4,365 - 2,984 63,815
12 - - - 130 143 541
- - - - - 1,072 1,072
1,648 - - - - 589 5,295
- - - - - ¢] 371
$36,230 $2.186 $11,1861 $4 397 $3.719 $15264 $157,250
$812 $158 19 $0 $163 $908 $8,613
1,568 74 17 - 474 630 5,573
- 10 - - 9 12 44
- 810 - - - 14 826
21,199 - 4,258 4,260 - 2912 62,334
23,577 1,052 4285 4,260 846 4 476 77,390
2,104 430 808 - 180 2,893 16,872
- - - - - 4] a1
- - - - - 1,072 1,072
- - - - - 119 119
10,549 704 6,058 137 2,893 6,704 61,426
12,6563 1,134 6,866 137 3,073 10,788 79,860
$36,230 $2,186 $11,161 $4 367 $3,719 $15.264 $157,250
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Community Real Motor Children
Public Mental Estate Vehicle and Services
Assistance Health Assessment Gas Tax Board
Revenues:
TAXES....ccvrererireecirereinresimsessnsrarmrenemrsneans $- $8,038 $- $- $20,451
Charges fol services...........cccurvermmeecreveeenns - _ R - 3,267 82 -
Fines and forfeifs............ccovonecivimnn o - - - 58 -
Intergovernmental revenue.........cccoceveeenene 47,561 24,348 - 14,658 14,445
Miscellansous revenue.........ccooccormmemreeee. _ - 1,107 51 165 3,377
Total revenues.............cccccoecerirecicrenne 47 561 33,491 3,318 14,963 38,273
Expenditures
Current:
Legislative and executive.............coccoener e - - 3,247 - -
Judicial........oocia - - - - -
Public safety...........ccccomivimiininiininnes - - - - -
Public WOrKS.........ccoenei e nnerine e - - - 17,015 -
Health.....cve s, - 33,149 - - -
Human senvices..........c.vvvveevrmecirnscnenensens 49 607 - - - 30,084
Conservation and recreation...........ccocevem - - - - -
Miscellaneous.........cooevieeemeecceeeeeceee - - - i - - -
Total expenditures.........eeeceeecvncrnnn. - 49 807 33,149 3,247 17,015 30,084
Excess revenue over (under)
OXPONCIIUIOS. ...o.ceeeeiaree e {2,046) 342 71 (2,052) 8,179
Other financing sources {uses):
Operating transfers in............cc.o.ce.. oo 3,200 - - - -
Operating transfers (out)..........cccecenemeae - - - (111) -
Total other financing : -
SOUICOS (LUSOS)..ceeeseecrrrrainrsarnsrnrssnssnns 3,200 0 0 (111} 0
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses................. 1,154 342 71 (2,163) 8,178
Fund balance at beginning
of Year. . ..o e 9,176 6,871 1,813 7,288 12,467
Fund balance at end of year...................... $10,330 $7.213 $1.884 $5,136 $20,848
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Child Other
Board of Emergency Emergency Support Special
Mental Medical Telephone Zoo Enforcement Revenue
Retardation Services System Operating Agency Funds Tofal

$20,839 - $4,204 $4,208 $- $5,306 $63,144
8 - - - 1,403 6,071 10,831

- - - - - 78 138
6,553 - - - 7,726 21,265 136,554
6,835 8 2 1 94 897 12,537
34,335 8 4,206 4,207 9,223 33,617 223202

- - - - - 8,091 11,338

- - - - 10,820 2,803 13,623

- 8,207 1,292 - - 7,352 16,851

- - - - - (45) 16,970
35,485 - - - - 11,653 80,287

- - - - - 1,455 81,156

- - - 4207 - 1 4,208

- - - - - 3,673 3,673
35,485 8,207 1,292 4,207 10,820 34,083 228,106
{1,150) (8,199) 2914 0 {1,597) (1,368) (4,904)

- 7,600 - - - 1780 12,580
- - (120) _- - (147) {378)

0 7.600 (120) 0 0 1,633 12,202

{1,150} {599) 2,794 ¢ {1,597) 267 7,288
13,803 1,733 4072 137 _4670 10,521 72562
512,653 $1,134 $6,866 $137 $3,073 $10,788 $70.860




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO"
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL.-
{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

PUBLIC ASSISTANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:
Intergovemmental revenue................... S rassrernennnne

TOlal FOVBIIUBS. . ... ereeer e eeeeamn e s nsnemans

Expenditures:
Current
Human services
Personal Services.............cceiece e e ceesemsnasnannns
Materials and sUPPles...........cccoeveecrimn s e i
Charges and 88nVCes............cccccrccineen,
Capital outlay and equipment.............covvvvirrienes

Total expenditures. ... veevececereeecrerinreine
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....

Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in..........ccooooeee. T,

Total other Fnancing SOUICES..........occeeeeeeeeeeeeen -

Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures..........cuwcveeveerecesenismen -

Fund balance at beginning of year..........covooee i
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...........coeoeeeeene
Fund balance atend of year...........cccoeeaee

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
$309,755 $47 556 $7,801
39,755 47 556 7,801
24,471 24,252 219
621 551 70
25,088 23,766 1,323
418 371 48
50,600 48,840 1,660
(10,845) (1,384) 9,461
3,200 3,200 0
3,200 3,200 0
(7.645) 1,818 9,461
11,510 11,510 0
965 865 0
$4,830 $14,291 $9,461
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TBXES..cerrrneremrnnans - : $8,031 $8,002 {$29)
intergovernmental revenue......... —_ 25735 24,284 {1,451)
Miscellaneous revenue.........-....- 1,300 1,108 {184)
Total revenues........... e - 35,066 33,382 (1,674)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal services..... ; — 989 €88 301
Materials and supplies.........cceveesermevececrnnses 35 23 12
Charges and services........... ) 40,820 40,624 196
Capital outiay and equipment....coer e ) 18 ) 45
Total expenditures..... : 41 807 41,353 554
Excess of ravenues over (undaer) expenditurss.... (8,841) (7,961) (1,120)
Fund balance at beginning of vear.......ccrccmveercernnns N 1,485 1,485 a
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......c.ooovocee.. 5,346 ) 5,346 0
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year.....vveeeeseerceennens - _$0 {$1,120) ($1,120}
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
REAI. ESTATE ASSESSMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for serviees.. .....ccecrrarrans . . $3,180 $3,267 $87
Miscellanecus revenue...........oocccvmvesrcermr e creommmraerens - 50 . 50 0
TOIA FOVEIMUBS. ... oo st mewne e 3,230 3,317 87
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal services.............. 2,246 2,071 175
Materials and SUDPIES.......ccevsrmrsemermarsemrrrrrcvveirnn 62 48 13
Charges and Services..........cccuarerrreeerrceercrmmmrrerrees 980 829 161
Capital outlay and equipment.........c..cccoeerenennne. 505 489 16
Total @xpenditlres. ..........o eeereeeeeeesesssrsrssmseecsee. 3,803 3,438 365
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (573} {(121) 452
Fund balance at beginning of year...............ccnreceeeene 1,538 1,539 ¢]
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...........c.coieeeeee. 412 412 0
Fund balance at end of year........ccccvrecrrrerrrraceccinns $1,378 $1,830 $452

— 80 -



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MOTOR VEHICLE and GAS TAX - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabie}
Revenues: )
Charges for SEMVICES..........ccivie e e e ereme e $75 582 §7
Fines and forfeits............cooeiniim e 55 : 54 (1)
Intergovernmental revenue...........cceeeeiieeceecerevee e 15,680 15,138 (542)
Miscellaneous revenUe..............coev e evcrrsmersrer e cecees a5 152 57
TOIal FOVBNLBS........ceeeveeeeeeeee e v cenrs e e eneen eaee 15,805 15,426 (479)
Expenditures:
Current;
Public works
Personal 8ervices. ... vcire e 5,467 4,897 470
Materials and supplies.......cccoccvcrmvrrrereeressvarmns 880 711 169
Charges and Services...........cccooveieivicccincricrnens 16,094 13,848 2,148
Capital outlay and equipment.................cccooeieees 801 604 197
Total expenditlres............c..cccovccveeves v e e e 23,242 20,260 2,982
Excess of revenugs over (under) expanditures.... (7,337) (4,834) 2,503
Fund batance at beginning of year........c........cocoeev e 5,461 5,481 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............ccoceinne 1,876 1,876 0
Fund balance at end of Year..........coccooevevenneece s $0 $2,503 $2,503
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CHILDREN SERVICES BOARD - SPECIAL. REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget ~ __Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TBXES....cieeeerercnrssrvnresreresnsessrssrssnesaeseesssrreeseeseneneorenee — . 919,847 $20,424 $577
Intergovernmental revenue.............ccc.oeeeerececeneerrece 11,603 13,839 2,236
Miscellaneous FeVENUE. ..o crearasmrmsmraeeraseenees 3,485 3,132 (353)
TOtal FOVEBNLIBS. .......ooeereeeeeeeeeeceeeeereveevemmr e b er 34,935 37,395 2,460
Expenditures:
Current;
Human services
Personal SerVICES. ... ... iuusns s xnsnsixmsasninssnsssnsnssss_ 17,983 16,658 1,325
Materials and supplies........ccoeee v e 945 758 187
Charges and Services..............cocercnicnnsresennn 14,273 . 13608 665
Capital outlay and equipment............c.cco o mrsrerre. 817 374 243
Total @xpendiflireS...........ocriovo o e ereermmanrecarsoammeereee 33,818 31,398 2420
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 1,117 5,897 4,880
Fund balance at beginning of year..........cc.c.ocoveeieeee. 12,188 12,188 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.............ccccor e 893 ' 803 . 0
Fund balance atend of year...........cocevveeeeeenivcerinnens $14,198 $19,078 $4,880
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
BOARD OF MENTAL RETARDATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: ) )
TAXES.coenceerrae e emen e eennneene . $20,101 $20,912 $811
Charges for SEIVICES........c.corvr i cecrrre e erererm e oerrenr — . 74 8 (686)
Intergovernmental revenue.........cco e cereve e e eerecteneeeen 5,836 8,211 275
Miscellaneous TEeVENUER...............cceruremeeeramesssemsmmenmnnns - 5,656 5,840 1,184
Total revenues..................... 31,767 33,871 2,204
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal Sernvices... ..o vvveeevineemaas . 28,018 27,365 654
Materials and sUPPies........ccoceeeeececeeere e reevenees 1,114 a74 140
Charges and SemviGes..........uveevueeerrmsmssesreeraiasnnn 8,889 7,657 1,232
Capital outlay and equipment..........ccocrereeeciereees 1,443 1}{;39 4
Total expenditures........comweeeeereen . _..39,485 37,435 2,030
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (7,698) (3,464) 4234
Fund balance at beginning of year..........cccooieeinnne 11,780 11,780 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............coecveeeee 1,908 1,808 0
Fund balance at end of year..........cocecvecrcversscrrmcs . - $5,8890 $10.224 $4.234
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue...............ccoocevevereecrceerecveenns $6 58 $2
Total revenues.................ooeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeee. 6 8 2
Expenditures;
Current:
Public Safety
Personal services........... v iaenamsnns aamnannmmnnans 1,197 1,166 31
Materials and supplies............cccoo oo 529 479 50
Charges and SenviCes.......c...coeerererveecrersessraneniens 7,964 7,815 149
Capital outlay and equipment..............cccovmeriieen 432 241 - 191
Total expendilires. ... ceeceee s cnvensecer s vnnarsn, 10,122 9,701 421
Excess of ravenues over (Under) expenditures.... (10,118) (9,693) 423
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers iN......cccccovciciniicenieiiii i 7,600 7.600 4]
Total other inancing SOUICES..........cuwimeisscesne.s 7,600 7,600 0
Exceass of revenueas and other financing sources

over (under) expenditlires............cccouvcvvvvvssarecrns (2,516) (2,093) 423
Fund balance at beginning of year...............ccccceeeeeveeee 1,140 1,140 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............cccoeveee 1,744 1,744 0
Fund balance at end of year........ e $368 $791 $423




SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES .

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{Amounts in 000's)

Variance:;
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
Revenues:
TaXeS.....oocoeecererrereevanenes e — $4,004 $4,199 $195
Miscellaneous revenue.............. . o 2 2 0
Total revenuss.......... 4,008 4,201 185
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal senvices................ 626 363 283
Materials and supplies.......coevcc . 15 T -8
Charges and SenviCes.........cuoe v uerrcrcecemiaemmmmmncrmr 7,110 1,859 5,251
Capital outlay and equipment..........oeereecrncevaae. .. 87 35 52
Total exXpendifires. ... vcevrecscrorcmsmerom _ 7,838 2,264 5574
Excess of revenues over (undsr) expendifures.... (3,832) 1,037 5,769
Fund balance at beginning of year........cccoevveveevvceeen 3,199 3,199 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........co.oeoevcceee 839 8389 0
Fund balance at end of year......cooeeeiiecreme—n - $208 $5,975 $5,769
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

Z0O0O OPERATING - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:
Taxes.........o....

Miscellanecus revenue.............. -

Tolal rEYEIMIES. ...oooeeeeeeeevereerimneememaes

Expenditures:
Current:
Conservation and Recreation

Charges and SerViCeS. ..u...cove oo e

Excass of revenues over (under) expenditures....

Fund balance at beginning of year............cooonvecne,
Fund balance at end of year..........cccoveveevevierrcvrrne s

— 86 —

Variance:

Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

. $4,029 $4,200 $171
452 2 (450)
_. 4,481 4,202 (279}
4 481 4,208 273
4,481 4,208 273
0 (8) {8)

38 38 0
$38 $32 {$6)




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT AGENCY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for SeIVICES.......ccccormrirr e e $1,428 $1,408 ($19)
Intergovernmental FeVENUR.......cc.cocves e e sinserare v vemeas 89,018 7,726 (1,292)
Miscellaneous revenue.............. e 40 R - ¢ 50
Tofal reventes........evee.. 10,486 9,225 (1,261)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Judicial
Personal Semvices......o e e 8,632 7,966 ~ b&6
Materials and supplies...... 533 470 83
Charges and senites. ... cevnvvcoeerveceservmememe . 2,017 2,576 141
Capital outlay and equipment..........coccoereemrveemes 82 87 15
Total 8XPenIitUr8S. . .....coevveevireeveceereeeccrsrerecemammsmees 11,864 41,079 785
Excass of raevenues over (under) expendifures........ (1,378) {1,854) (478)
Fund balance at beginning of Year.......c..ceveeceemreecssenvacrs - 4,991 4,891 o
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............cocceeevveiees 110 110 0
Fund balance at end of year.............ccooveeeereeeeeeverer e $3.723 $3,247 {$476)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DOG AND KENNEL - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
Revenues:

Charges for BeMViCES........ccieieriirrrree e e es s e s = £922 $918 ($4)

Fines and forfeits... ... 57 54 3

Miscellaneous revenue...............ccoceirin e mreere 160 147 {13)
TOLAI FOVBIILIBS. ........cocveeeeeeeeeeeeeeevesressrs vnesmmssanene 1,139 1,119 (20)

Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Personal SenICes..........ccciivimremreereeinsrensersoreeecniens 1,004 830 74
. Materials and sURPIies. ... ccrmrcns s 104 101 3
Charges and ServiCes..........uuceircnrinrenreeimarenssnnn 205 189 16
Capital outlay and equipment..........cccconnnie 10 9 1
Total @XPONAHUIES........ccceeeeereeareerrems s rmsmonrmsnsnnn, 1,323 1,228 g4
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (184) (110y 74
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in........ccccocvenisi s 158 - (158}
Total other financing SOUMCeS..........covvvveerivvenrncnnn. 158 Q B {158)
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expenditires. ..........ccocoreeevevernnes {26) (110) (84)
Fund balance at beginning of year..............ccoereeeen. 107 107 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............... S 25 25 0
Fund balance at end of year...........coeocmmnmnrncrnens 3108 $22 ] _ ($84)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
HOTEL LODGING TAX - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance;
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: o )
TaXeS...oooeeeecrae e $3,800 $3.814 $14
Total reVenUES...........c.oeeeeveecereeveeeerrnnesann 3,800 3,814 14
Expenditures:
Current:
Miscellaneous
Charges and SENVICES. ... v crrecesias s essseninens 3,700 3,665 35
Total expendiures.......ccocoveeeeveeeeveceeeceveeeeeeeeeee .~ .- 3,700 3,685 _35
Excess of revenues over (Under) expenditures.... 100 149 49
Fund baiance at beginning of year.......c.ovceencvvcenvvrmeas - - - - 0
Fund balance at end of Year.........ccccoouveemeremmerecrreseaces $100 $149 $48
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LITTER CONTROL - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..............coocsevreeeecmmernmmrenn. $- $- $0
Total revenues.............. — - 0 o 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Charges and SeiviCeS......c.c.cccvvrverrcmmeererrnonsmmnmnres - - 0
Total oxXpendilres. .........ccoivvcvvrieirers nnesssssasens 0 0 0
Excess of revenues over (under) expandifures.... a 0 1]
Fund balance at beginning of year.........ccccvvemvrnvvnsnen 3 3 0
Fund balance atend of year...........ccccocevevvmmseonre . $3 $3 $0
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

{(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: )
Intergovernmental [EVENUES.... ..o erere e e amnronmeee . %- $4,206 $4,296
Miscellaneous reVenUe. . ...c..ccc.v-eeeconmumrreemmmmssaannn . 12,000 99 L'l 901L
Total revenues............. 12,000 4,395 {7, 605)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive
Personal ServiCes. ... oo 208 150 56
Materials and suUpplies.. ..o 254 12 242
Charges and SemviCes........ o cumemssorssae e 2,112 1,559 553
Capital oullay and equipment........cooeocoemiece 594 343 251
Total legisiative and executive......ccooceereennenn. 3,166 2,084 1,102
Judicial
Personal SEIVICES. ... ..o ccue e ereme et . 1,012 511 401
Materials and supplies.... S 17 12 5
Charges and services.. e s 2,430 1678 752
Capital outiay and equxpment eerrmeaammmnma _476 _ 130 346
TOta] JUICIR.....osrereoer oo 3035 2,431 1,504
Public safety
faterials and supplies.... et er e nasnerr e 19 - 19
Charges and services... vretrramaanner s s | s 685 635 50
Capital outlay and eqmpment emveenms e 2 2 0
Tolal public safety....... - 706 637 68
Miscellaneous
Charges and SeIviCes..........cv e nmnoee - .18 3 7
Total miscellansous............... . — . _._ 15 8 7
Conservation & recreation
Charges and services.............. , Rk - 11
Tofal conservation & recreation........cceveecarescn 11 0 11
Total expandifures......... _ 7,833 5,140 2693
Excess of revenues over (Under) expenditures.... 4,167 {745) (4,912)

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL- (continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budgef Actual {Unfavorable)
Other financing (uses):
Operating transfers in...........cccoenisen consmame s $- $302 $302
Operating transfers (OUt)...........cocoev e, . {4,733) {102) 4631
Total other financing sources (USes)..................... (4,733) 200 4933
Excess of revenues and other financing sources
over (undsr) expenditures and other
TINGRICHIG UBBS.......oooeeeeservssesinssnsans st nmssenmmesmmnnom . (566) (545) 21
Fund balance at beginning of year............ 384 394 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated v 1,207 1,207 0
Fund balance atend of year.........ccco oo $1,035 $1,056 $21
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenue ... $180 $198 $16

MiscellaneouUs FeVeNUEe... ... ..o e ranrecamecermaromres . 15 15 ) 7 0
Total reventies............c.... T 185 211 16

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal Services..........ocoenees - 244 237 7
Materials and sUPPHES.........cco v ccomrarsercemnnsrrsenesen . 9 7 2
Charges and sepvices............. s eamymnnn. 78 41 37
Capital pulay and equipment.........oooieiiiieeaes 4 2 2
Totaf expanditures............ . 335 287 48
Excess of revenues over (under) expendifures.... {140) {76} 64
Other financing sources:

Operating fransfers in.........coeeecieeeecnies SR 136 93 38
Total other financing SOUICOSs. ......u v eeaaenssensnnes 138 28 38
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expendifures........cueecveeureceeeeramee ) {4) 22 28
Fund balance at beginning of year......coceeevveern S— 3z 3R 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.........oceveceieeee 4 4 0
Fund balance af end of year........ . $32 " %58 $26
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

MARRIAGE LICENSE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Charges for SeMVICES. ..........oei e es e i b e

TOIB FOVBIMUBS........eeooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e ser e msnnrimmne

Expenditures:
Cutrent:
Health

Charges and ServiCes.......cc.vvvr e v mercercerescmmrmnen.

Total 6xpenditures.............c.ccvimiisirvrs sosmsrsnmmrnnsnen
Excess of revenues over (under) expendituras.,.,

Fund balance at beginning of year.............cccv i eene. .
Fund balance at end of year...........cccocoeosennicesievisicnie

—_ 94 —

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$200 $209 $9
200 209 4]
250 200 50
250 200 50
{50} 9 59
106 106 0
$56 $115 $59




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CORONER'S LAB FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _{Unfavorable}
Revenues:
Charges for §erviCes... ... ivrs e $212 $317 $105
Tolal revenuss............cowweeee... - 212 317 105
Expenditures:
Current,
Health
Materizls and supplies.............. .. 37 26 ’ 11
Charges and services............... 149 53 96
Capital outlay and equipment.............cccecceereerseven 72 40 32
Total expendifires...........ooevemmeensvsscrereeceeemeen 258 119 i 139
Exceass of reveriues over (under) expendtures.... (48) 198 244
Fund balance at beginning of vear............ceevveceaemn 137 137 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...........cccoeveeveeen 53 53 0
Fund balance at end of year............ . 5144 $388 $244




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

LAW ENFORCEMENT DRUG FUND- SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Fines and forfeits..........c.ccovvirerrereeee e e e e evrrermree -

TOtal revenues...........cccccovvvececeres e e verennnes
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Charges and SeIVICES..........coooeee e
Total expenditires...................vcooreeemmesrmsrcsmscen

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....

Fund balance at beginning of year............ccorervrrvvveenns
Fund balance atend of year........ccccceevevcvvcrcsnnrnnns

— 96 —

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$25 $10 ($15)
25 10 (15)
25 25
25 1] 25
0 10 10
4 4 0
$4 $14 $10




SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

DELINQUENT REAL ESTATE TAX AND ASSESSMENT
COLLECTION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000°’s)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budgef Actuat {Unfavorable)
Revenues: ' '
Charges for services...........cue..e $1,000 $1,324 $324
MiscellaneoUus reVENUE. ... ......coocvccrremrrscerrees e __B00 _ 445 (155}
TOtal FEVEINUEBS.......ccvereeeeeeeeaereeenemerersmerereaeeememonmn. 1,600 1,769 169
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legisiative and executive
Personal senvices. ..o reeeeneccce e 888 924 64
Charges and Services............cour oo 85 37 48
Materials and SUPPIES...........cocvereceeceercacerermmsrme 703 584 119
Capital outtay and equipment............i 33 19 14
Total expenditures............... _ 1,809 1,564 245
Excess of revenues over (under) expendifures.... (208) 205 414
Fund balance at beginning of year..........ccoovecmvrees 302 302 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........c.ccccceeeennes 23 23 0
Fund balance at end of Year............ceeruueus reessmeermrsssmemne $116 $530 $414
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

TAX INSTALLMENT PAYMENT PLAN - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

{(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue...............

Total revenues.........ceeeeeeeerns

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Legislative and executive

Materials and supplies..........cceeo e ninene
Charges and SeiviCes............ccveerermsmererrrrvnessesen
Capital outlays and equipment. ... cevenvecvnes

Total expenditures..................

Excass of revenues over (under} expendiures....
Fund balance at beginning of vear...........cccereevcnceres

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.............c.coveens
Fund balance at end of year............... oo cerrercrrrrrerme

— 98 —

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$50 $49 {$1)
50 49 (1)
14 7 7
8 3 5
20 13 7
42 23 19
8 25 18
110 110 0
2 L2 8]
$120 $138 $18




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL.-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY PLANNING FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:

Revised fFavorable
Budget Actual _{Unfavorable)
Revenues: )
Intergovernmental revenue......... - $30 , $42 $12
Miscellaneous revehue............. . 10 .8 {4
Total revenuss........... : . 40 . 48 8
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Materials and supplies......... 1 - 1
Charges and semvices...........eo v vemsmememmrne - e 114 82 22
Capital outlays and equipment....ceonccomnecam— . . 3 - 3
Total expenditures........... —_— _ 118 92 26
Excess of revenues over (Under) expenditures.... (78} (44} 34
Fund balance at beginning of year........ccovcerreerecscrnes 80 80 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated. ........occeeeeee. .3 3 - 0
Fund halance at end of year........... - . %5 £35 - 534
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL.-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

INDIGENT GUARDIANSHIP - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Miscellaneous revenue..............veurmeeee e ee s oo e s

TOLAI FOVBIMUBS. ..o eceerviersessesrsivesesresessessssmsresins

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Judicial

Charges and SeMVICES.........cccoveeereeeemrevimieceeeeeeeen
Tofal @XpaNfUrSS..........ccveieevaieeiiivsssiisivsicnneeeenrinn
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....

Fund balance at beginning of year..........cccccoccreevenn.

Prior year encumbrances appropriated...........ccccco..oc...
Fund balance at end of year..........ccoccevires e ceorminnnens

— 100 —

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$85 $66 $19)
85 86 (19)
86 64 22
86 64 22
&) 2 3
54 54 4]
1 1 0
$54 $57 $3




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES BOARD - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental reVeNUEe........ccccccvvvevrvvereecenrveranemroees

Total revernues............c.coceeeevees

Expenditures:
Current:
Health

Personal SeIVICES.......coicirr s ser v e smareeree

Materials and supplies........cccvureveereeees
Charges and ServiCes............cvrrcrcrerrvnes

Capital outlay and equipment............cccceecoociieenee

Total expenditures...........ccceveveviursvrereererenen

Excess of revenuss over (Under) expenditures....

Fund balance (deficit) at beginning of year...
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.........

Fund balance (deficit) atend of year...........cccverceeeeeee

— 101 -

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _{(Unfavorable)
$8,035 $6,837 ($1,198)
8,035 6,837 (1,198)
362 356 8
13 11 2
7,631 7.612 18
3 2 1
8,009 _7,981 28
28 (1,144) {1,170)
{2,059) (2,059) 0
2,033 _2,033 1]
$0 ($1,170) (81,170




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
COMMUNITY MR/RES SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual . {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..........covcsecreer e -$4 458 $3,487 ($971)
Total revenues......... i 4,458 3,487 (971)
Expenditures:
Current;
Health
Charges and semvices......... 4504 4334 170
Total expenditures. 4,504 _ 4334 ) 170
Excess of revenuas over (under) expendiures.... (486) (847} {801}
Fund balance at beginning of year.........ccooceeevereeecems 465 465 0
Prior year encumbrances appropiiated.............— .o — 48 48 5 D
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year. ......cvocrevicecnenn $465 ($338) ($801)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

SENIOR SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget __Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: o '
TEKES... crenrsseeesrmerssrreanesees i $1,532 $1,454 (378)
Miscellaneous revenue............ e B8 - {88}
Total revenues.................... 1,600 1,454 (146)
Expenditures:
Current;
Human services
Charges and SEIVICES...... .o miererevereetesnecmssssnnnes. 1,600 1,454 146
Total expenditures............ccoowveeesermmmeeeeereee . 1,600 1,454 146
Excess of revanuas over (under) expenditures.... C 0 0
Fund balance at beginning of year.........ccoeeeeecrseeeeee 11 11 0]
Fund balance at end of Year. ... ieervremreremiecrrennas $11 $11 30

— 103 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Charges for SeIVICES......cccr e s cem v resirninne— $50 $4 ($46)

Intergovernmental revenue............ 10 $158 148

Miscellaneous revenue... ... e ecrcciesince e e smaean 30 o 4 _ (26)
TOtal FEVANUBS..........coeceeiieieneeev e e emssierrsamen 80 167 77

Expenditures:
Current;
General government
Legisiative and executive
Personal services........ccccoccenreeees . 325 317 8
Materials and SUPPHES........cc.ooocrre oo e - 4 4 0
Charges and semvices.......c..coovvvvvcccevecimssmecesrssnsme - - - - 1,751 1,726 25
Total @xpanditures...........c.eeeeeeeer e oo 2,080 2,047 . 33
Excass of revenues over (under) expenditures.... {1,980) (1,880) 110
Other financing sources:

Operating transfers in........cooocoer e e 1,380 1,380 L 0
Total other financing sOUrces.........ccoeuveveereeaee 1,380 1,380 0
Excess of revenues and other financing sources

over (under) expendilures and other uses.......... (610) (500) 110
Fund balance at beginning of vear.....cc..ooooceriecimmcecenens 555 555 0
Prior year encurnbrances appropriagted...............co.ceees 491 491 18
Fund balance at end of Year.......c.....ceoecceeemrcesmaivcmcrnnans $436 $546 $110
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

INDIGENT DRIVERS FUND - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

{Amounts in 000's)

Revenhues:
Fines and forfeits..........

Total revenues........

Expenditures:
Current;
Judicial
Charges and ServiCes........... oo ecvrvee e meerarmecmrca -

Total expenditures.............
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures,...

Fund balance at beginning of year..........cccvvvverermcennens
Fund balance at end of year......

— 105 —

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfa_yorable)
$10 $14 $4
10 14 4
10 - 10
10 0 10
4] 14 14
66 G5 8]
$66 $80 $14




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MV ENFORCEMENT AND EDUCATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for services............. $20 $8 {$12)
Total revenues..........ccccccceenee l 20 8 (12)
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial
Charges and SEIVICES........ccorverreervirrnirerenrssimrensns 20 2 18
Total axpendifires...........ccvcevevoevoneesmcenecoe s cene 20 2 18
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... 0 6 6
Fund balance at beginning of year ... .28 26 0
Fund balance atend of year.. ... eeccrecen 526 $32 $6
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

BUILDING REGULATIONS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavarable)
Revenues: N
Charges for services........ _ $1,072 $1,3768 $304
Totaf revenues................... __ 1,072 1,376 304
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative and executive
Personal services...........cc.... 931 923 8
Materials and supplies.........ocovoerrarreecercecmneee - 24 22 2
Charges and setvices.............. -_— 222 188 34
Capital outiay and equipment.......ccovececrevcmmecme 5 3 2
Total expenditures................... 1,182 1,138 48
Excess of revernues over (under) expenditures.... {110} 240 330
Fund balance at beginning of year.........coocreeeeeeen . 768 768 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........cooemeeeren . 5 ' 5 0
Fund balance at end of Year..........cc.oureesecosseeecermsmeeren $663 $1,013 $350
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CERTIFICATE OF TITLE ADMINISTRATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

{(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _{Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for SeIVICES. ............cccuvevreeereeseeneene e maemsrmerense $1,375 $1,491 851186
TOlBI FBVOINUBS............ooviireiier s s erssvervaras emmmmmmnnmr e 1,375 1,491 1186
Expenditures:
Current:
Legisiative and executive
Personal SeIVICES.........cocccvi o ieerrsssresrenersrvecesann . 1,187 1,171 16
Materials and supplies... 58 54 4
Charges and Services.......c.cceeeeveeveevereerrneercesnes 523 380 143.
Capital outlay and equipment................... 38 27 g
Total @xpenditures..............coveeevemrercmeeersseemmmemes oo 1,804 1,632 172
Excess of ravenues over (under) expenditures.... (429) {(141) 288
Fund balance at beginning of vear................ccconevinien 1,308 1,308 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........c.ccceeoenn. " 15 15 0
Fund balance at end of year.......cccoeevvere e cereerecreees $894 $1.182 $288
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL.-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

RECORDER EQUIPMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

{Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:
Charges for SemViCes........ccco v ieievcee v ee e reeeee s

Total F@VOINUBS. .........coeveevvereememrs e e cmsmsemnn

Expenditures:
General government:
Legislative and executive
Materials and supplies
Charges and services............

Capital outlays and equipment....................... o

Total expPenNdittres. ..c.c.cvveveeeeeeeeecerssrree e e eemme
Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures....
Fund balance at beginning of year............cccovveeeeccnne.

Prior year encumbrance appropriated.............ccooee e
Fund balance atend of year.............cc oo erececraveer e
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Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$215 $272 $57
215 272 57
5 3 2
78 40 38
2539 58 200
342 102 240
{(127) 170 297
485 465 0
17 17 8]
$355 $652 5297




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PROBATION SERVICE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for SBIVICES.............c.ccveevirinne e nresnersenasses $80 $120 $40
TOlA POVOIILIGS......ccecrivrsrerassirecmasiscaeasnsrienmsscamsnsins. 80 120 40
Expenditures:
Current:
Judigcial
Charges and ServiCes...........c.ccoccvrrerrnererorrrmansrnns 101 . 58 43
Capital outlays and equipment............................ 3 2 . 1
Total @xXpendiflres................cwmmsissnssssiamsssssas 104 60 44
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (24) 60 84
Fund balance at beginning of year...........ccccooiicmrrens 159 159 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.........cccocceevinriinnes 4 4 4]
Fund balance at end of year..........ccococeeeen e e _ $139 $223 84
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

JUVENILE FELONY CARE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

{Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
Revenues:
intergovernmental revenue............ $1,571 $2.225 $654
Total revenues......... - 1,571 2,225 654
Expenditures:
Current;
Public safety
Personal services......... 411 387 24
Materials and SUPPHRES.........coe e cecrmvmen s seemeeemssnen 1 - 1
Charges and SEIVICES...........ccccrmmmmrrerereemarrsenen - 1,535 _1,358 177
Total expenditures.................. 1,947 1745 202
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (376) 480 856
Fund balance at beginning of year. ..o vcreccrenmernen 1,452 1,452 o
Prior year encumbrances appropriated..........cccececenerne 278 278 _ 0
Fund balance at end of year......... ~ $1,354 $2,210 ~ $856
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUVENILE TREATMENT CENTER - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{Amounts in 000's)

Variance;
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _{Unfavorable)
Revenues: o
Intergovernmental revenue... $1,933 $1,328 7 ($605)
Totaf revenues... .. 1833 - 1,328 _ (605)
Expenditures:
Current;
Public safety
Personal services........ccve..s 1,612 1,578 34
Matetials and supphlies.......cccooeueees 141 128 13
Charges and services....... 234 222 12
Capital outlays and Equipment............c.ocvveemmveeees 2 2 0
Total expanditures........... " _. 1889 1 930 59
Excass of revenues over (under) expenditures.... (56) (602) (546)
Fund balance at beginning of vear.............ccoccevevereecnemn 189 189 , 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........c.ccocveereene. . 58 __56 0
Fund balance (deficit) atend of year. ... $189 ($357) ($548)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FELONY DIVERSION PROGRAM - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{Amounts in 000's)

Vatiance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _{Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenue..... 1,150 g04 {248)
Total revenues.................... 1,150 904 (246)
Expendifures:
Current:
General government
Judicial
Personal services................... 923 754 169
Materials and supplies..........cccccoieecvmeccrrsneecimee 6 4 2
Charges and SeIVICES..........ccccreeeemerrrecrmrmsmenmemmanes 242 169 T3
Capital cutlay and equipmeit.......coo oo 5 1 4
Total expenditures....... 1,176 928 248
Excess of revaenues over (Under) expendiiures........ (26} (24) 2
Fund balance at beginning of year........cororeeereee. 24 24 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated. ... meeccrmimnnes - 7 7 0
Fund balance at end of year........... $5 $7 §2
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CORRECTIONAL TREATMENT FACILITY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental FEVENUE.......c.cecesenssr i nssarrrssmsrmens

TOLal FOVEITUBS........ccvveevrensrsesseerearererrmrmmeneeneomrrrires —

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Personal services........ S

Materials and supphas
Charges and SBIVICES......cveeroeeecemreearemecemaeeaceermres
Capital outlays and equipment..................c.c.oeee
Total @XPEIaRUIES. .......ccvreeeeeereerresreeaerermeerereemrrereee
Excsss of revenues over (Under) expenditures....
Fund balance at beginning of year............ccoovcreeeeeeen -

Prior year encumbrances appropriated............ccooevereeeas
Fund balance atend of year.................... erererenmrenaaare
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Variance:
Revised Favorable
Burdget Actual {Unfavorable)
$2 900 $2,0874 $74
2,800 2,974 74
2,167 2,164 3
87 48 19
736 651 85
38 28 10
3,008 2,891 117
(108) 83 191
85 a5 0
82 92 0
$70 $270 $191
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
December 31, 1999

Capital Projects Funds- Capital Projects funds account Permanent Zoo Improvements- To account for a
for financial resources o be used for the construction or county-wide property tax levy used for renovation and
acquisition of major capital facilittes (other than those construction of buildings, facilities and infrastructure for the
finances by proprietary funds and trust funds). The Toledo Zoo.
following are the Capital funds which Lucas County

operafes: Capital improvements- To account for renovation and

construction of county owned buildings and facilities, and
construction of special assessment projects.

— 116 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)
Permanent
Zoo Capital
improvement Improvements Total
Assetfs:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents......, $6 $4,564 $4,570
Pooled investments..... 37 27,241 27,278
Receivables {net of allowances for -
uncollectables)

Taxes........ 5,822 - 5,822

Due from other governments.. _ - 473 _ 74]3

Total assefs....... $5,965 $32278 $38,243
Liabifities:
Accounts payable, . $1,432 §1,432
Deferred revenue.......... 5,780 - 5,780
Notes payable............ - 5,820 5,820

Total liabilities....... R 5780 7,352 13,132
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances............ - 10,0886 10,098
Unreserved-undesignated.......... 185 14,830 15,015

Tofal fund balances....... 185 24928 25111

Total liabilities and fund balances.........eeeeeeeee.. $5,965 $32,278 $38,243
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LUCAS COUNTY, OQHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Permanent
Zoo Capital
Improvement Improvements Total
Revenues:
TAXES......oorrivrrsisrneirsriesstes s vesnrares . $5,705 - $5,706
Special a8SesSMeNntS...............ccveir e i r s e - 306 308
MiscellaneouUs reveNUE...............cceenevrersresiee s erscesseeseenrens 2 1,934 1,936
Tolal revenues...........c.veeomivereees 5,708 2,240 7,948
Expenditures
Current:
Capital outlay................o i e s 5,658 6,904 12,562
Debt service-
interest and fiscal charges..........cov e corercreree e oo e N - 155 155
Total @xpenditlres.................cceesivriinscerecovemeesrrwerrreeeree—— 5,658 7.059 12,717
Excass revenues over (under) expenditires..........cu-. 50 (4,819) {4,769)
Other financing sources:
Proceeds of DONAS................coo i - 535 535
Operating transfers in........... - 18,109 18,109
Operating transfers (Out)........cocveveiviiiicismsr e = . _(584) {584)
Total other FNancing SOUICES...........cou. s coommremmme - 0 18,060 18,060
Excess of raevenue and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other USes..................... 50 13,241 13,261
Fund balance at beginning of year..........o oo eeecrceeceerir - 135 11,685 11,820
Fund balance at end of year............o oo coc v s imnsrsie - $185 $24 926 $25,111
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PERMANENT ZOO IMPROVEMENT - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues; )
Taxes.....c..con. $6,496 $5,608 ($798)
Miscellaneous revenue... - - 2 2
Total revenues.... — 6,496 5,700 {796)
Expenditures:
Current;
Capital cutlay-
Construction confracts....... 6,406 5,658 _ 838
Total expenditures......... ) 6,498 5,658 _ 838
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures................ - -0 42 7 42
Fund balance at beginning of year..........c.cor e eeeemeommmaracns 0 0 0

Fund balance at end of year....... - ] $0 $42 $42
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL.-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Special 858eSSMeNtS. ... .ottt $- 53086 $306
Miscellaneous revenue...........c...ccoeveeciesseees e escomeemees ewren 28,504 1,996 (26,508)
TOLBI FOVONUBS. .....cosvsvisvseeisiissesssisssessssisssisssssssssssosissinsons 28,504 2,302 (26,202)
Expenditures:
Current;
Capital outlay-
Construction contracts.........coocoveeeeeeee e 31,033 17,824 13,209
Debt service
Principal retirement...........c.ccooiii st - 4,310 4,310 0
Interest and fiscal charges..........c.cocvremrccsrcevevvmonnenecnne 156 156 0
Total OXDONGIEUTES. .......coveeerrr s esrasearsseasees nsesessensmssssnensnses 35,499 22,280 13,208
Excess of reveniues over (under) expenditures.............. (6,995} (19,888) (12,993)
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of NOLES.........cccooc it - 5,922 5,822
Proceeds of bonds........cc.cocimiicie e - 535 535
Operating transfers iN.........occoeeeee e - 18,109 18,109
Operating transfers (Outh...........ccoomiciiieiics s (2,511) - 2,511
Total other financing sources (Uses)..........ccoeeeeeeeeenn... {(2.511) 24 566 27,077
Excess of revenue and other financing sources
over {under) expenditures and other uses..................... {9,506) 4578 14,084
Fund balance at beginning of year........c.cccevviiiverevesinsssnns .. 8,391 9,391 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........................... 8,750 8,750 0
Fundbalance atend of year..............ocooooieeeeeeeeeen, .- £8,635 $20,718 $14,084

- 120 —



This page left blank intentionally.

—- 21 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
December 31, 1999

Enterprise Funds- Enferprise funds account for
operations that are financed and operafed in a manner
similar to private business enferprises. The intent of Lucas
County is that the costs of providing services to the general
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges. The following are the Enter-
prise funds which Lucas County operales:

Sanitary Engineer- To account for the administrative
costs of operating the water supply system, wastewater
treatment system, and sewer sysiem.

Water Supply System- To account for the distribution of
treated water to individuals and commercial users of Lucas
County.

Wastewater Treatment- To account for wastewater
treatment services provided to the Sanitary Engineer, Cities
of Maumee and Sylvania, Village of Waterville, Sylvania
Township and other portions of Lucas County and portions
of Wood County.

Sewer System- To account for sanitary sewer services
provided to individuals and commercial users in Lucas
County and portions of Wood County.

Solid Waste- To account for the administration of solid
waste disposal county-wide.

Parking Facilities- To account for operation of parking
facilities.
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Combining Chart of Operating Revenues and Expenses

Enterprise Funds

Millions

Sanitary Engineer

Water Supply System

Wastewater Treaiment

Sewer System

Solid Waste

Parking Facilities {

[I Total Operating Revenues & Total Operating Expensés

[Year Ended December 31, 1992[

— 123 —



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Water
Sanitary Supply Wastewater Sewer
o Engineer System Treatment System
Assets:
Current assets-
Pooled cash and cash equivalents................... %146 $56 $300 $229
Pooled investments... - s ranreranmTre 71 . 336 1,841 1,366
Receivables (net of al[owances for
uncoliectables)
Accounts... areen retereeseerereerraennan 1,180 388 1,657 526
Pue from other governmems - 205 - 16
inventory: materials and supp!res - - 34 -
Total cumment assets...............cceeeeeeacrerveres 2,197 885 3,741 2137
Property, plant and equrpment—
Land... . 154 189 . 39 10
lLand rmprovements rbierersaressere e nrrerrnnne - 45,637 - 53,076
Buildings, structures and
IMPTOVEMENIS.....cccoceeceercervnremrsrmrevesererseesmmomen e ! 3,006 2,839 17,442 -
Furniture, fitures and equipment.............o.co.es 1,380 ) 1,641 8,248 -
Less: accumulated depreciation.........ccoeveermiees (1,723) (18,377) (11,608) {18,401)
Construction in progress.........cooceerrenveinieens - 636 - -
Total @SSefs........ereeeceereeeeeerpisrsinns $5,024 $33,570 $18,852 $36,822
Liabilities:
Current liabilities-
Accounts Payable.... $40 $66 $61 $12
Accrued wages and beneﬁts 366 - 163 -
Due to other funds... - - - -
Due to other governments ................................ - S - . 13 -
Matured interest payable.........c.cccccnmmrveerrrenne - 4 - -
Matured bonds payable..........coeeeviimreivescmnees. . . - ] 30 - -
Accrued interest payable..........crvcrerrmrareerees - A1 - -
Current porticn of long-term debt............ccoe.. _26 84 326 184
Total current Habilities. .........ccccoeeeverenenns 432 185 . 553 196
Obligations under capital [eases.........ccecvvirninne - - - : -
OWDA [oans payable...........ccceoveeroervererrererees 1,505 4,207 12,203 3,633
OPWC loans payable..............ccoorrrorrrerrmrinrens - - 233 125
Total liabilities. ... eeeececem ceeeereccrreerirreenes 1,937 4,382 12,989 3,954
Equity:
Contributed capital.............cco.oc e . - 25,228 4,055 38,510
Retained eamings (deficif) - unreserved ........... 3,087 2,950 1,818 (5,642)
Total fund @QUILY.............coovieereireconvecreeveraes 3,087 28178 5,873 32,868
Total lfabilities and fund equiity................... $5,024 $33,570 $18,862 $36 822
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Solid Parking
Waste Facilities Jotal
$23 378 %841
135 463 5,012
116 14 3,791
- - 221
- - .34
274 555 9,899
- - 402
- - 98,713
- - 23,287
298 - 12,577
(152} - (50,261)
- - .. B36
$420 $555 $85,253
$22 $0 $201
59 - 578
3 - 3
- - 13
- - 4
- - 30
- - 1
h - 820
84 0 1,450
- - 1]
- - 21,548
- - 358
84 0 23,356
- - 68,793
336 555 3,104
338 555 . 71,897
$420 $555 $95 253
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Water Waste-
Sanitary Supply Water Sewer
Engineer __ System _Treatment  _System
Operating revenues:
Charges for ServiCes......cc.cocrcrmcerranerans $2,890 3729 $4,083 $591
MiscellanaoUs........c.ccoveieieecreieeree 666 ) 603 - 1,198
Total operating revenuss........ R 3,556 1,332 4 083 1,789
Operating expenses:
Personal services......cccoevrvceieeveieceennens 2,340 - a54 -
Contract Services..........cocoeveveeeeiciienennces 203 ' 364 405 636
Materials and supplies........c.ccevcceienennes 258 56 303 17
Heat, light and power...........cccccveeennee. 27 287 480 70
Depreciation. .............ccovocieeiie s 240 i 1,236 569 1,338
Total operating expenses................. 3,068 1,943 271 2,082
Oparating incoms (IoSS)...c.cceveiverene- 487 (611) 1,372 (273)
Nonoberating revenues (expenses):
Interest and fiscal charges..................... (83) (296) (773} (275)
Total nonoperating revenues and
(BXPENSES)...occcevriesvseirrestvsresviresiireeans (93) {296) (773) (275)
Income (loss) before operating
IraNSIEIS.....coicceveeeiceiseieicirisesivsrsvesien 394 (807} 599 (548)
Cperating transferin.............cccecinieinens - 772 - -
Operating transfer (out).................ccl (23) - - -
Nef income (JOSS)......coovevecviiveccrcinnns 37 {135) 599 (548)
Depreciation on fixed assets acquired
by federal capital grants...............cccceveee - g 89 224
Increase (decrease) in refained
QEITUNGS ... cveeee et eeveaees o 3 (126) 688 (324)
Retained earnings (deficit)
at beginning of year..............ccoocoeeeeeee 2716 3,076 1,130 (5,318)
Retained earnings (deficit) at
end of Year. ..o e $3,087 $2,850 $1,818 ($5,642)
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Solid Parking
Waste Facilities Total
51,363 $249 $9,805
- - 2,467
1,363 249 12,372
566 - 3,860
ap4 55 2,467
45 - 680
- - 864
48 2 3,434
1,463 57 11,305
(100) 192 1,067
- - {1,437
0 - (1,437)
(100) 192 (370)
- - 772
- - (23)
{100) 182 3789
- - 322
{100) 182 701
436 363 2,403
$336 $555 $3,104
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Water Waste-
Sanitary Supply Water Sewer
_Engineer System Treatment System
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers...........ccoe.on. -$3,419 $1,301 $3,846 $1,769
Cash paid to suppliers.............cccccvcinieriann (489) {681) (1,224) (717}
Cash paid fo employees.... SR (2,353) - {872) -
Net cash provided by (uaed m)
operating activities... terraaererreren e ——— 577 620 1,650 1,052
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating transfers in... et rerrere - 772 - -
Operating transfers (out) S (23) - - -
Net cash provided by (used m) noncapltal
financing activities.....v oo (23} 772 0 0
GCash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Principal payments - bonds... - (155) - -
Principal payments - CWDA Ioans ............... (50) (161) (617) (319)
Principal payments - OPWC loans............... - - (14) (31)
Purchase of fixed assets (108) (638) {17 -
Interest paid.... - (93) (296) {773) (275)
Principal payments cap[tal lease ................. - - - - -
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities............cccocveees (252} (1,251) {1,421} (625)
Cash Flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investments............. . 5364 o8 51,476 $650
Payments for investments... S {655) (230) (1,758) {1,068)
Net cash provaded by (used ln) |rwesting
activities... (291) {132) ($283) ) (418)
Net increase (decrease)incash.................... 11 2 (54) 8
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1.......... 135 47 363 221
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31.... $146 556 $309 $229

— 128 —



Solid Parking
Waste Facilities Total
51,348 $280 $11,863
{934) (55) (4,100)
{558) - (3,883)
{144) 225 3,880
- - 772
- - {23)
0 0 749
- - {155)
- - {1,147
- - (45)
(28) - {793)
- - (1,437)
(10} - (19)
{38) 0 (3,587)
453 81 3,122
(312 . {288) (4313)
144 {207y (1,191}
(41} 18 (49)
64 60 890
323 $78 $841

- 128 — -



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
by (Used in) Operating Acfivities

Water Waste-
Sanitary Supply Water Sewer
_Engineer System Treatment System
Operating income (I0SS).......cv.vv . JR $487 ($611) $1,372 (3273}
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation expense...........cocceeivvienienimserirnrnns 240 1,238 569 1,339
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable.............cccce i (137) (35) (237) (20)
Due from other governments..............coeeenimnne 4 - -
Inventory.... - - {10) -
Increase (decrease) in operating llabmtnes'
Accounts payable.........occeece s 3 28 (39) &
Due to other governments ..................... e -. - 13 -
Accrued wages and benefits................ (13) - 18) -
Dueto otherfunds.........cveeeveeeieeeee oo (3) - - -
Total adjustments............coeoeeevivsiisecsseiecins 80 1,231 278 1,325
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activifias... $577 $620 $1,650 $1,052

Noncash capital and related
financing activities:

Enterprise funds received approximately $2.8 million of contributed fixed assets, (approximately $1.5 milion

to the Water Supply System, and $1.3 million fo the Sewer System.}
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Solid Parking
Waste Facilities Total
($100) $192 $1,067
48 2 3,434
(15) 3 {413}
- - 4
- - {10)
(83) - (87)
- - 13
8 - (23)
(2 - (5}
(44) 33 - 25813
{$144) §225 $3.880
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

SANITARY ENGINEER
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Operating revenues:
Charges for services...........ccoeeveeeeceeenee. - $2,898 $2,789 ($107)
MiISCEllANEOUS...........cconiceirircanns e e e e e e 320 631 311
Total operaling reVenuUBs............cveveeeeeereseerrmnereesesns 3218 3,420 204
Operating expenses:
Personal semnvices.........c.ceceeeenne. — . 2375 2,353 22
CONTACE SBIVICES. ......ccovmr ey sses s e 436 387 69
Materials and sUpplies..........coovcersvesovemrimem e 341 253 83
Capital outlay........cooccereevevnres mnemnne 137 126 11
Total operating 8Xpenses................oeeonssmsrmemeanss . 3,289 3,089 ) 180
Operating income (1088).............. B )] 321 394
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement............ — {51) (50) 1
Interest and fiscal Charges. ... i ss s smnnes (85) (93) 2
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)........... ereenans (148) {143) 3
Income (loss} bafore operating transfers....................... (219) 178 397
Operating transfers in.........c.cccoreverveens — - - 0
Net income (loss).......ccenn _— {219) 178 397
Retained earnings at beginning of year............cooverorenn. 582 562 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...............cccoceeninas 153 153 0
Retfained earnings at end of Year...........cccovvvrerrmsmasmsrsanans $496 $893 $397
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL -{(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM
' Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Operating revenues: -
Charges for services............oueeene . $638 $585 $56
Miscellaneous......... 3,625 804 {3,021)
Total operating revenues....... 4,264 1,299 (2,985)
Operating expenses:
Personal ServiCes........cccovcrnnerarerranns - - 0
Contract services........occecveeecenecans 3,575 806 2,769
Materials and supplies......cccoeearnrecne 3 23 8
Capital cutiay...... ~ - D
Total operafing expenses...... o 3,606 ___8es 2777
Operating income .......... 658 470 (188}
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement........... . {359) (316) 43
interest and fiscal charges................ ) {338} _(287) 41
Total nonoperating revenuas (8Xpenses)........ccceee. {B97) {813) 84
Incomae (foss) befare cperating transfers..........eccuv — (39) (143) (104)
Operating transfers in........ - 166 166
Net income (IsS).....cceeeceeeecens (39) 23 62
Retained earnings at beginning of year....ccoe e 90 g0 o]
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......cooceonervcenees 161 181 0
Retained earnings at end of year........ $212 $274 $62
continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Operating revenues:
Charges for sefvices..............
Miscellaneous............

Total operating revenuss............

Operating expenses:
Persconal services........... )
Contract setvices........
Materials and supplies.......... -
Capital outlay............... - -

Total operaling eXpeNSesS........c...ccoorceeevan e riin e

Operating income............

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement........
interest and fiscal charges............. \ .

Total nonopseraling revenuss (8Xpernsas)..........cccuvo.
Income (loss) before opsrating transfers...........c.ee...

Operating transfers in............

Net income (foss)............

Retained earnings at beginning of year..........ccocvvcveeecemman
Prior year encumbrances appropriated........coeeremieeeomnes
Retained eamings at end of year............ccccvreereee

e p———

WASTEWATER TREATMENT
Variance:
Revised Favorable

Budget Actual _{(Unfavorable)
$3,870 $3,849 {($21)
- = 1]
3,870 3,849 (21)
1,005 a73 32
1,144 1,044 100
434 357 T7

87 78 i1
2,670 2450 220
1,200 1,369 199

. (840) (631) 8
{780} {773) 17
{1,430) (1,404) 26
(230) (5) 225

- - 0
(230) )] 225
1,591 1,591 0
330 330 0
$1,681 $1.916 $225
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-{continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{(Amounts in 000's)

SEWER SYSTEM
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
Operating revenues:
Charges for SeIVICES. ...ocvioveevererrreecees e eme e s re smmmemermmresrmeene $160 $572 $412
MiscellaneauUs.........ccceeverieieinicencnennns . 1,310 1,199 (111)
Total operating reVeNUBS...........ccuervereemrs v e _ . 1,470 1,771 B 301
Operating expenses:
Personal SEIVICES...........oooocvvrurres oo eee e eren e e cemens - - -0
Contract Services. ......oocrvevvee e vennnenns 880 762 118
Materials and suUpplieS.........ovcce e - - o
Capital outlay. ... -+ - - . _ 0
Totaf operating eXpensSes. .....ccccevevevvvreieeceeeeeecrinn 880 762 118
Operating incCome.............eeeeeen- 580 1,008 - 418
Nonoperating revenues {expenses):
Principal retirement... ... e emrrreee . (366) (350) 16
Interest and fiscal Charges............. oo cerecieccree e - - (280) (276} 4
Total nonoperating revenues (@xpenses)..................... (646) (628) 20
Income (loss) before operating fransfers.............cccuvee (56) ] 383 439
Operating transfers N.........cocvvirerrererer s v s eneveremrenrereres . - - ) ] 0
NEEINCOME (I0SS).cviioiieeeiceceeeecvverrarecceranee e e ven s ae s smae (96} 383 - 438
Retained eamnings at beginning of vear..............cccoovvmcennes 1,152 . 1,152 o]
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............c.ccovveeerernres 15 18 0
Retained earnings at end of vear...........ccv e - %1112 $1.551 $439
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

SOLID WASTE FUND
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Operating revenues:
Charges for 8emviGes.........cocvceecen i imscssres s e $1,440 $1,348 ($92)
MISCEIANEOUS.....c.ceeeeiecreeierns e as e e st nssmmamnn o - - 0
Tolal operating revernes...........c.c.coveoreanencnsmsmsssosnmsnn—— 1,440 1,348 {82)
Operating expenses:
Personal BEIVICES......ccoeeieeerressereecemasvasseess e e sense nnns o s 569 556 13
[0aTaT1 6= o =t o) = TSR 1,062 1,035 27
Materials and SURPHES.....ccoiivir e errecer e et s e 24 20 4
Capital outay.............coce e s s s ———— 11 2] 2
Total operating @Xpenses...............coeeeeoeeecemsemsssemsemsessnns 1,666 1,620 46
Operating Income (TOSS)........ccvveeeeveeeeeeeeeereieeeeeeeier v (226} (272) - (46)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Principal refirement...........oooo e - - 0
interest and fiscal charges............ooooceeiiercceen e - - 0
Total nonoperating revenues (exXpenses)...........cc...... 0 d - 0
income (foss) before operating transfars............ccv..... (228) (272) (48}
Operating Iransfers iN.......ccov e cn i vare v mcssmsnsons - - - - 0
NEEINCOME (JOSS). ..ot eevrseccar s v (228) (272) (46)
Retained earnings at beginning of year........c..ocoveeveiiin e 181 181 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...............coeeee. s 158 | 155 0
Retained earnings at end of Year...........cccevirversrerrssrversreenser $114 $68 ($46)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Operating revehues:
Charges forsernvices...........ccocvveeeae

Miscellaneous........ooeeeerveveres

Total operating revenues................

Operating expenses:
Personal SernviCes..........coooovveeeevremervccemrascas

Contract 8eMVICES........co e e et s e

Materials and supplies.................
Capital outlay.,......cccevreeerraeecereee

Total operating expenses........c......

Operating income (1088)........oeveee-.

Noncperating revenues (expenses):
Principal retirement........cccoeeeeeinienas

interest and fiscal charges..........ccoeoev...

Total nonoperating revenues (@Xpanses)......c e,

fncome (loss) before operating fransfers...........veeeee..

Operating transfers in........coceoeeeee e

Net income (IosS).....ccovveveereeee

Retained earnings at beginning of year........coccvceccereenereans

Prior year encumbrances approptiated. .............ce...

Retained earnings at end of year......cccooe v e ceneenn

i ——t———
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PARKING FACILITIES
Variance:
Revised Favorable
__Budget Actual _(Unfavorable)
$272 $280 $8
- - -0
272 280 8
- - o}
309 57 252
10 - 10
10 - 10
329 57 272
(57) 223 280
- - 0
- - 0
0 0 0
(57) 223 280
- - 0
57) 223 280
258 258 0
57 57 4]
$258 $538 T §28B0
continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

TOTAL
Variance:
Revised Faverable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Operating revenues:
Charges for services..................... 9277 9,533 $256
Miscellaneous...........cccoeev e - 5255 2434 (2,821)
Total operating revenues................ . 14,532 11,867 (2,565)
Operating expenses:
Personal SEIVICES.......ccvvmsimsmnimirien e 3,949 3,882 67
CoNtract SEIVICES ..o icirer s crsars e v rar s e s e 7,408 4,071 3,335
Matetials and SUPPHES........oiiierrmreeeere e ereeer e emsroeer 840 653 187
Capital outlay.........cccicvrnrennseenren . . 245 211 34
Total operating expenses.. ... - s 12,440 8817 3,623
Operating iNCOIME ........cveeecreessvesesvssevnsnevecsemeemmeemmemrees 2,092 3,150 1,058
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Principal refiftement............cocvimveeeeseecee e crreee e cermmrmrermries (1,418) (1,347) 69
Interest and fiscal ChArges. ... ... icecieerresm s enrsssreceresmsmrenrs {1,503) (1,439) 64
Total nonoporating revenues (8Xpenses)..........cu... (2919 (2,788) 133
Income (loss) befors operating transfers....................... (827) 364 1,191
Operating transfersin............ccoccoreior s - 168 166
NBL INCOMB (I085)..uueicereivirecrarmseeerinssvereeesreresecreermesrroees . (827} 530 1,357
Retained earnings at beginning of year.........c.cccooe oo 3,834 3,834 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...........coccnmminincnnns 876 876 0
Retained earnings at end of year........cooecevvrerrccern N $3,883 $5,240 $1,357
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
December 31, 1999

Internal Service Funds- Infernal Service funds account
for the financing of goods or services provided by one
depariment or agency to other departments or agencies of
the governmental unit, or to other governmental units on
a cosit-reimbursement basis. The following are the
Internal Service funds which Lucas County operates:

Central Supplies- To account for supplies, mailing and
copying services provided to various County departments
and other governmental units. Users are billed for costs
incurred.

Vehicle Maintenance- To account for vehicle
maintenance services provided to various County
departments and other governmental units. Users are
billed for costs incurred.

County-City Telephone- To account for inter-
departmental charges for the use of the telephone system.
Users are billed for costs incurred.

Self-Funded Health Insurance - To account for claims
and administration of the health insurance program for
covered County employees and eligible dependents.
County departments are billed according to the
employee's family or marital status.

Self-Funded Dental Insurance- To account for claims
and administration of the dental insurance program for
covered County employees and eligible dependents.
County departments are billed according to the
employee’s family or marital status.

Centralized Drug Testing- To account for drug testing
charges incurred by the jail and other criminal justice
system departments.

Risk Retention Insurance- To account for claims and
administration of liabflity insurance for county
departments. The departments are billed based on the
cost of insurance policies.

Self-Funded Workers® Compensation- To account for
claims and adminisiration of workers’ compensation for
county departments. The departmenis are billed based on
their portion of total covered payroll and usage of the
program.
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Combining Chart of Operating Revenues and Expenses

Internal Service Funds

Millions
0 5 10 15 20
T T [

Self-funded Heaiih

Risk Retention Ins.

Self-funded Workers Comp.

Self-funded Dental

All Other Funds

u Total Operating Revenues Total Operating Expenses

[Year Ended December 31, 1999}
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Assets:
Current assels-
Pocled cash and cash equivalents...........
Pooled investments...........coecevivereimsvmnmnins
Accounts receivable..........ccciinmininenn.

Total current assels............eoeeeeeeue...

Property, plant and equipment:
Land...
Bu:ldmgs, structur&s and

improvements.... .
Furniture, ﬁxtures and eqmpment
Less: accumulated depreciation..............

Total 8SSBIS......ccoccivei v vreerivvrarvriiaea

Liabilities:
Current liabilites-
Accounts Payable....
Accrued wages and beneﬁts ................
Due to other funds..........ccoecciceccercccneiane
Claims payable-current............cccocamemens

Total current liabilities..........covveee.....

Claims payable-noncurrent.............cccc.o...
Obligations under capital leases...............

Total iabilities.......u....covevisiseiiesasssasan

Retained earnings:
Retained earnings (deficit)-Unreserved....

Total fiabilities and fund equily..........

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded

Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone Insurance
527 $31 §74 $767
159 184 445 4,577
4 1 3 1

40 55 - -

43 20 - -
- 273 201 522 5345

- a3 - -

- 30 - - .
216 133 831 13
(184) (151) (699) {4)

$305 $386 $654 $5.354
$81 $33 $201 470
4 48 16 12
- - - 331
- - - 1,644
85 81 217 2,457

32 - - -
117 81 217 2,457
188 305 437 2,897
$305 5386 654 $5,354
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Self- Self-
Centralized Risk Funded Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Dental
Testing Insurance Comp. Insurance Total
33 $1,053 $2,356 514 $4,325
18 6,286 14,060 82 25,811
- 1 - - 10
41 - - 330 466
- - - - 83
62 7,340 16,416 426 30,675
- - - - 83
- - - - 30
- - 10 - 1,203
- - (6) - (1,044)
$62 $7.340 $16,420 5426 $30,947
$25 $169 $4 - $683
31 18 az - 161
- - - - 331
- - _ 1478 331 3,453
56 187 1514 331 4 028
. - 3,364 - 3,364
- - - - a2
56 187 4,878 33 8,324
5] 7,153 11,542 95 22623
$62 $7,340 $18,420 $426 $30,847
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{Amounts in 000's)

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone Insurance
Operating revenues: )
Charges for Senvice...........c e ieercverrccreremroencsee $782 $526 $1,428 $16,159
Miscellaneous...........covce e cveerce v rererrressresreceemee .1 110 33 60
Total operating revenues............ccccoeeearen 783 636 1,461 16,219
Operating expenses:
Personal ServiCes.......vcvveeevraververvens 61 33 119 134
Contract SeMVICES........vr v oo erenivre e ravesrseeeeeenees 45 29 1,317 277
Materials and supplies.......coc v 652 252 1 B
Depreciation.......cierersc e ceresresrmsssressasseens 15 25 43 13
Claims payments...........ccomreeeccvarerrrrvrscessnneas - - - -
Change in provision for worker's
compensation Claims.........ccccovvvcecreerereeneeeenes - - - -
Employee medical benefits.............covomecesricrres - - - 16,420
Total operating 8xXpenses...........cuvueererrees 773 637 1,480 16,859
Operating income {I0S8)..........ccceecevvecerecerene. 10 (1) (19) (640)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest iNCOME.......c.covvreee e e, - . - - 286
Interest and fiscal charges...........ccoocoeveceeeeeeeeee, (2) - - -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets...........c.ccoceverens - - . - -
Total nonoperating revenues
and (expenses).........cucrcsseecsrenreeenens _{2) 0 8] 2886
Income (foss) before operating
Ir8NSTOIS. ..o ere eeereevim e saee 8 (H (19) (354)
Operating transfers in.........covvcmrrvnmmresvcreene. . __ - - - -
Net income (loss)............ 8 (1) (19) (354)
Retained earnings at
beginning of year.........ccc oo crecer e - 180 308 456 3,251
Retained earnings at
end of year.............. $188 $305 $437 $2.897




Self- Self-
Centralized Risk Funded Funded
Drug Retention Workers’ Dental
Testing Insurance Comp. Insurance Total

$455 $1,365 $3,532 $1,748 $25,886

- 1 - 5 210

455 1,368 3,632 1,754 26,206

230 163 199 - 1,237

- 553 73 68 2,260

224 11 5 - 1,151

6 7 19 - 128

- - 1,941 - 1,941
- - (2,548) - (2,548)

- 87 - 1,600 18,098

460 801 {311) 1,666 22,365

(S) 565 3,843 88 3,841

- - - - 286
- - - - )

- - - - 0

0 0 0 0 284

(5) 565 3,843 a8 4125

- - - - 0

(5) 565 3,843 88 4125

11 6,588 7,699 7 18,498

$6 $7,153 $11,542 $95 $228623
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Self-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone insurance
Cash flows from operating acfivities:
Cash received from CUSIOMETS......oceeeeeceee e e, $751 $638 $1,556 £$16,218
Cash paid to suppliers.... OO {632) (283) {1,147} {15,584)
Cash paid to employea; e e n e e - (683) (331} {115) (134}
Net cash provided by (used ln)
operating activities... eeetereeansaeeevaren s s eh ey 56 24 284 500
Cash flows from noncapital fi nancing activities:
Operating transfers in.. S — - - - -
Net cash provided by noncapttal
financing activilies........occrevreee e s erceres v 0 0 1] 0
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets..........cc.cccccerimrnnrerecnncnn i - {34) (6) - {5}
Interest and fiscal charges.... eeveenerinrrarearrnntaearane (2) - - -
Proceeds of capital l[ease transaction ......................... 34 - - -
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities..........cccveiriiinenee (2) (8) 0 (5)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments..........ccccecocrerermarens 69 157 - 3,300
Payments for investments.......coo e e crmrreee (121) (181) (283) (4,177
Interest received... S - - - 286
Net cash prowded by (used |n) :nvestlng activities...... (52) (24) (263) (581)
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents.... SRR 2 (6) 31 (86)
Cash and cash equwalents January 1 25 37 43 863
Cash and cash equivalents, December Y $27 $31 $74 $767
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Self- Self-
Centralized Risk Funded Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Dental
Testing Insurance Comp, Insurance Toftal
$434 $1,365 $3,532 $1,755 $26,248
(221) (554) (2,019) (1,667) (22,107)
(230) (163) {193) - (1,229)
(17) 648 1,320 88 2,913
- - - - 0
0 0 o 0 0
- : - - ($45)
- - - - (2)
- - - - 34
0] 0 t] 0 (13)
48 5,265 12,001 - 20,840
(35:) (8,125) (13,819) (76} (24,797)
- - - - - 286
13 (860) (1,818) (76} (3,871)
{4) (212) {498} 12 771
7 1,265 2,854 2 5,006
$3 $1,053 $2,358 $14 84325
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-(continued)
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Reconciliation of Operating income {Loss) tc Net Cash Provided
by (Used in) Operating Activities

Seif-
Vehicle County- Funded
Central Mainten- City Health
Supplies ance Telephone Insurance
Operating Income (1088} ...........cccoccveivmrerrsseeess s e %10 1) ($19) ($640)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income {loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation expense... ereiret et r e e - 15 25 43 13
Change in provision for worker's
compensation claims... eeeerrorsray - ) - - - -
{lncrease) decrease in operating assets
Accounts Feceivable. ... e vrsresrerreeee s e oo anenes . 8 1 11 (1)
Due from other funds... ] (40) 1 84 -
Inventory: materials and supplles eeresseorpe e ennr e (9) (5) - -
Increase (decrease) in operating Ilabilities.
Accounts payable.................. I 3 171 1,127
Due to other funds... etresmereserrenre s ns e e s e e - } - - 1
Accrued wages and beneﬁts 2 - 4 -
Total adjustments.... rerrerstverssrnsremssmerrenee e . _. 48 25 _ 313 1,140
Net cash provided by (used 1n)
operating activities... ereeareretreber e e e $56 $24 $294 $500

Noncash capital and related financing activities:

Central Supplies fund had a capital lease obligation remaining of $32 thousand.
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Self- Self-
Centralized Risk Funded Funded
Drug Retention Workers' Dental
Testing Insurance Comp. Insurance Total
($5) $565 $3,843 $88 $3,841
6 7 19 - 128
. - (2,548) - (2,548)
- {1) - - 18
21 - - - 24
- - - - (14)
3 78 - - 1,456
- {1) - - 0
- - 8 - 8
(12) 83 {2,523) 0 {928)
{317) 5648 $1,320 $88 $2,913
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

CENTRAL SUPPLIES

' Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}

Operating revenues:
Charges fOr SEIVICES...ccr v e erecssereecnresecveesrenrrasrosma s = $899 $751 ($148)
2

Miscellaneous. ...t 1 7 4]
Total 0perating reVENLIGS...........c.ccovvieervercsmsiessesrmaenseenioms— 901 752 (149)
Operating expenses:
Personal SEIVICES. .......coooierererrerne e s s o s s s seamssccmnsxmanmans — 64 63 1
CoNtract SBNVICES. ... coe oo e rtre e e e e et e a7 66 31
Materials and sUppPlies........oovveviiimcci v 7681 681 80
Capal QUHAY.......covieriere e eece e aenamens e eaneaneasinessnnans 9 . 2 R
Claim payments. . ... .ot amans - - ]
Employee medical benefits. ... - - 0
Total cperating expenSes. .. ......ooo oo a31 812 119
Operating income (I08S8).... oo (30) (80) (30)
Nonoperating revenues:

Interest INCOME.........cooeee e - - 0
Total nonNoperating reVerUes................... v s s 1] 0 ) g
Income (loss) before operating transfars.........omseee... (30} 60) (30)

Operating transfers in............ccomeein e e - - 0
Net income (JOSS).......ocuiiiimciissiine st esice e e s eaesnsamnnnn (30) (60) (3M

Retained earnings at beginning of year...........c.ccccocaineenaene 94 g4 1]

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.........ccocceiisenines 38 38 0

Retained earnings at end of year.............cccceiiiiri i e $102 572 ($30)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-{continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Operating revenues: ' ' '
Charges for services.......ocovereeee $576 $526 ($50)
Miscellaneous......... - 143 111 (32)
Total operating revenues............c...cee o eevesrsecescoeemn - 719 637 (82)
Operafing expenses:
Personal semvices.........ooccvmeeecirceeens 33g 331 8
Contract services........... - 80 88 12
Materials and supplies........c.cceeeee-e. 385 318 67
Capital outlay.......c.cceocecnemeeenee 18 17 1
Clairn Payments........cco.o.ceveveeresrcnscriecen - - ¢]
Employee Medical Benefits........ _ - - 0
Total operating expenses............. 822 734 88
QOperating income (loss)............. — (103} (87} <]
Nonoperating tevenues:
interest income....... - - 0
Total nonoperating revenues.. 0 0 0
income (loss) before operating transfars.........ccoverceeemn (103) (87) 6
Operating transfers in.........ccocee. - - 0
Net income (loss}....... {133} (97) 6
Retained earnings at beginning of year.......ccooeoereee. —— 83 93 0
Pror year encumbrances appropriated........... enetrsiaraaienn 104 104 0
Retained earnings at end of year....... $94 $100 $6

— 151

continued



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL {continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

COUNTY-CITY TELLEPHONE
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
Qperating revenues:

Charges for SeMVICeS..............coccieeieireeraresenm $1,252 $1,524 $272

MISCRIANEOUS.....oo v re e ser ereem e rr e e - 32 32
Total operating revenues................... - — 1,252 1,556 304

Operating expenses:
Personal semvices.........cocvieiieems N 17 115 2
Contract senvices.......oceeeeeee. . . 1,316 1,227 89
Materials and sUpPPlies...........ccoi i i vessis e emrerrererereeee 1 1 0
Capital outlay..................... ] . - - 0,
Claim payments................c.ccceeereeeee - - - o
Employee medical benefits.........c..ccovnvcciiei e - - 0
Total operating 8XPeNSES. ... ececeerreerarrererrerenerens 1,434 1,343 91
Operating income (I0Ss)..........cveeveee. - (182) 213 395
Nonoperating revenues:

INtEreSt INCOME....... ...t e e e - - } - . 0
Total nonoperating reVenues............c..eeweereonmeermommen 0 ¢ ¢]
Income (foss) before ocperating transfers...........cceeeenre (182) 213 385

Operating transfers iM..........c.cserrreremmrms s osmssssmmsn — - - n
P g n — 170 —
Neatf income (JOSS).........cc.cvevivviviaresericrcrermes i cremeomreeem oo (182) 213 385

Retained earnings at beginning of year..........cccceeeee 123 123 0

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.........ccoocoecennienin 102 102 0

Retained earnings at end of year................ccceiniicninns $43 $438 §395

continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-{continued)
{(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

SELF-FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
Operating revenues:

Charges for Senvices.......occrrvveee. . - $16,100 $16,159 $59

Miscellaneous.........cc.cccvneeecreecceinees — 36 59 23
Total operating revernueas... ..o e vreeeveemmmrvrromsmreee e 16,136 16,218 a2

Operating expenses:
Personal services............ccceverveen 144 134 10
CoNtract SEMVICES........c.oice e v e et e e oermeeeas 469 451 . 18
Materials and SUDPDPISS.........cociereevereererseee s ran e acmsasmnmnns ... 10 9 1
Capital outlay......cccomvieiincrvrnccierreons : —— 5 3 ’ 2
Claim payments...........coocvoreeccvenees - - 0
Employee medical benefits.........cocoee e cecerrer e . 19,848 _ 19,386 460
Total operating expenses. ... v 20,474 19,983 491
Operating iNComMe fIOSS)........cocmeeivrcrserrsmssmras oo amsman e (4,338) (3,765) 573
Nonoperating revenues:

INERrESt INCOME... ..o e vt rse et e e e s ser e e cam . _ 280 ‘ 286 8
Total nonoperating revenUes. .........uueceeesrceremracreas ) 280 286 . ]
fncome (loss) before oparating fransfers.........eveneee . (4,058) - {3,479 578

Operafing fransfers in.........cccoeecee . . - , - 0
Net income (108S)....cccecevnemnneae e . ___(4,058) (3,479) 578

Retained earnings at beginning of year........cccoemeemecme - - _ 2,028 2,028 t]

Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......cconeieveeie. - . 2535 ) 2,535 g

Retained earnings at end of YEar........cce.e e eevmcrssemermamemcns $505 $1,084 $579

continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

CENTRALIZED DRUG TESTING
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

Operating revenues:

Charges for SeIVICES.........crvvveiererecrerss e asreacressnressrensen . $445 $434 ($11)
MiSCElAN@OUS..... ..o e s e T ) - 0

Total Operating rOVENLBS. ........covvcericmmsirresmsssssssersnsearmarens - . 445 434 (11)

Operating expenses;
Personal SBIVICES.........c.c.covvieivineime et ceeen e sie e sneee oo 231 230
Contract ServiCes...........coece e 21 15
Materials and SUPPHES....... oo e e eeens 228 218 1
Capital QUAY.........eoeeeee e i 13 11
Claim paymentS.......coccieiiiii i s vs s s s sas s s ea e - -
Employee medical benefits...........cocoovevimemiviinieiiereeeeeiee - -

OSSN O@=

Total operating @XPenSeS.........wwvcvcreerevanscssemssrssnirin 493 474 19

Operating INCOME (TOSS).....oo e e enmmi e (48) (40) 8

Nonoperating revenues:
Interest income..........ooo oo, L - - 0

Total nonoperating FEVENLIBS. ... vimrecrsreeassmsssvsorses g 0 0]

income (loss) befora operating transfars...........cccceevene. (48) (40) 8

Operating transfers iN........ccccv e e 10 - (10)

Nt inCOM@ (JOSS) ...ttt es e s s s (38) (40) (2)

Retained earnings at beginning of year..........c.cov e 8 8 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated..... 32 32 0
Retained earnings at end of year..........c.ocvevenne. $0 {$2) ($2)
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

RISK RETENTION INSURANCE

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
Operating revenues: "

Charges for services...........c-.... 31,370 $1,364 $86)

Miscellaneous...........ccoeeeeemeseccneneecnens . - - ) 0
Total operating revenues.........cu.veeeeceseeanees _ 1,370 1,364 - (&)

Operating expenses:
Personal services.........oooeeeeevreececen. 163 162 1
Contract senices........co.cocovmeecrenenee 733 498 o 235
Materials and sUPPIES..... oottt 7 5] ' 1
Capital outlay,.......ccoeever e ; - 7 1¢] i 1
Claim payments...........occrrmmvsereens . 557 64 493
Employee Medical Benefits............ccooocveerevee e - - : 0
Total operating @XPOenSoS..... ... cveveeceerenemmmmmmrmen 1,467 738 731
Cperating income (IOSS).......cocovcvecvereervemremcrmrecereeeeenas (97) 628 725
Nohoperating revenues:

Interest income. .......corveeereene e = R S - 0
Total nonoparating revenues. ..............cceevveeeeeeoeone——eerer o 0 0 _ 0
Income (loss) before operating fransfers...........eveeerveue (87) 628 725

Operating transfers in............. - _ - _ : 0
Net income (IoSS)........covrvrecccevanns (97) §28 725

Retained earnings at beginning of year..........ccooecnnenne 6,615 6,615 0

Prior year encumbrances appropriated........cccooeeee. JR— ) 76 ) 78 ) 0

Retained eamings at end of Year............o e ceereesssnans - _$6,504 $7.318 ' $725
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Operating revenues:

Charges for SeIVICES.....c.ceeierensnerecermrssssaranns
MISCEllZNEOUS.....cvevverreresisrre e e e emeen

NP S

Total operating reVernues............ccureesusrensaseers

Operating expenses:
Personal 5ervices.......ccueeerrerieens

{(Amounts in 000's)

SELF-FUNDED WORKER'S COMP.

B i e T

Confract Senvices.........corvvvrvrsvcrrrsrrrssonems

= e ——————

Materials and SUPPIES.......cccveiieeecrmeemarn e seamer e

Capital outlay....

Claim payments...........c.cooniermreranasscrsnenns

Employee medical bene

Total operating expensses....................

T Ty A

Operating income..............

Nonoperating revenues:

Interest INCOME.........cccccimmerirrerrerereaesmrnneees

Total nonoperaling reventes.................

e I a2

FEPPPR PR PP PP PP I

Income before oparating transfoers.............coweiina

QOperating transfersin...........

Netincome.......cccvereveececcenee

Retained eamings at beginning of year...............cc.cominen

Prior year encumbrances appropriated...
Retained earnings at end of year..........ccocovesmeecmreromenerns

Variance:
Revised Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$3,446 $3,532 586
- - 0
. 3,448 3,532 86
200 193 7

128 77 51
3 3 0
8 4 2
2,500 1,941 559
- - 0
__ 2,837 2218 619
609 1,314 705
_= - 0
0 0 0
609 1,314 705
- - 0
609 1,314 705
15,089 15,089 o
7 7 0
$15.705 $16,410 $705
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

SELF-FUNDED DENTAL INSURANCE

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Operating revenues:

Charges for services................ - . $1,989 $1,749 ($240)

Miscellaneous..........ccceecoeimnnn - - 5 5
Total operating reventias............ . o 1,989 1,754 (235)

Operating expenses:

Personal sernvices..........cccceeeeecrinmee. - - 0

COoNract SEIVIGES. .....ceeveemrire e cvir e et oo aaemeeaees 71 71 O

Materials and supplies...........ccccveeevvvrreree e rremee o sessmnrnene - - 0

Capital outlay........ooo e - - 0

Claim paymenis........ccc.coveenveeivrceree . - - 4]

Employee medical benefits..........c.occevvvne et se v 1,927 1,926 1
Totaf operating expensss.............. . 1,898 1,987
Operating income (I0S8)............... - (9) (243) (234)

Nonoperating revenues:

Interest income. ..o coveeveececvieeanes ~ - . 0
Total nonoperating revenues... ... e ecvreeeee Y] 0 7 0
Income (ioss) before operating transfers........coueeeeeeee. (8) (243) (234)

Operating transfers iN...........coereeeern e rseeearcesm - - 0
Net income (foSS)......cceveeveeveennn- (8) (243) (234)

Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year.................. (115) {115) 0

Prior year encumbrances appropriated...........ccocoeceeonvcene ] 124 124 0

Retained earnings (deficit} at end of year............ocoeeemren.... £C o (5234) — ($234)

continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BUDGET AND ACTUAL-{continued)
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

TOTAL
Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
Operating revenues:

Charges for sernvices........c.ccveveuer $28,077 $26,039 ($38)

MisCellaneous.....c.oeeeceevuverenecvenees i ] 181 208 27
Total 0perating reVeNUES. .........coowemeveriverereeersereneresnens -~ _ . 2B,258 28,247 (11

Operating expenses:

Personal senvices..............ccceeveeevvneeres . 1,258 1,228 30

Contract services.........ccceveee .- 2915 2473 442

Materials and sUPPLES.......cocecccommecieriri v ses e ees e e s e 1,395 1,236 159

Capttal outlay............ocovevvcereccecceee 58 43 15

Claim payments...............co e reres 3,057 2,005 1,052

Employee medical benefits................. oo vceens concnrerrmmmmmer 21772 21,312 461
Total operating expenses. ... ... oercenscreececcreareena 30,456 28,297 2,158
Cperating income (loss).................. e {4,198) (2,050) 2,148

Nonoperating revenues:

Interest iNCOME........coee e - 280 286 g
Tolal nonoperating reVENUES. ..............oveeeeecoreecearmmmecereon. _. 280 286 6
Income (loss) before operating {ransfors...........oweuvi. (3,918) (1,764) 2,154

Operating transfers in.............. — 10 - (10)
Net income (loss)............... i : (3,908) (1,764) 2,144

Retained earnings at beginning of Year........... o wwmmmee_ 23,933 23,933 0

Pricr year encumbrances appropriated..........ccccovevvvvviceneens ... 3018 3,018 0

Retained earnings at end of year................ccccvuvveimsmnsmconeres $23,043 $25 187 $2,144
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 1999

Fiduciary Funds- Fiduciary Funds account for assels held by
Lucas Counly in a frustee capacfly, or as an agent, for individuals,
private organizations, other governmental units andfor other funds.
The Fiduciary Funds, maintained by Lucas County, are
Expendable Trust funds and Agency funds.

Expendable Trust Funds- Expendable Trust funds
maintain assels held by Lucas County in a trustee capacity
for individuals, private organizafions, other govemmental
units and ofher funds. The following are the Expendable
Trust funds which Lucas County maintains:

Unclaimed Money Trust- To maintain and account for
uncashed outstanding warrants. Those warrants are
written-off, and held in this fund until the entitted party
places a legitimate claim or the statute of limitations
prevails.

Miscellaneous Trust- To maintain and account for
sundry revenues and expenditures.

Real Estate and Public Utility Seftlement Trust- To
maintain and account for miscellaneous real estate tax
reveniues and expenditures.

Cash Taps Trust- To maintain and account for cash
deposits which are required to tap into the Water Supply
System waterlines.

Generai Trust- To maintain and account for
‘eimbursements from other governments and other funds
‘or expenditures in their behalf.

Juvenile Assistance Trust- To maintain and account for
‘evenues from individuals and expenditures for assisting
Jveniles within Lucas County.

Contingencies Trust- To maintain and account for
esources in the event of unanticipated emergencies.

Judicial Services Trust- To maintain and account for
:dministration of various judicial functions.

Other Trust Funds (34 funds}- To maintain and account
or resources of and uses for: rewards, award programs,

deposits, bonds, advance payments, law enforcement
projects and the tike.,

Agency Funds- Agency funds maintain assets held by
Lucas Counly as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
The folfowing are the Agency funds which Lucas County
maintains:

Payroll Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation of payroli withholdings until payment is
remitted to third parties.

Real Estate Fund, General Personal Fund, Classified
Personal Fund, Estate Tax Fund and Hotel Lodging Tax
Fund- These various and separate funds maintain and
account for the accumulation and disbursement of taxes for:
real property, intangible property, estate tax and hotel
lodging tax.

Local Government Fund- To maintain and account for
fhe accumulation and disbursement of state revenue
sharing monies.

Auto License Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation and disbursement of aufomobile license and
registration fea collections.

Gasoline Tax Fund- To maintain and account for the
accumulation and disbursement of gasoline tax coliections.

Trailer Tax Fund- To maintain and account for the

accumulation and disbursement of mobile home tax
collections.

continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
FIDUCIARY FUNDS-{continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Agency Funds-(continued)

Subdivision Advance Fund- To maintain and account
for tax advance distributions to subdivisions within Lucas
County.

Undivided Interest Fund- To maintain and account for
the accumulation and disbursement of the County
investment eamings.

Clerk of Courts, Common Pleas Court, Common Pleas
Court-Probate, Child Support Enforcement Agency,
Juvenile Court, Sheriff, Children Services, and
Prosecutor: These various and separate funds maintain
and account for: court fees, alimonies, child support,
restitution, boarding home fees, donations, funds held in
escrow and other similar resources and uses. These funds
are held outside of the County treasury.

Tax Installment Payment Plan (T.LLP.P,) Fund- To
account for real estate taxes paid on an installment basis
until they can be applied to a current tax bill.

Other Agency Funds- To maintain and account for
resources and uses for: taxes, research, deposits, licenses
and estate. Other Agency funds include:

Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Computer Legal Research
Grain Tax

Cigarette Licenses
Escheated Estates

Law Library

Coroner Escrow

Advance Fund

When compared to combined Agency funds, Other
Agency funds comprise less than 10% in assets and
liabilities.
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Combining Chart of Revenues and Expenditures
All Expendable Trust Funds

Thousands
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's})

Expendable Trust Funds
o Real Estate
and Public
Unclaimed Miscel- Utility Cash
Money laneous Settlement Taps General
Trust Trust Trust Trust Trust
Assefs:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents........... $210 $4 $172 $1 %9
. Begregated cash.........cocooieiiii - - - - -
Pooled investments..........ccce e imvecininen. 1,251 23 1,030 5 51
Total assets.........coueeecvieiirerarenn. $1,461 $27 $1,202 $6 $60
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable..................ccoeeeeeiiinn $16 31 $25 $2 $-
Accrued wages and benefits.................... - - - - -
Unapportioned monies.........c.cociceviviieenns - - - - -
Deposits held due to others..................... - - - - -
Payroll withheldings.........cooo e veeiccinivennnnens - - - - -
Total flabilities..........ceoeeeeeeeeeenne. 16 1 25 2 0]
Fund balances:
Undesignated...........ococcceveeeiiveenenn. 1,445 26 1,177 4 &0
Total fund balancas.........cccvvneeenn. 1,445 26 1,177 4 60
Total liabilities and
fund balances...........oveceevene... $1.481 $27 $1.202 $6 $60
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Expendable Trust Funds

Total
Juvenile Judicial Other Expendable Total
Assistance Services Trust Trust Agency
Trust Trust Funds Funds Funds Total
$37 $402 $22 857 $22.807 $23,664
- - - - 7,135 7,135
224 2,401 132 5117 - 5117
$261 $2,803 $154 35,874 $29,942 $35,918
$11 $201 $2 258 - 258
- - 2 2 - 2
- - - 0 21,258 21,258
- - - o 7,282 7,282
- - - 0 1,402 1,402
11 201 4 260 29,942 30,202
250 2,602 150 5714 0 5714
250 2,602 150 5714 0 5714
$261 $2,803 $154 $5,974 $29.942 $35.816
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's}

Real Estate
and Public
Unclaimed Miscel- Utility Cash
Money laneous Settlement Taps
Trust Trust Trust Trust
Revenyes:
Miscellaneous.........c..cccoeeeenecenne $557 _ $459 __$551 $69
TOLal FBVBINIBS. .....covvr e ceeeeceeearevarrrereamens 557 459 551 312
Expenditures:
Current;

Miscellaneous...........ccccoc. . 418 485 423 66
Total expendiflres. .. ... veii e enerrasrrmccreeecems 418 485 423 66
Excess of revenue over (under}

EXPENAIIUIES... ..o areecerrrceren e mrsse e mstae s 139 (28) 128 3
Fund balance at beginning of year.........ccccomvrcreereeene 1,306 52 1,049 1
Fund balance at end of Year.........cueeeveecrrremeeeeeeeecmine 51,445 326 $1177 54
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Juvenile Contin~ Judicial Other
General Assistance gencies Services Trust
Trust Trust Trust Trust Funds Total
$195 $52 $187 §764 $354 3,198
195 52 197 764 354 3,188
183 62 197 _751 270 _ 2,855
183 &2 187 751 270 2,855
12 {10} 0 13 84 343
48 260 0 i 2,589 66 5,371
$60 $250 $0 $2,602 $150 $5,714
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LYUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
1999 : Additions Deductions 1999

Payroll Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents............ . 51231 $150,598 $150,427 $1,402
Liabilities: }

Payroll withholdings....o....cocoecrenrnsaeneens - $1.231 $150,508 $160,427 $1,402
Rea! Estate Fund
Assets; :

Pooled cash and cash equivalents............ $12,684 $339.576 $340,720 $11,840
Liabilities: !

Unapportioned monies..........ccovieeeicenenne $12.684 $338.976 $340,720 $£11,940
General Personal Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash eguivalents............ $2.716 $81,809 $81,830 $2. 485
Liabilities: )

Unapportioned monies..........c.coovcerieenn. $2.716 $81,609 $81,830 $2. 495
Prosecufor
Assets;

Segregated cash,..........ccocooeieiinicee $190 $235 5223 $202
Liahilities: :

DEPOSitS. ..o $180 $235 $223 $202
Estate Tax Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents............ $4.811 $13,969 $13,064 $5.716
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies................ccoceieanes $4 811 $13,969 $13,064 $5,716
Hotel Lodging Tax Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents........... $332 $3,576 $3,814 $94
Liabilities: .

Unappertioned monies..........c.coeevveemiee $332 $3.578 $3,814 $94

continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS-(continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)
Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
1999 Additions Deductions 1999

Local Government Fund
Assets;

Pooled cash and cash equivalents............ $0 $39,652 $39.652 %0
Liabilittes:

Unapportioned monies. ............cceecvaerreees $0 $33.652 $39,652 $0
Auto License Fund
Assets:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents............ $0 $3,600 $3,579 521
Liahilities:

Unapportioned monies........c.ooveeeeeveerares %0 $3,600 $3,579 $21
Gasoline Tax Fund
Assets:

Pocled cash and cash equivalents............ $0 $553 3555 ($2)
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies...........ccccceveeierinens $0 $553 $555 (52}
Trajler Tax Fund
Assets:

Pacled cash and cash equivalents............ - . $157 $1,360 $1,325 $182
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies...........ccovevicinrenns $157 $1,360 $1,325 $192
Subdivision Advance Fund
Assats;

Pooled cash and cash equivalents........... $0 $326 326 $326,319 37
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies........c.ccocoeeerievareas 50 $326,326 $326,319 $7

continyed
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS-(continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
1999 Addit_ions Deducﬁons 1998

Undivided Interest Fund
Asgsets; .

Pooled cash and cash equivalents............ {520) $10,944 $10,920 $4
Liabilities:

Unapportioned monies.........cocoveeecermenenn (320) $10,944 $10,920 $4
Clerk of Courts
Assets:

Segregated cash.............oecervereriirenrens $2.7368 $45718 $45 439 $3.015
Liahitities: ; -

Daposils.. ..o e $2.7386 $45,718 $45 439 $3.015
Common Pleas Court
Assets:

Segregated cash.............ccccicinviencrnsieres 330 $1,570 $1.488 $112
Liabilities:

DEPOSHS.....oviiiccccie e e $30 $1.570 . $1.488 $112
Common Pleas Court-Probate Court
Assets:

Segregated cash...........c.ccceeeeivvicvinimniniens $204 $1,338 $1,359 $183
Liabilities:

Deposits. ..o e $204 $1.,338 $1,359 $183
Child Support Enforcement Agency
Assets! o

Segregated cash...........c..ccocercvmrmeemcnenee $533 $82 405 392312 $626
Liabilities:

Deposs....... oo $533 $92 405 $92.312 $626
Juvenile Court
Assets: .

Segregated cash..........ccccccveeveiceeiecinieenn $171 $741 $729 $183
Liahilities:

DEPOSIS........oiveievieesisressresrrmeeressstrneerenens . $171 $741 $729 $183

continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS-(continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{Amounts in 000's)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
1999 Additions Deductions 1999
Sheriff
Assets:
Segregated cash............cccoceiinnsrensennns $257 .~ %8,035 $6,024 $268
Liabilities:
Deposits.. ..o e $257 $6,035 $6.024 $268
Children Services
Assets:
Segregated Cash...........ccccmimmmrnairsrasains $1,006 $1.805 51,857 $954
Liakilities:
DEPOSIS.....ociiiiieeen i $1,006 $1.805 $1,857 $954
T.L.P.P. Program
Assets; .
Segregated cash.........oooviniinincnens $1,516 $4 8685 $4,889 $1,682
Liabilities:
DEPOSIES. ..vveiriies e rs e $1.516 $4.965 $4,889 $1.592
Other Agency Funds
Assets!
Pocled cash and cash equivalents............ $482 $3.078 $2.620 £538
Liabilities:
Deposits held due to others............cceeee $133 $841 $827 $147
Unappartioned monies. ... 349 2235 1,793 ik
Total Liabilities......ccccveivisiecnci i $4B82 $3,076 $2,820 $938
Total
Assets;
Pooled cash and cash equivalents............ $22,393 $975,239 $974.825 £22,807
Segregated cash..........cceeeimie i 5,643 154,812 154,320 7,135
TOtal ASSEES..ceuuirsoeeceranirereceremsmnsnacans $29.036 $1,130,051 $1,129.145 $29,942
Liabilities:
Unapportioned MoMes. ..o iennmsian $21,029 $823,800 $823,571 $21,258
DeposSiHe. ... et 6,776 155,653 155,147 7.282
Payrol! withholding..........ccooceecnnnionsecenne 1,231 150,588 150,427 1,402
Total Ligbilities.....c.ceieicesvecasecvncsverormmanns $29.038 $1,130,051 £1,129,145 $20.942
continued
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Land

Buildings, structurss and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Consfruction in-progress

Capital leases

General Fixed Assets Account Group- The General
ixed Assels Account Group accounts for the cost of the
ollowing types of long-lived assets utilized by Governmental
und Types:

LI I I )
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General Fixed Assets by Function

All General Fixed Assets

(51.5%)

(4.3%)

(9.6%)
(6.4%)

=

(16.0%)
(2.6%)

Legis. and Exec. W Judicial Public Safety ® Public Works

B Health N Human Services N Recreation

[Year Ended December 31, 1999
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General Fixed Assets

Land......ccooee

Building, structures and
improvements........ccocevicicnenee v

Furniture, fixtures and

equipment.. ... e e

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACTIVITY BY SOURCE

DECEMBER 31, 1999
{Amounts in 000's)

Construction-in-Prograss.........c.ovreerrrmscerrs e resremereessrnssesrmeresenssanes

Total general

fixed 8SSeLS....eeiis s st

Investment by Fund
In General Fixed Assets

Acquired before

January 1,1984................

General FUNd..........occoimvmren s csren e v s ovmesvaasn s -
Special Revenue FUNAS. ... i
Capital Projects FUNGS.......coovivv v ce e reeseeneaas

Total investment in

general fixed assels..........ccccvvienvmanas

B T

Balance
December 31,
1999

$14,840
124,197

24,970
3874

—

$167,981

Balance
December 31,
1999

$38,076
87,717
22,882
19,306

—_—
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

Buildings Furniture,
Structures and Fixtures and
Function and Activify Land Improvements Equipment Total
General Government
Legisfative and executive
COmMMISSIONErS........core e veenceeeesnenn - 58,910 $70,715 $254 $80,879
Auditor-real estate.........c.ccccvrreesreerenn - - - 0
Data processing.........ccovceeermeeecerarennas - - 2,080 2,060
Other legislative and
executiVe. ... . - 73 1,638 1,611
Judicial
COUMS......ceeeeeiee e reme oo s - 497 1,159 1,656
Courts SUPPOTt.........cccoreerincmrereasaernna 8 85 324 397
Courts administration..........cccoeeeeee. - 647 12,653 339 13,639
Other judicial....ccoeomeeeiceeereeeereereecarnene - il - 128 128
Total general government.......... 10,565 84,003 5,802 100,370
Public safety
COTONET.....ccomeeeeteeere s emee st e emenea s - - 26 26
Sherfl.. . 26848 18,516 - 1,317 22 478
Qther public safety........coocviceeeeeeees - - 3,741 3,741
Total public safety..........ccoeeonae 2848 18,518 §5,084 26,248
Public works
Highways and streets...........cccocceeees - 485 3,855 4,320
Total public Works..........coceeeeeeeen 0 465 3,855 4,320
Health
Mental health......coeeieeeee s - - 3,004 3,604
Mental retardation........c.cccemminreerens 685 5,968 5,134 11,788
Other health.........cocoocceeeee e - 87 407 365 - 839
Total health.........c...cooeeecsnnns . 752 8,376 8,503 15,631
Human services
Public assistance.................. 810 8,501 936 10,247
Chitdren services..........ccc...... - - 184 184
Other human sernvices..........cocovveeeeeee - - ] 35 35
Total human services................. 810 8,501 1,155 10,466
Recreation
ReCTation....c...cceeemmrrmrsssersasniaseenns 167 6,336 571 7074
Total recreation.............ccueeeee.. 167 6,336 571 7,074
Construction
Construction-in-progress..........c..ov... - 3,874 - 3,874
Total construction...........cevee... 0 3,874 0 3,874
Total general fixed asseis.................. $14,940 $128,071 $24.970 $167,981

174




LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{Amounts in 000's)

Balance Balance
January 1, Current Year December 31,
Function and Activity 1999 Additions Deletions 1999
General Government
Legislative and exscutive
COMMISSIONEIS.......ceeveeereirn e e se e $80,876 $180 $277 $80,879
Auditor-real estate. ...t 35 ) - ) 35 0
Data ProcessiNg....covceivrrcrrmvrereeserecssranear 1,222 T 1,19 353 2,060
Cther legistative and
BXECULIVE.........coer oo vstee e eeemeeees 3,044 33g 1,772 1,611
Judicial
COUMS...ocveeecrerrrereeesereree e v rescerrres s sesenens 2,963 329 1,636 1,656
CoUMS SUPPOTL.......cicrerrrerrrrvsvereermeesrerenens 674 11 288 397
Courts administration..........ccovvecvvrirrreseee 13,694 72 127 13,639
Other judicial..........coconiciniiiecinceccerrererens 275 8 155 128
Total general government. ... 102,883 2,130 4,643 100,370
Public safety
COMONEBE. ...t vmvvt s eansensnsmmnnnn 34 5 13 26
Sher. ... e 22,433 313 267 22,479
Other public safety...........o oo vsieren s 4,320 , 7 586 3,741
Total public SEIELY......ccooeveeeeerererrnns 26787 325 866 26,246
Public works
Highways and sfreets..........cc.ccooccev v 4,588 27 545 4,320
Total public WOrkS.........ccovuvvnverirenaeen 4,588 7Y 545 4,320
Health
Mental health........ccoooeiee e eeeeee 3,079 403 478 3,004
Mental retardation...........cooevnee e 11,290 1,097 599 11,788
Other health......ccooceee v ___ . 947 137 245 838
Total health......cococevvveeniicivvreeiesenen 15,316 1,637 1,322 15,631
Human services
Public assistance...........ccccocemnirienirscreenas 10,541 - 284 10,247
Children services.........cccecvrmerenrecceeiieeens 2,983 38 2,835 184
Other human Sernvices............ccvevveerermvvenes ] 59 - 24 35
Total human Services....... ... . 13,583 36 3,153 10,466
Recreation
ReCIealion.........ccceveeveeiimrrr e sevesaenans _ 7105 116 147 7.074
Total recreation..........cuevevceeeerevenees 7,105 118 147 - 7,074
Construction
Construction-in-progress..........c..coecvvvrernen. 587 3,287 - 3,874
Total ConStuction................ewoeeeeeeunn. 587 ~ 3,287 0 3,874
Total genearal fixed assets................cccne..n $170,849 $7,808 $10,676 $167.981
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
December 31, 1999

Discretely Presented Component Units- are entities
that are legally separate from the County but for which the
county is financially accountable, or its relationship with
"~ the County is such that exclusion would cause the
County's financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.

Toledo Mud Hens Baseball Club, Inc. - is organized
to own, manage, and operate a professional baseball club.

Lott Industries, Inc.,- is a nonprofit organization
affiliated with the Lucas County Board of Mental
Retardation and Developmental Disabilitles (LCBMR/DD),
a special revenue fund of the county. It provides
employment for individuals with mental retardation and
developmental disabilities by obtaining work competitively
from the private and public sectors.

Community Living Options, Inc. - is a non-profit
corporation that provides residential assistance and
support services to individuals with mental retardation and
developmental disabilities.

Preferred Properties, Inc. - and Affiliates is a not-for-
profit corporation organized to provide affordable and
accessible housing to persons with disabilities.
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LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000's)

Toledo
Mud Hens Lott Preferred Comunity
Basebait Industries Properties Living
Club, Inc. Inc. Inc. Options, Inc.
Assefs:
Current assets-
Pooled cash and cash equivalents.................. 58 $225 $86 $525
Investments............. 1,043 3,760 - 3,869
Receivables (net of allowances for
uncollectables)

ACCOUNES....ccvvevererseescee s es e e ennas 73 1,042 203 154
Prepaid exXpenses.........cocvivimeemresirennrcenennins 14 46 20 51
Inventory: materials and supplies................... 107 177 - -

Tofal current assets........coccecimiecccccicennin 1,245 5,250 . 308 4,554
Propetty, plant and equnpment—
Land.., e ttitanieaesnnssesnensaans - 188 510 -
Buﬂdmgs structures and
improvements............. - 3,946 3,815 -
Furniture, ﬁxtures and eqmpment ..................... 423 2,940 79 55
Less: accurnulated depreciation...................... (282) (2,364) (566) {(40)
Total 8SSELS..........ooveveeee i $1,376 $9,960 $4,147 $4,569
Liabilities:
Current liabilities-
Accounts Payable........c.ooooeieviieniiniee. $142 $194 $16 $526
Accrued wages and benefils...........c.ccceevinene 33 162 18 -
Deferred revernue.............covoieciciniiionenn. 56 - - -
Current portion of long-term debt............. S - 140 10 -

Total current labilfties........cccccevevveevieeenane 231 - 496 44 526
Notes Payable..............cccmimvnveneicninecrcnnen, - - 15 -
Bonds Payable...........coeiei e - 1,235 - -
Other long term obligations..........ccceivvninniin - - 1,782 -

Total liabilities..........c.coconernrciiimancciriinases 231 1,731 1,841 526

Equity:
FUnd BalanCe............eccueeeveremeiceace e eraennrenne - 8,229 2,308 4,043
Retained earnings - unreserved........................ 1,145 - - -
Total fund equity........coooveorecerciiiireriresa 1,145 8,229 2,308 4,043
Total liabilities and fund equity................. - $1,376 $8,960 54,147 54,569
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Tofal

$844
8,672

1,472
86
284

11,358

698

7,761
3,497

{3,262)

$20,052

$878
213
56
150

1,257

15
1,235
1,782

—_——t

4,329

14,578
1,145

—_——

15,723

——

$20,052

179



LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{(Amounts in 000's)

Lott Preferrd Community
Industries Properties Living
Inc. inc. Options, Inc. Total
Revenues:

Charges for senvices.........ocneemevimncnas 5,840 304 - $5,844

Intergovernmental revenue........... . - 260 2284 $2,544

Miscellaneous revenue............eevvvereeeessenes - -+ = 1,172 88 448 $1,708
TOtal FEVENLIBS. ... eereeesriissiense 6,812 653 2,732 10,197

Expenditures

Current;

Health......ccovivmre i 6,205 629 3,803 $10,637
Total axXpenditures..........ccoeeeeeevvreccunsas . . B205 829 3,803 10,8637
Excess revenus over (Undar)

@XPONARUIES..ccorneeerecerrreeemresvine i 607 24 (1,071) {440}

Fund balance at beginning

o1 Y= | USRS 7,622 2282 5114 $15.018

Fund balance atend of year................. e $8,229 $2,306 $4,043 $14,578
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1

Statistical Section

The Toledo Zoo unveilled its newest and most antici-
pated exhibit, the Arctic Encounter on January 7, 2000,
featuring underwater viewing of polar bears and seals with
an extensive interpretive area about life at the “top of the
world”,

The Polar bear exhibit features a land area of 6,000
square feet with a 1,600 square foot (12' deep) pool along
with a fresh water stream that will be sporadically stocked
with fish.

182
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The harbor and grey seals enjoy a 4,000 square foot
land exhibit and a 3,000 square foot (8-12" deep) pool that
holds 210,000 gallons of chilled salt water.

There are seven salt-water sireams and two waterfalls
in the exhibits as well as many other natural features
designed to make the residents feel at home.

The Zoo'’s capital projects are supported by a county-
wide .95 mill permanent improvement levy.
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TABLE 1
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION*
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Fiscal General Public Public Human
Year Government Safety Works Health Services
1980 $40,703 $21,710 $8,656 $42.320 $76,461
1991 44,539 20,683 12,273 48,520 79,163
1992 45,805 27,373 11,229 51,194 67,334
1993 48,406 27,579 11,314 64,479 61,431
1994 57,490 29,531 10,126 69,735 64,307
16985 60,219 36,927 11,803 72,089 67.414
1996 65,672 39,990 13,233 81,577 72,418
1997 70,359 45,701 14,898 82,081 75,706
1998 73,476 44,937 15,151 84,043 72,653
1999 79,293 48,504 17,153 81,167 82,275

1 Inciudes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds. Refer to: "Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditurss and Changes in Fund Balances-All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds" in the Financial Section.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

TABLE 2
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE!*
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{(Amounts in 000's)

Stato
Charges Licenses Fines and Local
Fiscal All for and and Government

Year Taxes Sarvices Parmits Forfeits Receipts
1980 $90,486 $12,870 $62 $579 $6,227
1991 91,100 12,788 70 521 6,381
1892 106,024 15,161 80 512 6,035
1993 110,250 19,894 60 561 6,322
1994 126,686 23,307 57 649 6,783
1895 123,809 23,068 50 583 7,258
1996 135,206 23,580 51 619 7487
1997 141,051 25,182 53 693 7,852
1998 147,989 26,750 47 712 8,328
1998 157,224 22 641 44 808 8,815

! Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds. Reler to: "Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds® in the Financial Section.
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Conservation

and Capital Debt Fiscal
Recreation Miscellaneous Qutlay Service ~__Total Yaar
$4,323 $6,563 $7,032 $7,925 $215,693 1990
4,214 8,721 7,830 7,982 231,925 1991

4,370 2127 9,377 7.974 226,783 - 1892

4,336 2,118 12,847 8,404 240,914 1693

4,706 2451 21,656 9,008 269,100 1994

4,856 3,024 9,530 10,705 276 587 1985

4,828 3,573 13,634 23,115 317,940 1996

4,950 3,694 29,351 14,674 341,414 1997

5,730 4,275 11,050 16,309 327,624 1998

6,131 7,317 12,562 16,080 348,492 1999

Depository
Other Inter- and

Governmental Investment Special Fiscal
Receipts Earnings Assessments Miscellaneous Total Year
$87.080 $5,062 $750 $7.352 $210,308 1990
102,077 4,254 916 8,721 226,828 1991
89,310 3,881 1,054 12,488 234,525 1992
93,153 4,265 1,624 12,896 249,025 1993
99,871 5,605 1,739 13,781 278,478 1994
106,201 8,196 1,356 15,749 286,270 1905
117,796 8,320 2,216 17,470 312,745 1996
124,563 9,871 1,801 23,741 334,807 1997
133,125 11,651 2,313 16,482 347,397 1998
144,563 7.627 2,122 22110 365,854 1999
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Real General Governmental Expenditures and Revenues

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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TABLE 3
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES
ADJUSTED FOR INFLATION?*
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)
Total Total Total Totatl
Fiscal Nominal Nominal Average® Real Real Fiscal
Year Expenditures Revenues CPI-U Expenditures Revenues Year
1990 $215,693 $210,308 391.4 $100,021 $97.524 1990
1891 231,925 226,828 408.0 103,173 100,905 1991
1992 226,783 234,525 420.3 97,933 101,276 1992
1993 240,914 243,025 432.9 101,007 104,408 1993
1994 269,100 278,478 444.0 110,004 113,837 1994
1995 276,567 286,270 456.5 109,960 113,818 1995
1996 317,940 312,745 469.9 122,805 120,799 1996
1997 341,414 334,807 480.8 . 128,882 126,388 1997
1998 327,524 347,397 488.3 121,777 129,127 1998
1899 348,492 365,854 499.0 126,756 133,071 1999

! Between 1989 and 1998 real expenditures increased by 26.7% or $26.7 million, while real revenues increased by 36.4% or $35.5 million

over the same period.

2 Average Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers. 1977 is the base vear when the Average CPi-U was 181.5.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Tax Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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TABLE 4
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)
General Tangible' Property County?

Fiscal Property Perscnal Transfar Sales Fiscal
Year Tax Tax Tax _ Tax Total Year
1990 $44,077 $10,820 3647 $33,942 $89,486 1990
1991 44,894 10,310 1,411 34,485 91,100 1991
1992 47,729 10,115 1,930 46,250 108,024 1992
1993 52,926 9,915 2272 45,137 110,250 1993
1994 53,491 10,308 2,341 60,546 126,686 1994
1995 54,563 10,523 2,562 56,161 123,809 1995
1996 62,206 12,034 2,785 58,181 135,206 1996
1997 63,821 12,289 3,006 61,935 141,051 1997
1998 66,516 12,799 3,629 65,045 147,989 1998
1999 69,124 14,021 3,638 70,441 157,224 1999

' Tangible Personal Tax inclides: personal property tax, mobile home tax and grain tax.

2 |acludes county sales tax and hotel lodging tax. 1984 sales tax increase includes sales tax accrual attributed to Implementation
of GASB #22.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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TABLE 5
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS-REAL AND PUBLIC UTILITY"
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Current Taxes

Tax/Levy Current Current Collected as a Delinquent
Collaction Taxes Taxes Percent of Taxes Taxes
Year levied Collected Levied-Current ) Collected

1989/1990 $53,482 $51,071 95.49% $1.643
1990/1991 54,830 ~ B1,655 94.21% 2,116
1991/1992 58,694 55,208 94.06% 1,257
1992/1993 59,771 56,870 95.15% 2,045
1993/1994 60,952 57,852 94.91% 2,182
1994/1995 61,930 59,020 95.30% 2422
1985/1996 68,897 66,619 96.69% 2,107
1996/1997 69,220 68,126 98.42% 2,268
1997/1998 73,217 72,021 98.37% 2,551
1998/1999 75,699 74,647 98.61% 2,487

1 Includes all tax rates levied county-wide for: General Fund, Senior Services, Community Mental Health, Board of Mental Retardation,
Children Services, Toledo-Lucas County Port Authority, Toledo Zoo, Toledo Lucas County Library and 9-1-1 Emergency Telephone System.
Refer to; "Table 8 - Property Tax Rates of All Overlapping Gavernments" in this section.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

100

o

o

S

=

1980 to 1998
L- Current |_evied Current Collected Tota!l Collected
Delinquent Taxes Total Coliections
Collected as a Total as a Percent of Tax/Levy
Percent of Total Taxes Taxes Levied- Accumulated Collection
Taxes Collected Collected Current Delinquencias Year

3.12% $52,714 98.56% $5,185 1989/1990
3.94% 563,771 98.07% 5,675 1990/1991
2.23% 56,455 96.20% 7,021 1991/1992
347% 58,915 98.57% 7,107 1992/1993
3.63% 60,034 98.49% o 7,100 1993/1994
3.84% 61,442 99.21% 6.227 1994/1995
3.07% 68,726 99.75% 5972 1995/1996
3.22% 70,394 101.70% 5977 © 1996/1997
3.42% 74,572 101.85% 5,796 1897/1998
3.20% 77,114 101.87% 5,760 1998/1999
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TABLE 6
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY"
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's}

Tax/Levy Real Property* Parsonal Property®
Collection Estimated Estimated
Year Assessed Actual Assessed Actual
1989/1990 $3,671,201 $10,489,146 $845,833 : $3,132,715
1990/1991 3,759,968 10,742,766 809,109 3,236,436
1961/1992 4,090,020 11,685,771 781,574 3,126,296
1992/1993 4,110,479 11,744,226 732,320 ’ 2,929,280
1993/1994 4,180,059 11,943,026 750,332 3,001,328
1994/1995 4,441,482 12,689,949 764,626 . 3,058,504
1995/1996 4,481,813 12,805,180 801,851 3,207,404
1996/1997 4,550,925 13,002,643 841,559 3,366,236
1997/1998 5,014,699 14,327,711 862,362 3,449,448
1998/1999 5,100,496 14,572,846 869,274 3,477,096

' Exempt properties are not included In the estimated actual values or in assessed valuations.

* The estimated actual values for real estate property were derived by 35% of the assessed values of real estate property. Refer to "Note .-
Praperty Tax Revenues” in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

3 The estimated actual values for personal property and public utility were derived from an average rate of the assessed values (the average
rate consists of varying rates for manufacturing equipment, inventory and other equipment) for the ten fiscal years presented.

Source: Lucas Couniy Auditor
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Assessed Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

6
c 4
2
m 2 -
0
1980 to 1999
N Real Property 7z Personal Property Public Utilities
Assessed Value
Public Utility* e . as a Percent Tax/Levy
Estimated Estimated of Estimated Collection
Assessed Actual _ Assessed . Actual Actual Value Year
$480,044 $1,777,941 $4,997,078 $15,399,802 32.45% 1989/1990
511,380 1,894,037 5,080,467 15,873,239 ©32.01% 1990/1931
531,430 1,890,351 5,403,024 T 716,702,418 32.35% 1591/1992
551,401 1,969,289 5,394,200 16,642,795 32.41% 1992/1993
552,586 1,973,518 5,482,977 16,917,872 32.41% 1993/1994
518,515 1,831.238 5,724 623 17,579,691 32.56% 1994/1995
494,129 1,764,746 5,777,793 17,777,330 . 3250% 1995/1996
490,200 1,750,714 5,882,684 18,119,593 3247% 1986/1997
483,823 1,727,940 6,364,073 19,516,528 32.61% 1997/1998

487,012

1,738,329 6,453,593 19,777,882 32.63% 1998/1999
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TABLE 7
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS"
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Current
Assessments
Collected as
Tax/Levy Current Current a Percent of Delinquent
Coilection Assessment Assessments Assessment Assessments
Year ) Levies o Collected Levies Collected
1989/1890 $2,209 $2,141 96.92% $154
1990/1991 2,368 2,224 93.92% 187
199171992 2539 2,368 93.27% 160
1992/1993 2,704 2,487 91.97% 184
1993/1994 2,809 2,584 91.99% 268
1894/1995 2,810 2,630 93.59% 259
1995/1996 2,755 2,528 91.76% 172
1996/1997 2,864 2,729 95.29% 282
1997/1998 2,914 2,785 95.57% 172
1998/1999 3,125 2,891 92.51% 153

1 Assessment [evies and collections include assessment districts outside the County entity.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Special Assessment Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Miitions

Bl Current Levied Current Collected

Delinquent Total
Assessmentis Collections
Collected as as a Percent
a Percent of Total of Current Tax/Levy
Assessment Assessments Assessment Accumulated Collection
Levies Collected Lavies Delinquencies Year
6.97% $2,285 103.69% $368 19881990
7.90% 241 101.82% 365 1960/1981
6.30% 2,528 99.57% 404 1991/1992
6.80% 2,671 98.78% 466 1992/1993
9.54% 2,862 101.53% 433 1993/1954
9.22% 2,889 102.81% 382 1994/1995
B.24% 2,700 08.00% 362 1995/19886
9.85% 3,011 105.13% 246 1996/1997
5.90% 2,957 101.48% 209 1997/1998
4.90% 3,045 97.44% 291 1998/1989
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TABLE 8
LUCAS COUNTY, CHIO
PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS!
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

Taxable Year: 1989 1990 1991 1992
Collection Year: 1990 1991 1992 1993
Lucas County Entities:
General Fund.......vvvmecemerseesssrsenenss $2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $2.00
Board of Mental Retardation............... 3.50 3.50 3.50 4.50
Children Services Board..........cccceviennes 275 275 350 3.50
Community Mental Health._.................. 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50
Emergency Medical Service........c...e. 1.10 1.10 - -
Senior ServiCes. o eicinace e : - - 025 025 .
9-1-1 Emergency Te[ephone System 0.50 - 0.50 0.50 0.50
Zoo {improvements).............coccconmnaes 0.50 0.50 .0.50 0.50
Zoo (operating).....oe. e veceressscrresermseas - -0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
Total Lucas County Entities............. 12.55 12.55 12.45 13.45
Other Entities:

Metroparks.......occccrevccnreceinscessnssemrasaes . 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Toledo-Lucas County Port

AULROMY . cecoisccnierecsesssnesnmer s smnenssvsenes 0.35 0.35 0.35 0.35
Toledo-Lucas County Library.............. 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Toledo Area Regional

Transportation Authority®..........c.ou.. . . 2.50 2.50 2.50 . 2.50

Total Rates...... $17.40 $17.40 $17.30 $18.30

' Property tax rates are defermined by a combination of the county-wide tax rates and the applicable tax rates for the school district, township
and municipality in which the property is located.

* Tarta is not levied in every county taxing district.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 __1999
$2.00 $2.00 $2.00 $200 . $2.00 $2.00
4.50 4.50 450 4.50 4.50 4.50 -
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50

1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50

0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
0.50 0.50 0.50 0.70 0.70 0.70
0.50 0.50 1.00 095 0.95 0.95

0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
13.45 13.45 13.95 14.10 14.10 14.10
1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.40

0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40
1.00 1.00 1.85 185 1.85 185
2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 250 .2.50
$18.35 $18.35 $19.70 $19.85 $19.85 $20.25
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TABLE 8

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

PROPERTY TAX RATES-DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS'-(continued)

Taxable Year:
Collection Year:

School Districts:
Anthony Wayne.............. S —
EVEIGreen....ccmirereee e rssiissms e esersesenes

SYIVANIA. ..o e vcrmrererrerersrsrra s et s sranas
Toledo......ccrmrererrars e creememes s -
Washington........... rnmreeererrser e e

Joint Vocational School Districts:
Four County.........ccccimnsammsnrsssmmrsesememees
Penta County........cccovinnrirsnssrssrsrreees

Townships:
Harding..ccce v emmmemmerer s
LT 1L T 1T o TR -
MORNCIOVA.....eeeaecamn s v s
Providence.........

Richfield.........
SPENCET.....oriseerersarmrerrrevarerrrs s resmmsmrees
Springfield............ evarrenarammemeeeeeeeebenes
Swanton.....cocvn. T
SyIvania........cccc e ——
Washington.......comerinenssceerenens —
Waterville.............. S —— —
Municipalities:

Village of Berkey......ccerecmvisssisssanias
Village of Harbor View.....c..coocveeie e
Village of Halland......ccccvccmrenrrnerrasenens
City of Maumee......ccccucrerecsamenerrssrerres
City of Oregon......ccevricnmrisnnseresanns
Village of Ottawa Hills.........cccorrinieaeees
Village of Swanion........corueevreseserearensas
City of Sylvania.......c.ccccovismnrssrnsssmsisans
City of Toledo
Village of Waterville........ccoovrmneesnininenes
Village of Whitehouse........c.cccorvvereresene

1 Property tax rates are determined by a combination of the county-wide tax rates and the applicable tax rates for the schoal district, township

or municipality in which the property is located.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

1989 1990 1991 1992

1990 1991 1992 1993
$56.10 $56.10 $56.10 $62.90
40.30 39.70 39.70 39.70
45.90 51.40 52.60 57.40
36.30 42.30 42.30 42.30
4450 44.50 44.50 52.50
86.7¢ 90.20 90.20 97.90
57.90 57.90 61.80 61.80
51.40 53.60 56.20 56.20
. 56.30 56.20 57.05 62.30
- 5180 51.90 58.80 .58.60
52.10 52.10 52.10 52.10
3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20
2.20 220 220 220
- 3.30 330 3.30 330
--9.75 9.75 9.75 9.75
4.90 4.90 4.90 4.80
4.20 420 4.45 645
8.10 5.30 530 5.30
4.50 4.50 4.50 6.00
_6.30 6.30 6.30 6.30
-4.70 5.40 5.40 5.40
15.30 15.30 15.30 16.40
16.10 17.20 17.20 19.20
7.80 8.80 8.10 9.30
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
4.20 4.10 4.20 4.40
3.50 3.850 3.50 3.50
4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
4.95 5.75 5.75 575
4.40 4.40 4.40 4.40
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
3.70 3.50 3.50 3.50
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1993 1994 1995 1986 1997 1998

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
$62.90 $62.20 $66.80 $66.80 $64.50 $64.50
39.70 39.70 42.90 42.90 39.70 39.70
57.40 57.40 59.60 64.50 62.30 62.30
42.30 45.80 45.80 49.20 49.20 489.20
51.80 51.80 52.60 51.80 57.20 49.11
87.90 97.90 104,30 104.30 107.05 107.05
60.80 65.20 67.40 67.40 64.20 64.20
56.20 56.00 65.16 64.60 62.10 §2.05
62.30 62.30 63.90 63.20 66.30 66.30
57.80 57.70 57.80 57.80 57.80 57.80
56.80 56.80 56.80 61.70 61.70 61.70
3.20 3.20 . 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.20
220 2.20 2.20 2.20 220 2.20
3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30
9.75 8.75 8.75 9.75 9.75 9.75
4.90 5.20 5.20 5.20 520 5.20
6.45 6.45 6.45 6.45 445 6.95
530 5.30 5.30 7.20 7.20 7.20
6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 8.00 6.00
6.30 6.30 6.30 8.10 8.10 8.10
4.70 4.90 5.20 520 - 520 6.10
16.40 16.40 16.40 16.40 16.40 16.40
19.20 18.20 19.20 19.50 19.50 19.50
9.30 9.30 $.30 8.30 9.30 .30
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
2.00 2.00 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80
4.20 4.10 4.00 4.00 4.00 3.85
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10 4.10
3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
575 6.25 6.25 6.25 6.25 6.40
4,40 4.40 4,40 4.40 4.40 4.40
3.80 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50 3.50
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TABLE 9
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO
ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

Less Debt (i)

Service

Fiscal Total(ii) Assessed’ Gross General(i) Fund

Year Population Values Bonded Debt Balance
1890 462,361 $4,987,696 $38,435 469
1991 465,000 5,085,845 36,790 642
1992 467,600 5,410,518 39,225 - 446
1993 467,500 5432199 37,355 857
1994 467,500 5,482 977 47,542 914
19895 457,100 5,724,623 49,250 810
1996 452,691 5,777,793 68,325 1,029
1997 452,400 5,882,684 75,500 7,372
1993 448,300 6,360,884 67,900 6,652
1999 447,300 6,453,553 60,060 5,986

t Referto: "Table 6 - Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property” in this section.

Source (i): Lucas County Auditor
SBource (ii): Toledo Regionat Growth Partnership

TABLE 10
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR GENERAL
BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{(Amounts in 000's)

Total* Total'
General General General General
Fiscal' Obligation Obligation Obligation Governmental
Year Principal Interest Debt Service Expendituras
1990 $1,645 $2,080 $3,735 $215,693
1691 1,645 2,710 4,355 231,925
1992 1,650 3,085 4,745 226,783
1993 1,870 2,724 4,594 240,914
1994 1,905 2,599 4,504 269,100
1995 2942 3,288 6,230 276,567
1996 14,845 3,588 18,433 317,940
1897 6,425 3,971 10,396 341,414
10488 7.600 4,203 11,803 327,624
1999 7.840 3,815 11,655 348,492

1 Refer to: "Table 1 - General Governmental Expenditures by Functlon® in this section.

* General obligation bonds reported in the Enterprise funds and special assessment debt with governmental commitment have been
exciuded.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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Ratio of

Net General Per Capita
Net General Bonded Dabt to Net General Fiscal
Bonded Debt Assessed Value Bonded Debt Year
$37,966 0.761% 82.11 1990
36,148 0.711% 77.74 1891
38,779 0.717% 82.93 1992
36,498 0.672% 78.07 1993
46,628 0.850% 99.74 1994
48,440 0.846% 10597 1995
67,296 1.165% 148.66 1996
68,128 1.158% 150.59 1897
61,248 0.963% 136.62 1998
54,070 0.838% 120.88 1999
Ratio of
Total Debt Service
to General
Governimaental Fiscal
Expenditures Year
1.73% 1980
1.88% 1991
2.09% 19092
1.91% 1993
1.67% 1994
2.25% 1995
5.80% 1996
3.04% 1997
3.60% 1998

3.34% 1999
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TABLE 11
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED December 31, 1999
(Amounts in 000’s)

Direct lagal debt limitation':

3.0% of the first $100,000 assessed valuation..........cccrmes $3,000
1.5% on excess of $100,000-not in excess of
$300,000.. ) S - . 3,000
2.5% on the amount in excess of $300,00082......cmmerererneens : 153,838
Total direct legal debt imitalion.........coovvveevvcvervmnivinianns . 150,828
Total of all county debf ouistanding®............. $77,437
Less:
Special assessment bonds and notes
(self-supporting)®........ . 11,155
Correctional facilities bongds (4)......ocevcrcrerererserre eeovescvrrmermns - 7,854
Total exempt debi...........c....... - . (19,009)
Less:
Available equity in debt service fund as of
December 31, 1998....cccconveceeen (5,986)
Total net indebtedness (voted and unvoted) subject )
to direct debt limitation..............c.cccrenee 52,442
Direct legal debt margin...........vevreeeeeceeeeeeemmrenneaes $107,386
Unvoied debt iimitation (subject to 1% of County
assessed valuation). ... - 64,535
Total net indebtedness (unvoted subject to the 1%
legal debt limitation).... eeerenenas S ) ) (29,007)
Total unvoted fegal debf MArgin............cuweuvivcssrsesosmanns, $35,528

1 Direct legal debt limitation is outlined by the Ohio Revised Cede, codifications 133.02 and 133.05.
2 Referto: ™Table 6 - Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property” in this section.

3 Excludes Ohlo Water Development Authority (OWDA) and Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) loans. Refer to. "Note F - Notes Payable™
and to "Note G - Long-term Debt and Other Obligations” in the Notes fo the Financlal Statements.

4 Excluded by state statute.

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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TABLE 12

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999

Direct dabt:

Lucas County'.......urerrermsersssessrsnens

Overlapping debt:
Municipalities:?
All cities and villages within

Lucas County.....ieimmemreerverescsiseses
Swanton Village.........c- ST

School districts:?
Al school districts

within Lugas County......c.comvnrneee
Anthony Wayne local..........cccoemenn

Overlapping debt....cocoveee

Tolal direct and overfapping debt...

(Amounts in 000's)

Pearcent Amount

Debt Applicable Applicable

Outstanding to County _ to County
$65,980 100.0% . $65,980
164,817 100.0% 164,817
510 3.46% 18
48,748 100.0% 48,748
13,894 97.2% 13,505
227,965 99.6% 227,088
$263,849 99.7% $263,068

' Excluding special assessment debt with governmental commitment, revenue bonds, general obligation bonds reported in Enterprise funds,

and Regional Jail bonds.

* The cities which are wholly Yocated within the legal boundaries of Lucas County are; Maumee, Oregon, Sylvania and Toledo. The villages
which are wholly located within the legal boundaries of Lucas County are: Berkey, Harbor View, Hollard, Oftawa Hills, Waterville and Whitehouse.

3 The schoal districts which are whelly located within the legal boundaries of Lucas County are: Maumee (CSD), Ottawa Hills (£SD), Oregon
(CSD), Springfield (LSD}, Sylvania (CSD), Toledo {CSD} and Washington (LSD).

Chart of Direct andOQ_erIapb_ing Debt

as of December 31, 1999

(56.2%)

(22.5%)

(4.6%)

B Cities and Villages

&4 Lucas County

Local School Districts

1 Overlapping School District

(16.6%)

ource: Lucas County Auditor




TABLE 13
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
PROPERTY VALUES, BANK DEPOSITS AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

Asseossod Values of!

Real, Personal Total*
Fiscal and Utility Certified Valuation of* Permits

Year Property(i) Bank Deposits (ii) Construction ({iii) Issued (iii)

1990 $4,987,696 $4,479,666 $202,198 10,200
1991 5,085,845 4,588,277 176,450 9,961
1992 5,410,519 4,439,618 258,451 10,163
1993 5,432,199 3,124,897 230,814 10,462
1994 5,482,977 2,768,305 251,899 10,073
1995 5,724,623 3,053,287 265,933 8,790
1996 5,777,793 3,810,869 347,064 11,524
1997 5,882,684 3,037,031 287,618 9,848
1998 6,360,884 5,302,858 619,472 9,982
1999 6,453,593 6,340,350 194,109 9,166

' Refer to: "Table 6-Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property” in this section.

? Represents all privately owned new construction including residential and nonresidential structures, and residential and nonresidential
garage and carport additions, alterations and conversions.

Source (i): Lucas County Auditor

Source (ii}: Data Services Department-Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland.

Source (iii): Lucas County Building Regulation Department, City of Toledo Building Department, City of Oregon
Inspection Department, City of Maumee Division of Building and the Village of Whitehouse Building Department.
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TABLE 14
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

TOP TEN PRIVATE SECTOR PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Amounts in 000's)

1999
1999 Assessed Total 1999
Assaessed Pearsonal Assassead
Real Estate Property Property
Elm Values Values Values

General Motors Hydra-Mafic.....c.eecererveeremveeree 8,708 37,491 546,199
Chrysler/Daimler.... 6,269 38,325 44 594
‘Sun Oil Company........ . _.. 4383 38,410 42 793
BP Amernica......ccce... $6,388 $36,018 42,404
The Andersons. . 12917 15,265 28,182
Schuiler International...... 3,561 20,365 23,926
General Mills..........-. . 3,209 19,273 22 482
Meiier InC...eeevuneee 13,533 7,191 20,724
St. Vincent Medical Center......ccormvssevrcvsseneas ____ 20,503 0 20,503
SeawaY FOOAIOWN..1ueerrrrrmrernemesmamraemamensarsrensns 5,165 14,471 19,636
Tofals....... _$84,636 $226,807 $311,443

* Refer to: “Table 6-Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" in this section.

Source: Lucas County Auditor

TABLE 15
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
TOP FIVE PUBLIC UTILITY TAXPAYERS

FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND DECEMBER 31, 1998

(Amounts in 000's)

1998 1988 1989 Paircent of
Assessed Assessed Utilities Assessed
Public Public Value to Total
Utility Utility 1999 Assessed
Utility Valuegs Values Value
Toledo Edison.. $244,359 $251,065 3.75%
Columbia Gas.....ccoe. 72,512 92,947 1.11%
of Ohio, Inc.. 72,802 75,657 1.12%
Ohio Bell......~
GTE North, Inc.
and Telegraph........ 9,697 11,596 0.15%
C8X Transportation Inc.... 9,251 5,174 0.14%
Totals.... $408,621 $436,439 6.27%

Source: Lucas County Auditor
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1999 Percent'
Firms Assessed
Value to Total
1999 Assessod
Property Values

1999

Rank of Top Ten
Firms by Assessed
Proparty Values

0.72%
0.658%
0.66%
0.66%
0.44%
0.37%
0.35%
0.32%
0.32%
0.30%

4.83%

1998 Percent of
Utilities Assessed
Value to Total
1998 Assegssad
Value

3.90%
1.44%
1.17%

0.15%
0.15%

6.81%
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TABLE 16
LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999

POPULATION DENSITY

Census Square Population in Population
Year Miles Lucas County Density
1960 343.3 456,931 1,331.0
1970 3433 483,551 1,408.5
1980 3433 471,741 1,383.4
1990 341.0 462,361 1,355.9

Source: Bureau of Census-United States Department of Commerce
EMPLOYMENT TRENDS

Ten Year Average Employment

County County Unemployment Rate _
Year Employed Unemployed County Ohio U.S.
1990 217,900 17,200 7.3% 5.7% 5.5%
1991 211,600 20,300 8.8% 6.4% 6.7%
1982 211,400 19,100 8.3% 7.2% 7.4%
1693 212,500 15,600 6.8% 6.5% 6.8%
1994 215,800 13,300 5.8% 5.5% 8.1%
1985 214,400 11,500 5.0% 4.8% 5.6%
1996 215,700 11,500 5.1% 4.9% 5.4%
1997 218,300 11,900 5.2% 4.6% 4.9%
1998 218,000 12,700 5.5% 4.2% 4.5%
1999 222 000 12,100 5.2% 4.2% 4.2%
1999 Monthly Employment
County County Unemployment Rate
Month Employed Unemployed County Ohio ... USs.
Jan. 216,800 12,700 5.5% 4.9% 4.8%
Feb. 217,300 12,700 5.5% 4.8% 4.7%
March 218,900 11,400 4.9% 43% 4.4%
April 220,500 11,500 5.0% 4.0% 41%
May 222,600 10,800 4.6% 3.7% 4.0%
June 221,700 13,300 5.7% 4.5% 4.5%
July 222,500 21,200 8.8% 4.5% 4.5%
Aug. 223,800 11,400 4.8% 4.0% 4.2%
Sept. 223,900 10,800 4.6% 4.2% 4.1%
QOct. 226,200 10,300 4.4% 3.9% 3.8%
Nov. 226,300 9,800 4.2% 3.9% 3.8%
Dec. 225,900 9,000 3.8% 3.8% 3.7%

Source: QOhilo Bureau of Employment Services
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TABLE 17

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999

HOSPITALS

Name

Toledo Hospital........cccoieeeme

5t. Vincent Mercy Medical Center..........cueu.v.s
8t. Charles Mercy Hospital.......
Medical College of Ohio Hospitals...........

St. Lukes Hosptial....coererareeeees

o

Riverside Mercy Hospital.....

Flower Hospital........corcereererenen

Source: Lucas County Auditor

HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS

Name of Institution

University of Toledo.....ccoeore.

Lourdes College.......... .

Medical College of Ohio............
University of Toledo-College of Law

Davis College....

N i T

Stautzenberger College of Business and Technology

Total enrollment..........cocvreeee

Source: Lucas County Auditor

— 207 -

Numbsr

of Bads

774
542
386
319
314
310
278

1999/2000
Fall/Winter

Enroliment

16,361
1,310
988
521
459
380

20,019
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TABLE 17

LUCAS COUNTY
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS-(continued)

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Dollar Amounts in 000's)

NATIONAL AND INTERNATICNAL FIRM RANKINGS

Overall Overall Ohic 1998
Rank Rank Rank Gross Net Asset
Firm 1999 1998 1999 ___Sales Assets Rank
Dana Corporation............. 131 127 7 $13,353,000 $11,123,000 217
Owens-llinois......c.ccceeeeeees 203 302 18 5,048,000 10,756,300 224
Owens-Corning Fiberglas. 323 319 19 5,786,700 6,494,000 306
INDUSTRIAL RANKINGS
1999
Number of 1999 1998
Firm Employees Industry Rank Rank
Dana Corporation............. 84,200 Motor Vehicle & Parts 5 3
Qwens-lllinois................... 36,600 Building Materials, Glass 1 1
Owens-Coming Fiberglas. 20,000 Building Materials, Glass 2 2
1Source: Fortune magazine, "The Largest 500 U.S. Industrial Companies,” April 17, 2000 Volume 141, No. 8
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TABLE 17

LUCAS COUNTY, OHIO
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS-(continued)
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999
EMPLOYERS
Top Ten Private Employers
Number of

Employer Employees Primary Type of Product/Service
ProMedica Health Systems™............ 10,833 Medicine and health care
Merch Health Partners™.....cceeeeeeeeee 8,208 Medicine and health care
Daimler-Chrysier/Toledo Jeep ......... 5,400 Automatic manufacturing
Seaway Foodlown.......occcoeecacneeens 4,429 Retail grocery
General Motors/Power Train............. 4,100 Automatic transmissions
Medical College of Chio..........coeee.eee 3,367 Medicine and health care
Kroger........... . 2,667 Retail grocery
Meijers.... 2,500 Retail grocery
United Parcel Service.........coomueeeeee. -~ 2121 Mail service
Andersons.......c... - 1,961 Grain storage/processing and retail

Top ten total employed 45,376

Percent of total work force? 20.43%

Refer to: "Employment Trends-Ten Year Employment” within Table 16 of this Section.

*1997 Merger of Mercy, Riverside, St. Charies and St. Vincent Mercy Medical Centers.

**1998 Merger of Childrens Medical Center, Flower Hospital, Toledo Hosptial, Crestview Club Apt.

Goerlich Center, Caring Home Helath Serv. Lake Park, Golden Haven, Promedica Paramount & Promedica Phy. Support.
Source: Toledo Regional Growth Partnership

Top Five Public Employers

Number of

Employer Employees Primary Type of Product/Service
Toledo Public Schools........occcceeeeenn. 5,539 Education (primary-secondary)
University of Toledo.... e 5,213 Education (advanced)
Lucas County........ - . _ 4,489 Government services (various)
City of Toledo.....cooecicermmeccremrreannnee . 2916 Government services (various)
State of Ohio........ - 1,948 Government services (various)

Total emploved 20,105

Percent of fotal work force’ 9.05%

'Refer to: "Employment Trends-Ten Year Employment™ within Table 16 of this Section.

Source: Toledo Regional Growth Partnership
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STATE OF OHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

FINANCJAL CONDITION

LUCAS COUNTY

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION

88 East Broad Street
P.O.Box 1140
Columbus, Chio 43216-1140

Telephones14-466-4514
800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the
Office of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and

which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

By:M ﬁﬂm

Date: JULY 6, 2000
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